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Corporate Information

DIRECTORS

Mr Ibrahim Dikko

Mr. Johnnie Wilcox
Chief (Mrs.) Margaret Giwa
Mr. Richard Asabia

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Mr. Ademola Ajuwon
Mr. Kolawole Lamidi
Mr Kofo Majekodunmi
Mrs. Mimi Ade Odiachi
Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Appointed -15 November 2022
Retired -28 February 2023
Retired -28 February 2023
Retired -28 February 2023

Appointed - 15 November 2022

SECRETARY

Custodian Trustees Limited

Custodian House

16A Commercial Avenue

Sabo, Yaba

Lagos, Nigeria

Tel: (+234) 01-2707206-7, 2793740, 2793401,
0700-CUSTODIAN, (+234)1 2774000-9
Fax: (+234) 1 2707203

PO. Box 2101, Lagos

Email: enquiries@custodianinsurance.com
Website: www.custodianplc.com.ng

RC No. RC685235
TIN NO. 01451641-0001

FRC No. FRC/2012/0000000000316
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Custodian House

16A Commercial Avenue

Sabo, Yaba

Lagos, Nigeria

Tel: (+234) 01-2707206-7,

2793740, 2793401

0700-CUSTODIAN, (+234)1 2774000-9
Fax: (+234) 1 2707203

PO. Box 2101, Lagos

Email: enquiries@custodianinsurance.com
Website: www.custodianplc.com.ng

BANKERS

First Bank of Nigeria Limited

Stanbic IBTC Plc

Zenith Bank Plc

Access Bank Limited

Guaranty Trust Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Nigeria Limited

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche

Civic Towers

Plot GA 1Ozumba Mbadiwe Avenue
Lagos

REINSURERS

Munich Reinsurance Company Limited
Swiss Reinsurance Company Limited
African Reinsurance Company
Continental Reinsurance Plc

FBS Reinsurance Limited

REPORTING ACTUARY

Ernst and Young

13 & 10 Floors UBA House

57 Marina, Lagos, Nigeria

FRC No: FRC/2013/00000000578



Branch Directory

Abuja

Oakland Center, Plot 2940, Cadastral Zone
Maitama District, Abuja

Tel.: 09-7817420

Kano
15 Bank Road, Kano, Kano State
Tel.: 064-895969

Port Harcourt

180, Aba Road,

Port Harcourt, Rivers State
Tel.: 07085000046

Akure

2nd & 3rd Floors

BOI House, Alagbaka, Akure

Tel.: 08034202962, 07086600484

Benin

34, Akpakpava Road, by Igbesamwan Junction
Benin City, Edo State

Tel.: 05-2292480

Ibadan

9 Onireke residential layout
Ibadan, Oyo State

Tel.: 022-918538

Kaduna

3, Kanta Road

PO. Box 9301, Kaduna
Kaduna State

Tel.: 06-2293346

2023 CAIAR | 3



Notice Of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (“the Company”) will hold via virtual means on
Wednesday, June 19, 2024, at 11:30am, to transact the following:

Ordinary business

1. To lay before the members, the audited financial statements for the year ended december 31, 2023, together with the auditors report.
2. To declare a dividend.

3. To re-elect directors.

4. To authorise the directors to fix the remuneration of the external auditors for the 2024 financial year.

5. To note the remuneration of managers in the employment of the company.

Special business

6. To approve/fix the remuneration of the Directors.
7. To appoint a board evaluation consultant.

By order of the Board

Adeyinka Jafojo
FRC/2013/PRO/NBA/002/00000002403
Custodian Trustees Limited

Company Secretary
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Summary Of Results And Balances
For The Year Ended 31 December 2023
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Variance

Increase/
Statement of Profit or loss and other (Decrease) Growth
Comprehensive Income items N’000 %
Gross premium written 42,594,486 37,982,979 4,611,507 12%
Insurance contract revenue 40,377,128 36,516,475 3,860,653 11%
Insurance service expenses (22,472,417) (11,049,789)  (11,422,628) 103%
Insurance service result (3,158,072) 3,625,987 (6,784,059) -187%
Net Investment income 24,215,325 5,287,134 18,928,191 358%
Other operating expenses (2,603,393) (2,975,153) 371,760 -12%
Profit before income tax expense 15,212,733 6,137,539 9,075,194 148%
Profit for the year 10,321,013 5,252,927 5,068,085 96%
Total assets 86,988,030 52,791,954 34,196,077 65%
Insurance contract liabilities 24,081,523 14,298,937 9,782,586 68%
Statutory contingency reserve 10,000,000 10,000,000 0%
Total equity 34,667,732 25,114,280 9,553,452 38%



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For The Year Ended 31 December 2023

This "management discussion and analysis" of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited’s performance as at 31 December 2023 should be read

in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the company as at 31 December 2023.

Business Profile
Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited is a Nigerian company whose vision is to be Africa’s insurer of choice, with a mission to develop,
package and deliver innovative insurance products that best satisfy customer needs whilst operating a highly profitable, efficient, resourceful and

ethical organization that will survive well into the future and be a valuable asset to its shareholders.

Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (“the Company”) is engaged in property-casualty insurance. The products and services are essentially
market-driven with emphasis on providing options on policies, paying due regard to production processes employed in various industries.
Consequently, our product ranges have been developed to meet and address the needs of our clients, buoyed by the Company’s commitment to

delivering exemplary service to its clients and outperforming its peers.
Obijectives and Strategies
The Company remains committed to continuous improvement of its structures, systems and processes in order to keep ahead of the challenges of

new growth, improving business prospects, transparency, and governance.

The Company's strategy and performance to date are very strong indicators of the Company’s vision, mission and long-term growth objectives.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis Contd

Highlights of operating performance and financial position

Insurance contract revenue
Insurance service expenses
Net expense from reinsurance contracts held

Insurance service result

Interest, investment and other income
Other operating expenses
Profit before income tax expense

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (kobo):

Basic/diluted

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Insurance contract liabilities

Total equity
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40,377,128

(22,472,417)
(21,062,783)
(3,158,072)

4,702,435
(2,603,393)
15,212,733

10,321,013

52

11,419,213
86,988,030
24,081,523
34,667,732

36,516,475

(11,049,789)
(21,840,699)

3,625,987

3,311,554
(2,975,153)
6,137,539
5,252,927

83

8,793,947
52,791,954
14,298,937
25,114,280

11%
103%
-4%
-187

42%
-12%
148%

96%

58%

30%
65%
68%
38%



Management’s Discussion and Analysis Contd

Underwriting Performance
Insurance contract revenue increased by 11% while insurance service expenses increased by 103%. Net expenses from reinsurance contracts declined by 4%

from N21.841b to N21.063b. The combination of these result in a 187% decline in Insurance service result from N3,626b to a negative result of N3.158b.

Interest, Investment and other income
Interest, investment and other income for the year was N4.702b up from N3.311b in 2022 representing a 42% increase.

Expenses
Management expenses for the year was N3.882b from N4.123b in 2022 representing an decrease of 6%. Other operating expenses which relates to the

non-directly aftributable expenses decreased by 12% from 2.9b to 2.6b.

Insurance servcie result
The result of insurance service rendered net of expense from reinsurance contracts held during the year was a loss of N3.158b compared with a prior year

profit of N3.621b representing a year on year decline of 187%

Profitability
The Company’s profit before income tax expense was N15.213b compared to N6.137b in 2022, an increase of 148%, the Company’s profit for the year

was N10.32b compared to N5.253b in 2022, an increase of 96% with basic earnings per share (EPS) increasing to 52kobo from 33kobo.

Liquidity and financial position

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents increased by 30% from N8.794b in 2022 to N11.419b as at 31 December 2023; while Insurance contract
liabilities were N24.08b, 68% increase from N14.3b in 2023. Total assets now stand at N86.9b representing a 65% increase from N52.8b in 2022, while
total equity increased by 38% to N34.667b when compared to the restated balance of N25.114b recorded in 2022.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis Contd

Future Outlook

We evolve our products and services to ensure that we continue to meet customers’ changing needs. Our multi-channel and multiproduct approach,
employing digital sales, fulfilment, and premium collection, has continued to deliver on the opportunities created by the current volatile, uncertain, complex,
and ambiguous environment. We believe we are well-positioned both to weather the disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic and its successive
variants, information technology evolution, the market dynamics and industry changes, the general insecurity in the country, and to support our customers
and communities for many years to come. We are confident that we will not only continue to demonstrate our agility and resilience through this period, but

that we will emerge from it stronger, more digitally enabled and even better able to serve our customers.

We remain focused on our strategic priorities of improving the performance and resilience of the business while focusing on simplifying what we do and
driving further investment in areas of strength to enable our investors to fully benefit from the opportunity presented by our business. We continue to invest
and innovate to meet important needs for consumers, we operate a highly resilient business model, and we are dedicated to our purpose of helping people

get the most out of life.

Markets remain competitive but the Company has the right foundation to target sustainable growth in certain product lines and customer types. The

continuation of our programme of business simplification aligned to customer driven values will assist this growth further.

The National Insurance Commission (NAICOM), in a bid to deepen insurance and enhance growth in the Nigerian economy unveiled the insurance
industry’s strategic vision for 2024-2033. The vision is built upon seven strategic pillars that encompass regulatory transformation, risk-based capital
models, insurance promotion and adoption, product diversification, distribution channel optimization, digitalization, talent development, and support for
Nigeria’s economic transformation. Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited is poised to take its leadership position in the non-life segment of the insurance

sector in line with our vision to be Africa’s Insurer of choice.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

Distinguished shareholders, fellow members of the board of directors,
ladies, and gentlemen. It is my pleasure to welcome you to the Annual
General Meeting of our company, Custodian and Allied Insurance
Limited, and to present to you the Annual Reports and Accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

| will provide an overview of the macroeconomic environment, both
global and domestic, within which we operate and highlights of our
Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2023. | will also highlight some of the activities of our corporate social

responsibility foundation and conclude with our outlook for 2024.
Global Economy

In June 2023, the World Bank in her Global Economic Prospects
publication projected the global economy to grow at a rate of 2.1% in
2023, 100 basis points slower than the estimated growth of 3.1%
recorded in 2022. The latest projection is 80 basis points lower than
the IMF’s earlier projection of 2.9% growth, with the downward revision
being on the back of the continued tightening of monetary policies by
the Central Banks around the world aimed at curbing the elevated

inflationary pressures. Notably, advanced economies were expected to

record a 0.7% growth in 2023, which is a significant decline from the
2.6% expansion recorded in 2022. However, emerging markets and
developing economies were projected to expand by 4.0% in 2023,
marginally upwards from a growth of 3.7% in 2022. Specifically, the
Sub-Saharan economy was projected to grow at a moderate rate of
3.2% in 2023, which is 50 basis points lower than the 3.7% growth
recorded in 2022.

The World Bank's January 2024 Global Economic Prospects report
estimates that last year's global growth slowed to 2.6 percent. Despite
being 0.5 percentage points higher than the June prediction, this is
because US growth was better than anticipated. In 2024, global growth
is predicted to drop once more, to 2.4 percent. The deteriorating labor
markets, shrinking savings buffers, dwindling pent-up demand for
services, the delayed consequences of monetary tightening, and fiscal

consolidation are all contributing factors to this slowdown.

Global growth is greatly aided by emerging and developing countries,
particularly China's, even though developed economies continue to be

resilient.

The Sub-Saharan economy was projected to grow at a moderate rate of 3.2% in 2023
which is 50 basis points lower than the 3.7% growth recorded in 2022.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

The major economies are emerging largely unscathed from the swiftest rise
in interest rates in 40 years without the customary scars of soaring
unemployment rates or financial crashes indicating that the global economy
has proven to be unexpectedly durable despite the shocks of the previous
four years. Controlling global inflation prevents the globe from entering a
recession. Although it is uncommon for nations to lower their rates of
inflation without experiencing a slump, the International Monetary Fund
predicted in her January 2024 world economic outlook that a "soft landing"

will occur this time.

However, the projection for 2024-2025 is lower than the historical average
of 3.8 percent for the years 2000-2019 due to higher central bank policy
rates to combat inflation, the withdrawal of fiscal support in the face of rising
high debt weighing on economic activity, and low underlying productivity
growth. Inflation is falling faster than expected in most regions, in the midst of
unwinding supply-side issues and restrictive monetary policy. Global

headline inflation which has continually declined from its 2022 peaks is
expected to fall further to 5.8 percent in 2024 and to 4.4 percent in 2025,
with the 2025 forecast revised down.

Nonetheless, inflation remains above target in most advanced economies
and about half of inflation-targeting emerging market and developing
economies. Global inflation is projected to remain above its 2015-19

average beyond 2024. Monetary tightening in advanced economies is

concluding, but real policy interest rates are expected to remain elevated for

some time, as inflation returns to target gradually.

Domestic Economy

Following a change in administration in May 2023, Nigeria stands at a
pivotal moment with a unique opportunity to return to a sustainable and
inclusive growth path. The new administration led by President Bola Ahmed
Tinubu, GCFR has recognized the need for a change in course and has
undertaken key reforms to restore macroeconomic stability. These reforms
include the removal of the gasoline subsidy and the unification and

significant liberalization of the exchange rate.

The year 2023 for Nigeria’s finance and economy was marked by a series of
major events that shaped the nation’s financial landscape. Against a
backdrop of global economic uncertainties, geopolitical tensions, and the
aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic, Nigeria has faced challenges while
also seizing opportunities for growth and resilience. The Nigerian economy
was anticipated to continue its recovery path in 2023. However, domestic
constraints linked to the political economic changes and global impact of
the Russia-Ukraine conflict increased the economic pressure that already
existed. The price of agricultural commodities rose sharply thereby

increasing the cost of inputs and food prices. Also impacted were energy

Despite these challenges, the Nigerian economy recorded year on year GDP growth of
3.46% in real terms in the fourth quarter of 2023.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

products with higher prices of diesel and aviation
fuel having detrimental impact on businesses across
different sectors. This was exacerbated by lack of

stable power supply from the national grid.

Despite these challenges, the Nigerian economy
recorded year on year GDP growth of 3.46% in real
terms in the fourth quarter of 2023. This growth rate
is lower than the 3.52% recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2022 and higher than the third quarter of
2023 growth of 2.54%. The performance of the
GDP in the fourth quarter of 2023 was driven mainly
by the Services sector, which recorded a growth of
3.98% and contributed 56.55% to the aggregate
GDP The agriculture sector grew by 2.10%, from the
growth of 2.05% recorded in the fourth quarter of
2022. The growth of the industry sector was 3.86%,
an improvement from -0.94% recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2022. On an annual basis, GDP grew by
2.74% in 2023 relative to 3.10% in 2022. However,
the financial sectors

services and insurance

recorded a GDP growth of 26.8% driven by fintech
revolution in the sector which continues to attract
hundreds of billions of naira investments in the

sector.

In its January 2024 World Economic Outlook, IMF
downgraded the Nigerian economic growth forecast
to 2.9-3.0 per cent from 3.1 per cent projected in
October  2023.
macroeconomic headwinds, this was revised upward
to 3.3 percent on 16 April 2024.

However, amid  various

In December 2023, Nigeria’s headline inflation rate
increased to 28.92% relative to the November 2023
headline inflation rate which was 28.20%. Looking at
the movement, the December 2023 headline inflation
rate showed an increase of 0.72% points when
compared to the November 2023 headline inflation
rate. On a year-on-year basis, the headline inflation
rate was 7.58% points higher than the rate recorded in
December 2022, which was 21.34%.

The rise in inflation reflected the impact of fuel subsidy
removal which caused food inflation to rise faster.
Food and (14.98%)

contributed the most to the inflationary pressure,

non-alcoholic  beverages
followed by housing water, electricity, gas and other
fuel (4.84%), and clothing and footwear (2.21%).

Core inflation, which excludes the prices of volatile
agricultural produce stood at 23.06% in December

2023 on a year-on-year basis; up by 4.85% when

The agriculture sector grew
by 2.10%, from the growth
of 2.05% recorded in the
fourth quarter of 2022.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

compared to the 18.21% recorded in December 2022. The highest
increases were recorded in prices of Passenger Transport by Road, Medical
Services, Actual and Imputed Rentals for Housing, Passenger Transport by

Air, Pharmaceutical products, Accommodation services, etc.

Q2 2023 saw the unification of various exchange rates by the government.
This meant that exchange rate moved from an average of N460.80/US$ to
N632.27/US$ on 14 June 2023 when the Central Bank of Nigeria
abolished all the segments in the FX market which were collapsed into the
I&E window guided by the willing buyer and willing seller model to reflect
impact of the active market forces. Since then, exchange rate in the and
Exporters’ (I&E) Window has been depreciating to close the Q4 quarter at
N907.11 /US$. The new foreign exchange policy coupled with the NNPC
Limited’s $3billion loan from AFREXIM Bank has helped to boost foreign
exchange liquidity and stability by closing the gap between official and

parallel markets.

On August 17, 2023, the CBN released an operational guideline for BDCs
signifying the resumption of forex sales to BDCs. It also fixed the spread
between buying & selling of forex at +/-2.5% of the weighted average of
transactions executed the previous day on the I&E Window. Amidst the

different policies of the apex bank, the bank is expected to contain the

excessive growth of money supply and ensure transparency and clear

communication on foreign exchange policy.

Nigeria’s foreign reserve at the end of December 2023 stood at $32.9billion
which indicated an 11% drop from $37.1billion held at the beginning of the
year. The downward trend in the country's external reserves was attributed to
reduced FX inflow into the economy and increased demand pressure on the

gross official reserves.

The NGX All-Share Index and Market Capitalization closed the year 2023 at
74,773.77 and N40.918 trillion respectively. At the end of 2023, Nigerian
equities traded at a PE ratio of 10.5x, a 13% and 10% discount to its peer
average and the MSCI Frontier Market index, respectively. Thus, implying
that Nigerian equities are undervalued and are expected to attract
investment flows from local and foreign portfolio investors. The NGX ASI has
sustained a positive trajectory since gaining 10.54% in Q3 2023 with a
corresponding value of the index at 67,395.74 as of 30 September 2023.

Financial Result
The Company performed extremely well in the financial year despite
significant inflationary and other macro-economic headwinds. It reported

revenue of N40.4 billion representing 11% growth over prior year. Profit

In line with our commitment to deliver strong and sustainable returns to our shareholders,
the board approved an interim dividend of 10kobo for every share of 50kobo held.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

before tax for the year was N15.2 billion an increase
of 148% when compared with N6é.1billion achieved
in 2022. Profit after tax doubled to N10.3billion
while equity attributable to owners of the parent, that
is, shareholders’ funds also appreciated by 38% to
N34.7billion.

It is worthy of note that the Company transited to the
IFRS 17 reporting standard as directed by extant
authorities. The transition required that we restate
the prior year accounts to comply with the new
financial reporting standard. The impact of IFRS 17
transition on the Company’s retained earnings and
have been reported in the

other balances

accompanying audited financial statements.

Be rest assured that the board will continue to work
with management to deploy the Company’s assets
professionally, prudently, and profitably within the

dictates of the evolving local and global economy.

Dividend
In line with our commitment to deliver strong and
sustainable returns to our shareholders, the board

approved an interim dividend of 10 kobo for every

the decent

share of 50kobo held.
performance recorded in 2023, the board hereby

Following

proposes, subject to your approval, the payment of an
additional 20kobo for every share of 50kobo held as

final dividend thus making a total dividend of 30kobo
per share in respect of the result of the 2023 financial

year, subject to appropriate withholding tax.

Board developments and corporate governance
In the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the
following Board changes were made: Mr Johnnie
Wilcox retired as a Non-Executive Director and Board
Chairman with effect from 28th February 2023. Also
retiring by rotation are Chief (Mrs) Margaret Giwa and
Mr Richard Asabia as Non-Executive Directors with
effect from 28th February 2023. We sincerely thank
them for their invaluable contributions to the growth of

the Company.

Mr Adeniyi Folade and | (lbrahim Dikko) were
appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Directors on
15th November 2022 and were confirmed by our
regulator during the year. We are both seasoned
professionals and entrepreneurs with decades of
experience in financial services. Our profiles are

available in the Corporate Governance Report.

It is worthy of note that the
Company transited to the
IFRS 17 reporting standard
as directed by extant
authorities.
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Chairman's Statement Contd

Corporate Social Responsibility

In continuing our resolve to positively impact the society, our Foundation,
Custodian Social Responsibility Foundation, engaged in a number highly
impactful projects during the year 2023. Noteworthy among the projects
executed by the Foundation during the year are the Annual Custodian
Mentors Program and ground-breaking for the state-of-the-art Custodian
Accident and Emergency Center Project in Epe. Further details on the
activities of the Foundation are reported in the Corporate Social

Responsibility and Sustainability section
Outlook

The outlook for the nation’s economy and business remains cautiously
optimistic, based on the market driven initiatives of the government,
improving global economic conditions and domestic policy measures that
would provide opportunities for revenue growth, particularly in non-oil
sectors, addressing market confidence issues and enhancing the business

environment will be crucial.

GDP is projected to grow marginally by 3.1% on the back of sustained policy
reforms which include budget and tax Reforms, recapitalization of banks and
other financial institutions, reform of the BDC segment, ways and means
halt, increased surveillance on financial institutions, encouragement of
targeted non-oil items exportation, Real Sector reforms and the efforts at
tackling insecurity, are expected to help build market confidence as well as

attract foreign investments again.
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As we build impetus for future growth, we remain steadfast in our
commitment to delivering long-term value to our stakeholders whilst
strengthening our market brand across all our business verticals of
Insurance, Funds and Pension Management, Real estate and Property
management and Trust management. | am confident in our resilience,
adaptability and capabilities to capitalise on emerging opportunities and

deliver sustainable value to you, our esteemed shareholders.

Conclusion

Though challenging and fraught with uncertainties, the year 2023 ended up
being another successful year for us as a Company. The superior
performance recorded in the year was made possible by the collective
efforts, unwavering support, and commitment of all our stakeholders. | am
grateful to our customers for their steadfast loyalty, our staff and
Management for their dedication and commitment, and our Board for
continually guiding the Company along the path of sustained growth and

prosperity.

| thank you all for your attention and look forward to your continuing support

in the years to come.

God bless you and God bless Nigeria.

Y. L]
Ibrahim Dikko

Chairman

FRC/2013/PRO/DIR/003/00000001718
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Report of The Directors
For the year ended 31 December, 2023
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Accounts
The Directors submit their report on the affairs of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (“the Company”) together with the Company’s

audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Commencement of business

The Company commenced business in 2007.

Legal form
The Company was incorporated on 16 March, 2007 as a private limited liability company called “Crusader General Insurance Limited”.
The Company’s name was changed to Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited in March 2013 following the successful scheme of merger

between Crusader Nigeria Plc and Custodian Investment Plc (formerly Custodian and Allied Plc).
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Custodian Investment Plc (formerly Custodian and Allied Plc).

Principal activities and business review

The principal activities of the Company during the year were the provision and marketing of general and special risk services and products.



Report of The Directors Contd

5. Directors and their shareholdings

The Directors of the Company and their interest in the share capital of the Company as at the year ended under review were:

Directors 2023 2022
Mr lbrahim Dikko** NIL NIL
Mr. Johnnie Wilcox* NIL NIL
Mr. Edeki Isujeh NIL NIL
Chief (Mrs.) Margaret Giwa* NIL NIL
Mr. Richard Asabia* NIL NIL
Mr. Ravi Sharma NIL NIL
Mr. Ademola Ajuwon NIL NIL
Mr. Kolawole Lamidi NIL NIL
Mr Kofo Majekodunmi NIL NIL
Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi NIL NIL
Mr. Adeniyi Falade** NIL NIL

* Retired on 28 February 2023
** Appointed on 15 Novermber 2022

The Company is a fully owned subsidiary of Custodian Investment Plc.

6 Directors’ interest in contracts
None of the Directors has notified the Company, for the purpose of Section 303 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, of any declarable

interest in contracts in which the Company was involved as at 31 December 2023.
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Report of The Directors Contd

Major shareholders

According to the Register of Members, the following Shareholder holds more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company

as at 31 December 2023:

Custodian Investment Plc 19,998,000 99.99

Record of Directors’ attendance

In accordance with Section 284(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 the record of the Directors” attendance at Directors’
Meetings during 2023 is available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

Analysis of shareholdings
The range of shareholdings as at 31 December 2023 is as follows:

Number of Holders Holders % Holders Cumulative Units Units % Units Cumulative

‘000 ‘000

1,000,000 1 50% 1 2,000 0.01 2,000
1,000,001 & ABOVE 1 50% 2 19,998,000 99 99 20,000,000
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10. Results 2023 2022
N'000 N'000
Gross premium written 42,594,486 37,982,979
Insurrance service revenue 40,377,128 36,516,475
Profit before income tax expense 15,212,733 6,137,539
Income tax expense (4,891,720) (884,612)
Profit for the year 10,321,013 5,252,927
Transfer to statutory contingency reserve - -
10,321,013 5,252,927
Retained earnings brought forward 4,596,443 4,970,380
Impact of initial application of IFRS 17 (38,478)
Issue of bonus shares (3,000,000)
Transfer of fair value reserve of equity instruments designated at FVOCI - 211,614
14,917,456 7396,443
Final dividend (2,000,000) (1,400,000)
Interim dividend - (1,400,000)
Retained earnings as at 31 December 12,917,456 4,596,443

11 Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly, in all material respects, the state of financial
affairs of the Company at the end of each financial year, and of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income for that year, in line with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the provision of Insurance
Act 2003, the relevant policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) and the Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria (Amendment) Act 2023 . In so doing, the Directors ensure that:
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12

13
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Proper accounting records are maintained

Adequate internal control procedures are established which, as far as is reasonably possible, safeguard the assets and prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities

Applicable accounting standards are followed

Suitable accounting policies are adopted and consistently applied

Judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent, and

The going-concern basis is used, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company shall continue in business.

Corporate governance
The Company maintains corporate policies and standards designed to encourage good and transparent corporate governance, avoid
potential conflicts of interest and promote ethical business practices. The business of the Company is conducted with integrity which pays

due regard to the legitimate interests of all our stakeholders.

Personnel
Employment of disabled persons

No disabled person was employed by the Company during the period under review. It is however the Company's policy to consider disabled

persons for employment if academically and mentally qualified.

Average number of persons including Directors employed by the Company during the year was:

2023 2022

Number Number

Management 10 10
Staff 97 97
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(b) Health, Safety and Welfare

The Company provides subsidies to all employees for medical care and treatment. Employees are made aware of the safety regulations in force
within the premises.

(c) Employee involvement and training
The Company is committed to keeping its employees fully informed as far as possible regarding the Company's performance and progress, and
seeking their views, wherever practicable on matters which particularly affect them as employees. Professional, technical and management

expertise are the Company's major assets. Therefore, continuous development thereof is keenly pursued by the Company in the form of regular

training for employees.

14 Auditors
Deloitte and Touche has indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors in accordance with Section 401(2) of the Companies and

Allied Matters Act, 2020 and Section 6(2) of the National Insurance Commission(NAICOM)'s 2021 Corporate Governance Guidelines for

Insurance and Reinsurance Companies in Nigeria.

Adeyinka Jafojo
FRC/2013/PRO/NBA/002/00000002403
For: Custodian Trustees Limited

LAGOS, NIGERIA

COMPANY SECRETARY
April 19, 2024
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Statement of Directors Responsibilities
In Relation To The Preparation Of The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that presents fairly, in all
material respects, the state of financial affairs of the Company at the end of the year and of its profit or loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the

Company:

a) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company and comply with the requirements of
the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020;

b)  establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities; and

c) prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, and are

consistently applied.

The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board(IASB), the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, the Insurance
Act 2003 and relevant policy guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria
(Amendment) Act 2023 .

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of
its profit and other comprehensive income. The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon

in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of

e

Edeki Isujeh
Managing Director

this statement.

T*"‘]"FE !!

Mr Ibrahim Dikko

Chairman

FRC/2020/PRO/DIR/003/00000022391
FRC/2013/PRO/DIR/003/00000001718 19 A{pril 2624 /DIR/003/
19 April 2024
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Certification Pursuant
To Section 405 Of The Companies And Allied Matters Act, 2020 For The Year Ended 31 December, 2023

We the undersigned hereby certify to the following, with regards to the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, that:
We have reviewed the audited financial statements and based on our knowledge:

the audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements

misleading, in the light of the circumstances under which such statement was made, and
ii. the audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial

condition and results of operation of the Company as of and for, the periods covered by the audited financial statements;
We:

are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating
to the Company is made known to us by other officers of the Company, particularly during the period in which the audited financial statement report is
being prepared,

ii. have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls within 90 days prior to the date of the audited financial statements, and

iii. certify that the Company’s internal controls are effective as of that date ;

We have disclosed the following to the Company’s auditors and Board audit committee:
We have disclosed the following to the Company’s auditors and Board audit committee:

i. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarise

and report financial data, and has identified for the Company’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls, and
ii. whether or not, there is any fraud that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control ; and

We have identified in our report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. whether or not, there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

TS mw

Edeki Isujeh Friday Nwachukwu

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
FRC/2020/PRO/DIR/003/00000022391 FRC/2013/PRO/ICAN/001/00000002207
19 April 2024 19 April 2023
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Corporate Governance

At Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (“the Company”), we value our shareholders and appreciate the fact that our shareholders expect the highest
standards of ethical behavior and good administration of the Company. As such, the Company has imbibed a culture of compliance to ensure that our

operations are conducted in accordance with the principles of probity, accountability, transparency, and fairness.

Regulatory compliance is central to our corporate governance framework. Consequently, the Company ensures strict compliance with the National Insurance
Commission Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “Guidelines”) as well as the Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance (“NCCG”) 2018 issued by the
National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) and the Financial Reporting Council (FRC)of Nigeria respectively. We have in place a robust Internal control
system with checks that ensure that the Company meets the legal and ethical standards required of the Board, Management, and staff in the day-to-day

activities of the Company.

We believe that the input of stakeholders improves our competitiveness and overall performance. We therefore encourage teamwork and recognize
contributions from shareholders, employees, clients, creditors, and suppliers. Our Corporate Governance framework encapsulates the effective

management and promotion of our stakeholders” engagement in achieving our objectives.

Ethical Standards

The Company is devoted to acting with utmost integrity and expects same of every employee. In achieving these standards, the Board has adopted the
National Insurance Commission Corporate Governance Guidelines and the NCCG, which set out the Corporate Governance best practice framework for
the Company and incorporates some of the laws, rules, and regulations which the Company is required to comply with. Recognizing that the Company

operates within an evolving, dynamic, and versatile economic landscape, it is also expected to comply with the:

. Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020.
. National Insurance Commission Corporate Governance Guidelines.
. Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act 2011.
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. Insurance Act 2003

. Audit Regulations, 2020

. Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance (“NCCG”)

. International best practice.

. The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Thus, the Company’s Code of Conduct and Board Charter corroborate the Company’s approach to conduct its affairs in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and to observe the highest standards of business ethics. The Company expects that the spirit as well as the letter of these standards are followed
by Directors, officers, and employees of the Company. This is transmitted to every new Director, officer and employee and was communicated to those in office

at the time the Standards of Business Conduct were adopted.

Corporate Legal Structure
The Company is a limited liability Company as defined under the Companies and Allied Matters Act [the Act]. Corporate powers reside in the Board of Directors
and the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The functions and powers of both bodies are stipulated by the Act and the Company’s Memorandum and

Articles of Association.

Annual General Meeting
Annual General Meetings are vital to the implementation of the Company’s Corporate Governance framework and are duly convened in line with the
Company’s Articles of Association and existing statutory requirements. Attendance at Annual General Meetings is open to all Shareholders or their proxies

while the principle of ‘one share, one vote” applies.

The Board
The Board of Directors of the Company act on behalf of the Company’s shareholders and is responsible for charting the course, giving direction, controlling,

and managing the strategic business plans of the Company. To this end, the Board constantly reviews and presents a balanced and comprehensive assessment
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of the Company’s performance and prospects. It is responsible for putting in place adequate measures that ensure effective risk management and control
within the Company; ensures compliance with statutory requirements and internal regulations; approval of periodic financial statements (whether audited or
unaudited) and any significant change(s) in accounting policies, principles, standards and/or practices; approval of changes relating to the Company's

capital structure, annual operating, and capital expenditure budget.

The Board ensures regular training of its members on issues pertaining to their oversight functions as well as Corporate Governance best practices. The Board
or a Committee of the Board receives and reviews Management Reports to apprise itself with activities within the Company which are critical to its operations

and sustainability.

The Board is accountable to Shareholders and ensures that the conduct of the Company’s activities is within the applicable regulatory framework. The Board
is also responsible for reviewing the Company’s performance, setting objectives, and determining strategy. In so doing, the Board safeguards the Company’s

interests and aspires to achieve a long-term increase in the Company’s values.

Delegation to Management
The Board has delegated the responsibility for day-to-day operations of the Company to Management and ensures that Management maintains a balance
between promoting long-term growth and delivering short-term objectives. In fulfilling its primary responsibility, the Board is aware of the importance of

achieving a balance between adherence to governance principles and economic performance.

Directors’ Independence
Directors are expected to contribute views and judgment at Board deliberations that are independent of Management and free of any business or other
relationship or circumstance that could materially interfere with the exercise of objective, unfettered or independent judgment, having regard to the best

interests of the Company.
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Meetings of the Board
In enhancing Board effectiveness and performance of its oversight functions and to adequately monitor Management’s performance, the Board meets at least
once every quarter. Periodic meetings of the Board are held at such times and places as determined by the Board, while special meetings are held at other times

as the Board may consider expedient.

All Directors are provided with notices, agenda, and Board documents ahead of each meeting to enable them to prepare adequately for meetings. Directors

are also provided with regular updates on developments in the regulatory and business environment.

Change in a Director’s Occupation
The Board does not believe that Directors who retire or change the position they held when they became members of the Board should necessarily leave the
Board. However, promptly following such an event, the Director must notify the Board of such event and the Board may take such event into consideration when

determining whether to re-nominate such Director.

Appointment Process, Orientation and Training of Board Members

The Company’s Board Succession Policy ensures that the Company is managed and overseen by icons who are knowledgeable, skilled in their respective fields,
capable and trustworthy individuals. In making Board appointments, the Board recognizes knowledge, experience, and skill of prospective Directors as well as
other qualities considered necessary for the role. The Board Risk Management and Governance Committee is responsible for Directors’ succession planning

and recommends new appointments to the Board.

Upon appointment to the Board, newly appointed Directors are given adequate orientation on the Company’s business, Corporate Governance and reporting
procedures and are updated on such matters on a continuing basis. Directors are briefed on policies and procedures applicable to the Board and Board
Committees as well as on the rights and responsibilities of Directors. Various reports are sent to Directors in order to keep them informed of the Company’s

undertakings.
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The Company attaches great importance to training its Directors and for this purpose, continuously offers training and education to its Directors, in order to

enhance their perfformance on the Board and the various committees to which they belong.

Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of all Non-Executive Directors are presented for re-election every year. In keeping with
this requirement, Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi and Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi will retire at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible will submit
themselves for re-election. The Board confirms that following a formal evaluation, the Directors continue to demonstrate commitment to their duties and roles

as Non-Executive Directors.

The Board is convinced that the Directors standing for re-election will continue to add value to the Company. The Board believes that they are required to

maintain the balance of skill, knowledge, and experience on the Board.
The biographical details of the Directors standing for re-election are set in the Annual Report.

Directors’ Access to Management and Independent Advisers
The Board of the Company has the authority to retain, terminate and determine the fees and terms of engagement of consultants, legal counsel and other
advisers to the Board as the Board may deem appropriate in its discretion. Directors receive operating and financial reports of the Company and have access

to Senior Management.
Board Structure and Composition

The Company’s Board comprises eight [8] Directors: two (2) Executive Directors and six (6) Non-Executive Directors who were appointed in accordance with

the criteria laid down in the Code of Corporate Governance for the Insurance Industry and the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020.
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The Board functions either as a full Board or through any of the under-listed three (3) Committees which are constituted as follows:

Audit and Compliance Committee

Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi - Chairperson
Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Mr. Ademola Ajuwon

Risk Management and Governance Committee

Mr. Ravi Sharma - Chairman
Mr. Adeniyi Falade
Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi

Finance, Investment and General-Purpose Committee

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi - Chairman
Mr. Ademola Ajuwon

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Mr. Edeki Isuieh
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A record of attendance at Board of Directors meetings held in 2023 are provided below:

Directors February, 2023 April, 2023 July, 2023 October, 2023

Mr. Ibrahim Dikko

Mr. Edeki Isujeh

Mr. Kamorudeen Lamidi

Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi
Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Mr. Ademola Ajuwon

**Mr. Johnnie Wilcox

**Chief (Mrs.) Margaret Giwa
**Mr. Richard Asabia

EENANENA N AN
ENANRNAYRNESANAN

ENRNRNRNE NENANAN

SIS SN

**Retired Feb 28, 2023
A record of the attendance at the Audit and Compliance Committee meetings held in 2023 is provided below:

Directors February 2023 April 2023 July 2023 October 2023

Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi

Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi

NANRNRN
NANEAN
NSANRNRN
NANRNRN

Mr. Ademola Ajuwon
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A record of the attendance at the Board Risk Management and Governance Committee meetings held in 2023 is provided below:

Directors

Mr. Ravi Sharma

February, 2023

April, 2023

July, 2023

October, 2023

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi

Mrs. Mimi Ade-Odiachi

Mr. Adeniyi Falade

ANANANAN

NSNS

SIS

NSNS

A record of attendance at Finance, Investment and General-Purpose Committee meetings held in 2023, is provided below:

Directors

February, 2023

April, 2023

July, 2023

October, 2023

Mr. Kofoworola Majekodunmi

Mr. Ravi Sharma

Mr. Ademola Ajuwon

Mr. Adeniyi Falade

Mr. Edeki Isujeh

SININ NS

NSNS NS

SNENANERNEN

SN NS
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**MR. JOHNNIE WILCOX- (Retired February 28 2023)

Until his retirement on February 28, 2023, Mr. Wilcox was the Chairman of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited. He began his career as a Consultant with
Golding Stewart Wrightson, London in 1986/1987. He joined Nigeria Reinsurance Corporation as the Head of Fire Department and Pools in 1987 from
where he left to establish the firm of J.F Wilcox & Associates, a firm of Management Consultants in 1991. He served as the Managing Director/CEO of United

Africa Insurance Brokers Limited from 1992 to 2011. He is currently working on several projects for the West African sub region.

MR. IBRAHIM DIKKO

Mr. Dikko is the current Chairman of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited. He graduated with an LL.M [Corporate & Commercial Law] degree from Queen
Mary & Westfield College, University of London, England after obtaining his LL.B from the University of Buckingham, England. He was called to the Nigeria Bar
in 1990.

Mr. Dikko has worked in a variety of roles in banking, information technology and telecommunications. He worked on the team responsible for setting up the
first Discount House in Nigeria and later rose to become Chairman of the Discount House from 2002 to 2012. He was a partner and director at Resourcery Plc

where he led business development.

Mr. Dikko was also a pioneer member of the team that set up EMTS Ltd. (trading as Etfisalat Nigeria) in 2007 and was Vice President for Regulatory and
Corporate Affairs until he left in 2017. He has a keen interest in the interplay between technology and regulation in the fast-changing Fintech/Regtech space.
His interests also cover Corporate Governance, and he is an independent director on the boards of CSCS Plc, Baker Hughes Company Limited and The

Society for Corporate Governance Nigeria.

MR. EDEKI FEMI ISUJEH - MANAGING DIRECTOR
Mr. Isujeh is the Managing Director/CEO of Custodian and Allied Insurance Ltd. He started his career in insurance with Security Assurance Plc in 1991 where
he worked before joining Perpetual Assurance Company Limited in 1993. While in Perpetual Assurance, he worked in all core departments in various

capacities for eight years before joining Custodian and Allied Insurance Plc [now Custodian and Allied Limited] in December 2001.
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Mr. Isujeh is a member of the Chartered Insurance Institute, London. In addition, he is an alumnus of Lagos Business School [LBS SMP 18].

**MR. RICHARD ASABIA- NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Retired February 28 2023)

Mr. Richard Asabia, an Investment Banker and Stockbroker, is a 1983 graduate of the London School of Economics [University of London] and 1989 graduate
of the University of Wales, Cardiff, UK. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law, a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and is a qualified Barrister, as well as
a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Stockbrokers.

Mr. Asabia has several decades of experience, including as Chief Executive Officer, Non- Executive Director and Independent Non- Executive Director on the
Boards of several Financial Institutions, spanning Banking, Stockbroking, Pension Funds Administration, Trusteeship and Insurance. He is currently a Director

on the Board of CrusaderSterling Pensions Limited and is the Chairman of Custodian Life Assurance Limited and Custodian Trustees Limited.

MR. RAVI SHARMA- NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Sharma has over 15 years’ experience obtained in the fields of private banking, investment banking and private equity. He joined Aureos in 2001 as a
consultant and was a key member of the local team that participated in the establishment of the Aureos West Africa Fund LLC [AWAF] in 2003, which included
opening a new office for Aureos in Nigeria and subsequently the Aureos Africa Fund LLC [AAF] in 2008. Aureos was bought by the Abraaj group in 2012.

Mr. Sharma's previous experience was gained in private and investment banking with Barclays Private Bank [London] and TAIB Bank [London] and he sits on the

board of several companies.

MR. ADEMOLA AJUWON

Mr. Ajuwon is an accomplished executive with domestic and international experience in Financial Control, ERP Systems Integration, Project Management,
Capital Sourcing, Treasury Management and Investment Appraisal. A 1984 graduate of Accounting from the University of Benin and winner of the prestigious
CJ Buck’s prize for excellent score in Management Accounting at the final examination of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria [May, 1986],
Ademola started his career with the firm of Akintola Williams & Co and qualified as a chartered accountant with Arthur Andersen & Co. [now KPMG
Professional Services] before working, at various times, as Head, Money Markets / Discountable Instruments Unit at Ecobank Nigeria PLC and pioneer Treasury
Manager at Zenith International Bank PLC.
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Mr. Ajuwon has provided leading-edge consulting services on financial applications analysis and value-added technology deployment to world class
organizations including the City of Atlanta, Yale University, the George Washington University, City of Detroit, AT&T, Dell Corporation, Lexmark Corporation,

Severstal Steel and the American Red Cross.

A fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Ademola is certified as a

financial applications consultant by both Oracle Corporation and SAGE Corporation.

**CHIEF [MRS.] MARGARET GIWA (Retired February 28 2023)
Chief (Mrs.) Giwa is a seasoned professional, who brings in a wealth of experience of over three decades in Business Management and Real Estate. She holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Education and a Master’s in International Law & Diplomacy. She is a member of the Institute of Directors (IOD) and sits on

the Board of other companies.

MRS. MIMI ADE-ODIACHI
Mrs. Mimi is a seasoned professional and entrepreneur with over three decades experience in Non-Bank Financial Services (Insurance), Hospitality

Management and Landscape Architect. She is a chartered insurer with a bachelor’s degree in insurance from the university of Lagos.

Mrs. Ade-Odiachi serves as an Executive Director on the Board of Whispering Palms Hotel & Resorts. She is also the founder and Chief Executive Officer of

Omar Gardens Floral Company. She currently serves as the Chairman of Custodian Social Responsibility Foundation.

MR. KOFOWOROLA MAJEKODUNMI

Mr. Majekodunmi is a Legal Practitioner and an accomplished Investment/Corporate Banker and Capital Market Expert who brings to the Board over three
decades’ experience in deal origination and structuring and vastly experienced in treasury, corporate banking, corporate finance and syndication, operations
and information technology as well as privatization advisory structures having been involved in a couple of landmark transactions in the financial services

sector of the Nigerian Economy.
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Mr. Majekodunmi is an alumnus of the Lagos Business School, Nigerian Law school, London school of Economics and Political Science and Cranleigh school,

Surrey England where he bagged his MBA, BL and LLB degrees respectively.

Mr. Majekodunmi is a member of the Institute of Directors (loD). He currently sits on the Boards of Leadway Pensure, St. Nicolas Hospitals, MBC Securities, and
he is the Group Managing Director of MBC Capital Limited.

MR. ADENIYI FALADE

Mr. Falade is a Chartered Accountant, Chartered Stockbroker, and an Investment Banker.

Mr. Falade had his professional training at PricewaterhouseCoopers Lagos, and Coopers & Lybrand Limited, Lagos. Before his recent appointment as Group
Executive Director of Custodian Investment Plc, he was the Managing Director of CrusaderSterling Pensions Ltd. He also served as the Managing Director of
LeadCapital Plc and Head of Investment Banking Groups at Ecobank Nigeria Plc and Lead Bank Plc at various times. He was the Head of Internal

Control/Chief Inspector and Head of Risk Management Department of Lead Bank Plc earlier in his career.

Mr. Falade holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom, and a Bachelor of Science degree (B.Sc.) from

University of Ibadan. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and an Associate of the Instituted of Chartered Stockbrokers of Nigeria.

Mr. Falade serves on the Board of many companies as a non-executive director, including Custodian Trustees Limited, Custodian Investment Plc, Interstate
Securities Limited, and UPDC Plc. He currently serves as the Chairman of UPDC FM Limited.

KAMORUDEEN LAMIDI — EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lamidi holds a bachelor’s degree in Philosophy & Political Science and a Masters Degree in Managerial Psychology (MMP) both from the University of
lbadan.
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Mr. Lamidi’s professional experience of over two decades cuts across various functions such as Technical, Marketing and Branch Operations in the insurance
industry. He has at various times worked in UNIC Insurance Plc, Trust & Guarantee Insurance Limited as well as Crusader General Insurance Limited which

merged with Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited in 2013.
Mr. Lamidi is an Associate Member of the Chartered Insurance Institute of Nigeria and an alumnus of Lagos Business School (SMP59).

Communication with Third Parties
Directors are of the opinion that it is the responsibility of Management to speak for the Company regarding communications with third parties such as

investors, the press and public in general. Directors only engage in such communications at the request of or after consultation with Management.

Performance Monitoring and Evaluation
In the Company’s customary manner of imbibing the best corporate governance practices, the Board engaged the services of an Independent Consultant,

Society for Corporate Governance Nigeria, to carry out the annual Board appraisal for the 2023 financial year.

The Board believes that the use of an independent consultant not only encourages Directors to be more honest in their evaluation of the Board performance,

but also enhances the objectivity and transparency of the evaluation process.

The annual appraisal covered all aspects of the Board’s composition, structure, responsibilities, relationships, processes, individual member’s competencies,
and respective roles in the overall perfformance of the Board, as well as the Company’s compliance status with the provisions of the NCCG and the Guidelines
issued by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria and the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM). The result also confirmed that the individual

Directors and the Board continue to operate at a high level of effectiveness and efficiency.
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Roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director
In line with internationally accepted best practices, there is separation of powers between the Chairman and the Managing Director. The roles of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are separate and distinct. The Chairman’s priority is to lead the Board and ensure its effectiveness, while the Managing Director’s

priority is the management of the Company.

Skills, Knowledge and Characteristics of the Board
The profile and qualifications of Board members are periodically reviewed to ensure that the Board possesses diverse and varying expertise in the performance

of its functions and a balanced mix of atftributes and experiences enabling members to evaluate the Company’s related and core business.

Company Secretariat and Access to Independent Professional Advice

Custodian Trustees Limited acts as Company Secretary to the Company.

The Company Secretary works closely with the Chairman to manage the flow of information between the Board, its Committees and Senior Executives of the
Company. The Company Secretary is also responsible for providing advice and support to the Board on governance related matters. The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board approval and all Directors have a right of access to information and advice, facilitated through the
Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping Directors abreast of statutory requirements relating to Corporate Governance and providing guidance when
required in relation to Directors’ roles and responsibilities. The Secretariat maintains the register and other records of the Company and generally acts as a

licison between the Board, the Shareholders, and other Stakeholders.

In addition to the assistance provided by the Company Secretary, the Board reserves the right to obtain advice and assistance from relevant independent

external professional advisers and experts at the expense of the Company and as it may consider appropriate to assist it in carrying out its duties.
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Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy

The Company is committed to promoting high ethical standards and integrity. The Company’s Anti-Bribery & Corruption policy prohibits offering of or giving
something valuable for the purpose of persuading an official or any person to misuse his office to benefit the Company or its employees. The Policy also
prohibits receiving something valuable for the purpose of influencing an official action. The Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management are

charged with the responsibility of ensuring that the Company complies with the Policy.

Remuneration Policy

Consistent with the Company’s policy, remuneration of Directors is fixed by the Risk Management and Governance Committee of the Board, which also has

the responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on all payments made to Directors.

Non-Executive Directors are remunerated in line with the Company’s policy of providing them with fixed annual fees and sitting allowances for their services

on the Board and Committees.

In accordance with the Company’s strategy of continuous development, the Company has a Clawback Policy.

Employee Involvement and Training
The Company encourages participation of employees in arriving at decisions in respect of matters affecting their well-being through various fora. Towards this

end, employees are provided opportunities to deliberate on issues affecting the Company and employees’ interests, with a view to making inputs to decisions
thereon.

In accordance with the Company’s policy of continuous development, employees of the Company are nominated to attend regular training programmes.

These are complemented by on-the-job training.
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Sustainability/ Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Policy
Consistent with the Company’s policy on Sustainability and ESG, the Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment for its

employees, promoting environmental awareness, and ensuring full compliance with all environmental legislations and regulations.

Shareholders Rights
The Board treats all the Company’s shareholders equally, regardless of the magnitude of their shareholdings and social conditions. The Company also ensures

that all Shareholders receive notices of meetings and other relevant documents/information necessary for decision making.

External Auditors
Deloitte & Touché acted as the Company’s External Auditors for the 2023 financial year. The firm ensures that its responsibilities to the Company are carried out

in an independent manner.

Internal Controls
The Company’s internal audit function provides oversight on significant compliance issues and guides strategies, policies, and practices for assessing and
managing risk across the Company. The Head of the Department is a competent professional Accountant with high integrity.

Accounting Principles, Disclosure and Reporting
The Company’s accounting practices are fundamental to the information required by its investors, customers, regulators, and other stakeholders to facilitate
objective evaluation of the Company and its prospects. The Company’s accounting records are presented in a concise and transparent manner so that the

Company's financial position at any given time is adequately disclosed.

Reporting and disclosure requirements are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS]. The Company ensures prudent financial

reporting and maximum disclosure in the Annual Reports & Accounts.
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Diversity
The Company acknowledges that a diverse workforce is of significant social and commercial value and important to being an inclusive employer. The

Company accepts the value that diversity can bring, which includes:

0 Providing greater alignment to customers’ needs.
0 Improving creativity and innovation.
0 Broadening the skills and experience of the labour pool from which the Company can draw and attract top talent to its businesses.

The Company strives to create a work environment which is inclusive to all people regardless of gender, age, race, disability, sexual orientation, cultural
background, religion, family responsibilities or any other area of potential difference. All areas of diversity are important, and the Company pays particular

attention to gender diversity.

Code of Ethics
The Company prioritises high ethical standards and expects its Board, Executives and Employees to observe such standards in all their dealings. The
Company’s Code of Ethics Policy outlines the minimum standards of conduct expected in the management of its business. All stakeholders are expected to

comply with these standards in the discharge of their duties.

Whistleblowing
The Company has a whistle blowing policy which allows for reporting of suspected breaches of the Company’s policies or other unethical practices. The policy
also provides for protection against harassment or victimization of employees who report genuine concerns, malpractice or illegal acts or omissions by

Directors and employees.
The Company’s whistle blowing policy ensures that whistle blowing would assist in uncovering significant risks in line with best practices. Under the policy, a
whistle blower who in good faith, reports suspected violations or attempted violation of the Policy or who reports a request or offer of a corrupt payment is

protected. A form for this purpose is available on the Company’s website.
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Statement of Compliance

The Company is a Limited Liability Company and is required to comply with the provisions of the NCCG and the National Insurance Commission Corporate
Governance Guidelines. The Board of Directors charged with the responsibility of ensuring compliance, has submitted that the Company complied with the
provisions of the NCCG and the Guidelines in the 2023 financial year.

The Company also complied with all the relevant laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria.

ADEYINKA JAFOJO
FRC/2013/PRO/NBA/002/00000002403

Custodian Trustees Limited

Company Secretary
Dated this 19th day of April, 2024
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Board Evaluation Report
For the Board of Custodian And Allied Insurance Limited

SOCIETY FOR CORPORATE
¢y COVERNANCE NIGERIA

Leadership And Integrity

The Society for Corporate Governance Nigeria was engaged to conduct an independent evaluation/assessment of the performance of the Board of

Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited for 2023 as part of stipulated regulatory requirement.

SCOPE

The scope of the evaluation covered the following areas:

*  Composition, commitment, and alignment of the skills/qualifications of directors to and Governance business requirement and performance
*  Composition/effectiveness of the committees

*  Compliance with existing regulatory requirement

* Effectiveness of directors in delivery of their fiduciary responsibilities

»  Effective transparency and disclosure channels
Below is a summary of our findings:

Leadership: The Board Chairman exhibits a leadership style that promotes an environment that encourages and supports the active participation and
contribution of Board members at meetings. The position of the Chairman and Managing Director are held by separate individuals which shows clear
separation of powers between both offices. The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not a member of any board committee in line with regulatory

requirements.

Board Meetings: The Board met four (4) times with an aggregate attendance of 100% in the period under review. Meetings held were constructive, aligned
to the agenda and directors gave meaningful contributions. Board packs were circulated to directors to better prepare for meetings. The Board adequately

performed its oversight and other functions on the company.
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Board Composition & Capacity: The Board comprises of a total of Eight (8) directors: One (1) Female and Seven (7) Male. The board composition is as
follows- Two (2) Executive Directors, Four (4) Non-Executive Directors and Two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board is diverse in skill and

experience.

Board Committees: The Board has three (3) committees namely: Board Audit and Compliance Committee; Finance, Investment and General- Purpose
Committee and Enterprise Risk Management and Governance Committee. These committees met regularly as required by regulators, with members in

attendance. All committees have a charter / articulate Terms of Reference. The Chairman of the Board is not a member of any Board Committee.

Board Oversight Functions: All policy documents were sighted and assessed for content and relevance and were found to be detailed, comprehensive, and

arficulate in efficiently guiding business processes and mitigating risk exposures.

Strategy & Planning: The Board takes its strategic oversight seriously, setfting strategic initiatives and direction for the Company.

Transparency and Accountability: Board ensures timely disclosures are made to provide internal and external stakeholders with relevant and reliable
information about the quality of the company’s governance practices. The Company communications are in plain language, readable, and understandable.
Dealings of the company and Board are transparent and in the best interest of the company. Stakeholders have a true picture of the Company’s financial position

as reflected on its Annual Reports and published on its official website.

Director Appointment & Development: Directors have shown commitment to regular trainings to update their knowledge and skill. Board members

participated in relevant trainings beneficial to the quality of contributions during board meeting discussions.
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Risk Management & Compliance: The Board has established an adequate Risk Management framework for managing risk exposures and
ensuring effective internal control systems. The Board has established processes and systems for assessing, monitoring, managing, and reporting
regulatory compliance. The Board ensures an annual risk assessment duly evaluating all risk exposures of the Company’s business. The risk

management function is headed by a qualified management team that periodically reports to the risk management committee of the Board.

Based on the analysis of the result, the Board of Directors have demonstrated its dedication and commitment to the growth and success of the
Company. This is demonstrated by their contributions, individual performance, attendance at Board and Committee meetings and the depth of
discussions and resolutions arrived at during these meetings. There is also an alignment between the competencies of directors and the

requirements/needs of the Company.
In line with National Insurance Commission, Corporate Governance Guidelines, and the Nigerian Codes of Corporate Governance (NCCG)., we
have found Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited to a large extent compliant in regulatory requirements and recommended best practices for the

period under review 2023.

In all, we are happy to state that the Board of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited conducted its affairs in an acceptable and satisfactory manner
in 2023.

SOCIETY FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE NIGERIA

Chioma Mordi (Mrs.)
Chief Executive Officer
FRC/2014/NIM/00000007899
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Deloitte.

Independent Auditors’ Report To The Shareholders Of Custodian Allied Insurrance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited set out on pages 62 to 337 which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of financial position of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited as at 31 December
2023, and its financial performance and statement of cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by International Accounting Standards Board , the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, the Insurance Act CAP 17 LFN 2004, circulars
and guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (Amendment) Act 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA), International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits
of financial statements in Nigeria. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and other ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nigeria.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide the basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year.
The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on the matter.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current *Reviewed IFRS 17 Transition balance sheet with the transition
fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and calculation models and assumptions for opening balances.

presentation approach for all insurance contracts. In line with the

standard, the Company has adjusted the carrying amount of the liability]  «Reviewed the product classification, IFRS17 policy and methodology
for the remaining coverage to reflect the time value of money and the papers.

effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the characteristics

of the cash flows of the group of insurance contracts at initial *Reviewed the Actuarial models and IFRS17 Subledgers for

recognition. While for other business lines, the company has elected |
completeness and accuracy.

not to discount the liability for the remaining coverage. In estimating the

claims payment pattern for liability for incurred claims, the Company _ . ,
) ) o ) * Considered the validity of management’s onerous assessment
sets assumptions regarding the future timing of the claims settlement ) o o
_ _ _ testing which is a key test performed to check that the liabilities are
and determine the best estimate for claims development or payment. ) )
adequate in the context of expected experience. Our work on the

onerous assessment test included assessing the reasonableness of the

As disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, the insurance orojected cashflows and challenging the assumptions adopted in the

contract liabilities for the Company amounted to N24.081billion. This context of company and industry norms and specific product features.

represents about 46% of the Company’s total liabilities as at 31
December 2023.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Estimating insurance contract liabilities under IFRS 17 involves high
estimation uncertainties and requires management to apply significant
judgment and assumptions over uncertain future outcomes. Provisions
for insurance contracts primarily comprise unexpired coverage
provision (liability for remaining coverage, LRC) and claims provisions
(liability for incurred clams, LIC). The Company applied the IFRS 17
Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) for measurement of groups of

insurance contracts for its businesses.

Accounting estimates in respect of provisions for insurance contracts is
an experience-based estimate involving use of historic claims data and
complex actuarial methods and models, which involve significant
assumptions on the frequency and extent of insurance events relating to
the insurance contracts. The level of complexity, the significant
judgments and assumptions applied by management in estimating
these insurance contract liabilities is of significance to our audit.

The Company has an in-house actuary who assesses, on periodic basis,

an estimate of the insurance liabilities for the various portfolio
managed by the Company.

At the end of each financial year, management employ the services of
an external actuary in the determination of its insurance liabilities after

considering the accuracy and integrity of data used in the valuation.
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*Involved our internal actuarial specialist in the review of the key
assumptions and judgements in line with general actuarial methods
and industry standards and assessment of the adequacy of the
insurance liabilities in line with the requirement of IFRS 17.

*Ensured the appropriateness of the journals posted, footed, and
agreed the figures disclosed in the financial statements to the figures
stated in the actuarial valuation after thorough review of the basis and

assumptions.

*We reviewed the methodology and processes adopted by
management for making reserves in the books of the company.

*We tested entity’s control around reserving process and

maintenance of data for valuation of insurance contract liabilities.

*We validated the data used in the valuation of the insurance contract
liabilities.

We found that the assumptions used by management were
comparable with the market, accord with best practices, the key input
data used in estimating the fair value of the insurance contracts
liabilities were reasonable in the circumstances. We consider the

disclosure of the liabilities to be adequate, relevant, and useful.
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, Risk
Management Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis, and Other National Disclosures as required by the Companies and Allied

Matters Act, 2020, which we obtained prior to the date of this report. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express an audit opinion or any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there

is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by International Accounting Standards Board, the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, the Financial Reporting
Council of Nigeria (Amendment) Act 2023 and the Insurance Act CAP 117 LFN 2004, circulars and guidance issued by the National Insurance
Commission (NAICOM), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the benefits derivable by the

public from such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Fifth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, (CAMA) 2020, and section 28(2) of the Insurance Act 117 LFN 2004,

we expressly state that:
i) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
i)  The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books.

i) The Company’s financial position and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account

and returns.

Contraventions

During the year, the Company violated paragraph 2.5.8 of the Market conduct and Business practice Guidelines for insurance Companies in Nigeria

in 2016, and the related penalty is disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.
s

.-"f

Spae

For: Deloitte & Touche

Chartered Accountants

Lagos, Nigeria

14 June, 2024

Engagement Partner: Micheal Osinloye
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000819
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies

1 Corporate information
Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (“the Company”) commenced operations in 2007. The principal objective of the Company is to render
qualitative insurance & risks management services. The company is principally engaged in General Insurance activities. It is a provider of non-
life insurance services like auto Insurance, travel Insurance, special risks and other non-life insurance services for both corporate and individual

customers.

The Company pays claims arising from insurance contract liabilities and invests policyholders’ funds in line with the provisions of Insurance Act,

CAP 117, LFN 2004 and NAICOM guidelines.

Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited (RC 685235) was incorporated on 16 March, 2007 as a private limited liability company called
“Crusader General Insurance Limited”. The Company’s name was changed to Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited in March 2013 following
the successful scheme of merger between Crusader Nigeria Plc and Custodian Investment Plc (formerly Custodian and Allied Plc).

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Custodian Investment Plc.
Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited is regulated by the National Insurance Commission of Nigeria.
2 Summary of material accounting policies
2.1 Introduction to summary of accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.2  Basis of presentation and compliance with IFRS

These Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board and IFRS Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) interpretations applicable to companies reporting under
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IFRS and in the manner required by Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, the Insurance Act of Nigeria, the Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria( Amendment) Act 2023 and Nigerian Insurance Commission(NAICOM) guidelines and circulars. Additional information required by

national regulations has been included where appropriate.

The preparation of these financial statements have been based on the historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based

on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

In accordance with IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, the Company has applied existing accounting policies for Non-life insurance contracts,

modified as appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company’s Board of Directors to exercise its judgment in applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are

significant to the financial statements are as disclosed in Note 3.

The financial statements of Custodian and Allied Insurance Limited have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors of the Company
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The principal accounting policies are set out on the next pages.
2.3  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations
In these financial statements, the Company has applied IFRS 17 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, for the first

time. With the exception of this standard, the adoption of the other new standards and interpretations and amendments has not had any material

impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.
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2.3
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The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but not yet effective.
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts for annual periods on or after 1 January 2023. The Company has restated comparative information
for 2022 applying the transitional provisions in Appendix C to IFRS 17. The nature of the changes in accounting policies can be summarised, as

follows:

Changes to classification and measurement

The adoption of IFRS 17 did not change the classification of the Company’s insurance contracts. The standard establishes specific principles for
the recognition and measurement of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held by the Company. Under IFRS 17, the Company’s
insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held are all eligible to be measured by applying the Premium Allocation Approach(PAA).

The PAA simplifies the measurement of insurance contracts in comparison with the general model in IFRS 17.
The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the ‘earned premium approach’ used by the Company under IFRS 4 in the following key areas:

The liability for remaining coverage reflects premiums received less deferred insurance acquisition cashflows and less amounts recognised in

revenue for insurance services provided

Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage includes an adjustment for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk where the

premium due date and the related period of services are more than 12 months apart
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- Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage involves an explicit evaluation of risk adjustment for non-financial risk when a group of

confracts is onerous in order to calculate a loss component(previously these may have formed part of the unexpired risk reserve provision)

- Measurement of the liability for incurred claims (previously claims outstanding and incurred-but-not reported (IBNR) claims) is determined on a
discounted probability-weighted expected value basis, and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The liability includes the

Company’s obligation to pay other incurred insurance expenses.

- Measurement of the asset for remaining coverage (reflecting reinsurance premiums paid for reinsurance held) is adjusted to include a loss-

recovery component to reflect the expected recovery of onerous contract losses where such contracts reinsure onerous direct contracts.

The Company capitalises insurance acquisition cash flows for all its non life insurance product lines. The acquisition cash flows are allocated to
groups of insurance contracts issued or expected to be issued using a systematic and rational basis. Insurance acquisition cash flows include those
that are directly attributable to a group and to future groups that are expected to arise from renewals of contracts in that group. Where such
insurance acquisition cash flows are paid (or where a liability has been recognised applying another IFRS standard) before the related group of
insurance contracts is recognised, an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is recognised. When insurance contracts are recognised, the
related portion of the asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is derecognised and subsumed into the measurement at initial recognition of the

insurance liability for remaining coverage of the related group.
The Company’s classification and measurement of insurance and reinsurance contracts is explained in Note 2.15.

Changes to presentation and disclosure
For presentation in the statement of financial position, the Company aggregates insurance and reinsurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held, respectively and presents separately:

. Portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued that are assets

. Portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued that are liabilities
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. Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets

. Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities
The portfolios referred to above are those established at initial recognition in accordance with the IFRS 17 requirements.
Portfolios of insurance contracts issued include any assets for insurance acquisition cash flows.

2.3  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations
The line item descriptions in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have changed significantly compared to last year.
Previously, the Company reported items like gross written premiums, net written premiums, changes in premium reserves, gross insurance
claims, net insurance claims. IFRS 17 requires separate presentation of insurance revenue, insurance service expenses, insurance finance
income or expenses, income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held.

The Company provides disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information about:

° Amounts recognised in its financial statements from insurance contracts

. Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements, when applying the standard
Transition On transition date, 1 January 2022, the Company:

- Has identified, recognised and measured each group of insurance contracts as if IFRS 17 had always applied

2023 CAI AR | 66



Summary of Material Accounting Policies Contd

- Has identified, recognised and measured assets for insurance acquisition cash flows as it IFRS 17 has always applied. However no recoverability
assessment was performed before the transition date. At transition date, a recoverability assessment was performed and no impairment loss was
identified

- Derecognised any existing balances that would not exist had IFRS 17 always applied

- Recognised any resulting net difference in equity

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are
more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy

disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or

presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules — Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 have been introduced in response to the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)’s BEPS

Pillar Two rules and include:

- A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar

Two model rules; and

- Disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the financial statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income

taxes arising from that legislation, particularly before its effective date.
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In periods in which Pillar Two legislation is (substantively) enacted but not yet effective, the amendment requires disclosure of known or reasonably
estimable information that helps users of financial statements understand the entity’s exposure arising from Pillar Two income taxes including both

qualitative and quantitative information about its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes at the end of the reporting period. For example:

- Qualitative information such as how an entity is affected by Pillar Two legislation and the main jurisdictions in which exposures to Pillar Two
income taxes might exist, and

- Quantitative information such as:

. An indication of the proportion of an entity’s profits that might be subject to Pillar Two income taxes and the average effective tax rate applicable to
those profits; or

. An indication of how the entity’s overall effective tax rate would have changed if Pillar Two legislation had been effective.
Once the legislation is effective, additional disclosures are required for the current tax expense related to Pillar Two income taxes. The

requirements apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not for any interim periods ending on or before 31
December 2023.

2.3  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards and interpretations
International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to IAS 12
The Company has reviewed its corporate structure in light of the introduction of Pillar Two Model Rules in the various jurisdictions in which it
operates. The Company has determined that it will not be subject to Pillar Two taxes once the legislation becomes effective since its effective tax

rate is above 15% in all the jurisdictions in which it operates. Therefore, as the related Pillar Two disclosures are not required, the amendments will

have no impact on the Company financial statements at 31 December 2023.
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Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8
In February 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board(IASB) issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it infroduces a new definition of ‘accounting
estimates’. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of

errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates

The amended standard clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an input or a change in a measurement technique are changes

in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

The previous definition of a change in accounting estimate specified that changes in accounting estimates may result from new information or new

developments. Therefore, such changes are not corrections of errors. This aspect of the definition was retained by the Board.

The amendments are intended to provide preparers of financial statements with greater clarity as to the definition of accounting estimates, particularly in
terms of the difference between accounting estimates and accounting policies. Although the amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
entities” financial statements, they should provide helpful guidance for entities in determining whether changes are to be treated as changes in estimates,
changes in policies, or errors. The amendments apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur during annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment do not have any impact on the company's financial statements

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to 1AS 12
In May 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under IAS 12, so that it no

longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments clarify that in determining the tax base of assets and liabilities, where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is a
matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognised in the
financial statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expense). This judgement is important in determining whether

any temporary differences exist on initial recognition of the asset and liability.
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2.4

2.5
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Under the amendments, the initial recognition exception does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. It only applies if the recognition of a lease asset and lease liability (or decommissioning liability and
decommissioning asset component) give rise fo taxable and deductible temporary differences that are not equal. Nevertheless, it is possible that
the resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities are not equal (e.g., if the entity is unable to benefit from the tax deductions or if different tax rates
apply to the taxable and deductible temporary differences). In such cases, which the Board expects to occur infrequently, an entity would need to

account for the difference between the deferred tax asset and liability in profit or loss.

The Company has assessed the impact of this amendments to the transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented to identify and recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences. There are no payments that settle a liability that deductible for tax purposes, and as such, the

amendment has no impact of the financial statements of the Company.

Presentation and functional currency
The financial statements are presented in Nigeria Naira (N) and are rounded to the nearest thousand (‘000) unless otherwise stated.
ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates (the “functional currency”). The Company is incorporated in Nigeria and has adopted Naira as its functional currency.
Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated

in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary item or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were
translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period which they arise.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on non-monetary is recognised on profit or loss,

any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

2.6  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less. These assets are readily convertible into known amounts of cash.
2.7  Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and

fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the

Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or

for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a

financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the

accounting policies on Revenue from non-insurance contracts with customers.
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In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is

performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The

business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Business model assessment

There are three business models available under IFRS 9:

Hold to collect Financial assets with objective to collect contractual cash flows.
Hold to Collect and sell (Financial assets held with the objective of both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets).

Other Financial Assets held with trading intent or that do not meet the criteria of either "Hold to Collect" or "Hold to Collect and sell.

The Assessment of the business model requires judgment based on the facts and circumstances as at the date of the assessment. Custodian and
Allied Insurance Limited has considered quantitative factors (e.g. expected frequency value, volume and timing of sales) and qualitative factors
such as how the performance of the business model and financial assets held within the business model are evaluated and reported to
management; the risk that affect the performance of the business, model and the financial assets held within the business model. In particular, the
way in which those risks are managed; and how management received returns on the assets (i.e. whether the returns are based on fair value of the

assets managed or on contractual cash flows collected).



Summary of Material Accounting Policies Contd

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If
cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or

newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business

objective.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI)
If a financial asset is held in either a Hold to Collect or Hold to Collect and Sell model, then an assessment is determined whether contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding at initial recognition is required to determine the

classification.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding are considered as basic lending arrangement with interest as
consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during the tenor of the agreed
arrangement. Other basic lending risks like Liquidity risk and cost of administration associated with holding the financial asset for the specified

tenor and the profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

. Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2023 CAIAR | 73



Summary of Material Accounting Policies Contd

2023 CAIAR | 74

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions

are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes debt instruments (bonds), loans to staff, fixed deposits with banks and other

receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are

recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.

During the year under consideration, the Company did not have any debt instruments designated at fair value through OCI.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on

an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. The Company

elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on

initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through

OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.
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Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,

removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
Or
. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full

without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement[] and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on

a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of

the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the

sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of

the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For debt instruments at amortised cost, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the
debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the credit rating of the debt instrument by international credit rating agencies like S&P, Moody's and Fitch
as well as local ratings by Agusto and Co. It is the Company’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. Where the credit risk of

any bond deteriorates, the Company will sell the bond and purchase bonds meeting the required investment grade.

The Company’s debt instruments at amortised cost comprise solely of quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category and the credit ratings

are tracked by the finance and investment teams via publications by International Credit Rating Agencies and trading exchange platforms.

The Company's fixed income investment portfolio consists of Investment grade and high speculative bonds and, therefore, are considered to be low credit
risk investments. It is the Company’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Company uses the ratings from the International Credit Rating

Agencies both to determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no

reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.8

2.8.1

2.8.2

2023 CAI AR | 78

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

Disclosures for significant estimates Judgements and assumptions - Note 3
Financial assets at amortised cost - Notes 1.3, 2.3 and 2.4 to the financial statements

Other receivables and prepayments - Note 4.6

Write off

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the company. The Company categorises its receivables for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where financial assets have been written off, the company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable

due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of an asset is written off (either fully or partially) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cashflows to repay the amount subject to write off. However, the financial assets that are subjected to write off could still be subject to enforcement

activities in other to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amount due.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments

issued by the Company are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
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2.8.3

2.8.4

recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company's own equity instruments.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's

own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument's maturity date. The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is
not subsequently re-measured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Financial liabilities

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortized over the lives of the convertible notes using the
effective inferest method. Once the convertible security is not convertible to fixed numbers of ordinary shares, it cannot be considered a

compound instrument.
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Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)' or ‘other financial liabilities'.

The Company does not have any financial liability that is measured at fair value through profit or loss during the period under review.

2.8.4.1 Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.8.4.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are extinguished- i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised

and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and

the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the

original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
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2.8.4.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

2.9

2.10

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Other receivables and prepayments
These principally consists of prepayments, sundry debtors and staff loans (carried at amortised cost). Prepayment is not a financial asset. Thus, it is

measured at amount initially paid less amortization to profit or loss.
Investment properties

Recognition and measurement

Investment property comprises investment in land and buildings held primarily to earn rentals or capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited independent external valuer applying a valuation

model.
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2.11

(a)
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Derecognition

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. The
amount of consideration to be included in the gain or loss arising from derecognition of investment property is determined in accordance with the

requirements for determining the transaction prices in IFRS 15.

Transfers
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting

purposes.

If a property initially classified as property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any difference
arising between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in profit or
loss. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity is transferred to retained earnings; the transfer is not

made through profit or loss.
Intangible assets

Software
The amount initially recognised for intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which it is incurred. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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(b)

(c)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs and an
appropriate portion of directly aftributable overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an

expense as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on

the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. Its estimated useful life typically varies between 3 and 5 years. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the

amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Acquired Insurance Liabilities

On acquisition of a portfolio of insurance contracts the difference between the fair value and the carrying value of the insurance liabilities
measured under the Company’s accounting policies is recognised as an intangible asset. This is amortized on a systematic basis over the
estimated life of the acquired contracts which typically varies between 1 and 10 years. The carrying value is assessed at each reporting date and

any reductions are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. The subsequent measurement of this asset is consistent with the

measurement of the related insurance liability.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
The Company fests an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount:

(@)  annually, and

(b)  whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the

company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or

cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
2.12 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are those owned and used by the Company, and are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (if any).

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any

recognised impairment. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's
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accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended

use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are available for their infended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation is calculated at the following annual rates:

Asset Description Years
Motor Vehicles 4
Furniture and Fittings

Computer and Office Equipment

o B~ o,

Plant and Machinery

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between

the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right of use (ROU) asset
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained declines in revenues or earnings and material adverse

changes in the economic environment.
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2.13
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Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those

from other assets or Companies of assets.

A Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable unit of asset that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or Company of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. To
calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market rates and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined by taking recent market transactions into accounts. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in profit or loss and are only reversed to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised. For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable

amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
Leases

Initial recognition and measurement
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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i) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). The
cost of a right-of-use asset at inception of the lease includes an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease. The Company incurs the obligation for those costs at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the underlying asset

during a particular period.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,

and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets (Real

Estate 2 to 5 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section(s) Impairment of non-financial assets, Property

plant and equipment- (Note 2.12).

The Company’s lease arrangements are majorly real estate leases which include leases of office spaces. These lease arrangements do not
contain an obligation to dismantle and remove the underlying asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to a

specified condition.
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i)

2023 CAI AR | 88

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for

terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in

the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date where the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not clearly stated in the lease contract. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in

an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of

low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.13

Leases
Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in

the period in which they are earned.

The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties. Leases for which the Company is a lessor
are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. When the Company is an intermediate
lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. if the head lease is a short-term lease that the entity, as a lessee, has accounted for

applying paragraph 6, the sublease shall be classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases. When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to

allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.
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2.14
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Rent receivables
Rent receivables are recognised at their original invoiced value except where the time value of money is material, in which case rent receivables

are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Refer to accounting policies on financial assets in this note 2.7.

Tenant deposits
Tenant deposits are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal amount is included as a component of operating lease income and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Refer

also to accounting policies on financial liabilities in note. 2.8.4.

Statutory deposit
Statutory deposit represents a deposit of 10% of the regulatory minimum share capital (N3bn) for a non-life insurance business kept with the

Central Bank of Nigeria. The cash amount held is considered to be a restricted cash balance.
Insurance and reinsurance contracts held

Insurance and reinsurance contract

The Company issues insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant insurance risk from its policyholders
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the
Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur. This assessment is made on a contract-by-contract basis at the contract issue date. In making this assessment, the

Company considers all its substantive rights and obligations, whether they arise from contract, law or regulation.

The Company determines whether a contract contains significant insurance risk by assessing if an insured event could cause the Company to pay
to the policyholder additional amounts that are significant in any single scenario with commercial substance even if the insured event is extremely

unlikely or the expected present value of the contingent cash flows is a small proportion of the expected present value of the remaining cash flows
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from the insurance contract. This assessment is made on a contract-by-contract basis at the contract issue date. In making this assessment, the company
considers all its substantive rights and obligations, whether they arise from contract, law or regulation. The company determines whether a contract
contains significant insurance risk by assessing if an insured event could cause the company to pay to the policyholder additional amounts that are
significant in any single scenario with commercial substance even if the insured event is extremely unlikely or the expected present value of the contingent

cash flows is a small proportion of the expected present value of the remaining cash flows from the insurance contract.

The Company issues general insurance to individuals and corporate businesses. The Company Insurance contracts which are classified into various
classes like Motor, Aviation, Accident, Marine, Oil and Gas, Engineering, Bond and Fire are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts. Products offered include Fire insurance, General accident, Motor insurance, Workmen compensation, Marine insurance, Aviation, Oil and
Energy, Engineering all risk, Bond, Goods-in-transit, Terrorism etc. These products offer protection of policyholder’s assets and indemnification of other
parties that have suffered damage as a result of a policyholder’s loss accident. Products sold by the Company are classified as insurance contracts when
the Company accepts significant insurance risk from a policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event

adversely affects the policyholder.
The Company does not issue any contracts with direct participating features.
Recognition, measurement and presentation of insurance contracts

Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts

Some insurance contracts may contain one or more components that would be within the scope of another IFRS if they were separate contracts. Such
components may be embedded derivatives, an investment component, or a component for services other than insurance contract services. When
separated, those components are accounted for under the relevant IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. This makes these components more comparable to
similar contracts that are issued by the Company and other entities as separate contracts and allows users of financial statements to better compare the

risks undertaken by entities in different businesses or industries.
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Therefore, the Company:

Applies IFRS 9 to determine whether there is an embedded derivative to be bifurcated (i.e., be separated) and, if there is, account for that separate
derivative.

Separates from a host insurance contract an investment component if, and only if, that investment component is distinct and apply IFRS 9 to
account for the separated component unless it is an investment contract with discretionary participation features and then.

Separates from the host insurance contract any promise to transfer to a policyholder distinct goods or services other than insurance contract
services by applying IFRS 15.

Embedded derivatives are not separated for accounting purposes if the non-derivative host is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9 i.e., the

classification criteria of IFRS 9 are applied to the financial asset as a whole, otherwise, an embedded derivative will be separated from the host
contract if and only if, all the criteria below are met:

The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host;

A separate instrument with the same terms as embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and

The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

An investment component is distinct if and only if, both of the following conditions are met;

The investment component and the insurance components are highly interrelated

a contract with equivalent terms is sold, or could be sold, separately in the same market or the same jurisdiction, either by entities that issue
insurance contracts or by other parties. An investment component and an insurance component are highly interrelated if and only if; the company

is unable to measure one component without considering the other or the policyholder is unable to benefit from one component unless the other is

also present, for example the lapse and maturity of one component causes the lapse or maturity of the other.

The Company assesses its non-life insurance products to determine whether they contain distinct components which must be accounted for under

another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. Currently, the Company’s products do not include any distinct components that require separation.
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Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under these arrangements, there is a minimum guaranteed amount
that the policyholder will always receive either in the form of profit commission, or as claims, or another contractual payment irrespective of the
insured event happening. The minimum guaranteed amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the insurance component of the

reinsurance contacts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components which are not accounted for separately.

Combining a set or series of contracts
Sometimes, the Company enters into two or more contracts at the same time with the same or related counterparties to achieve an overall
commercial effect. The Company accounts for such a set of contracts as a single insurance contract when this reflects the substance of the

contracts. When making this assessment, the Company considers whether:

. The rights and obligations are different when looked at together compared to when looked at individually,

. The Company is unable to measure one contract without considering the other

Level of aggregation

The Company identifies portfolios by aggregating insurance contracts that are subject to similar risks and managed together. In grouping
insurance contracts into portfolios, the Company considers the similarity of risks rather than the specific labelling of product lines. The Company
has determined that all contracts within each product line, as defined for management purposes, have similar risks. Therefore, when contracts are

managed together, they represent a portfolio of contracts.

The Company may acquire insurance contracts as part of a business combination or a portfolio transfer. Unlike originally issued contracts,
contracts acquired in a settlement phase transfer an insurance risk of adverse claims development. The Company considers such risk to be

different from contracts it originally issues and aggregates such contracts in separate portfolios by product line.

At initial recognition, the Company segregates contracts based on when they were issued. A cohort contains all contracts that were issued within a
12-month period. Each cohort is then further disaggregated into three groups of contracts based on the initial assessment of the contracts and the
expectations as at the date of initial recognition, with fulfilment cash flow expectations determined on a probability-weighted basis and
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management judgment of whether the contracts are onerous on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently and

remaining contracts

The Company manages insurance contracts issued by product lines within an operating segment, where each product line includes contracts that are
subject to similar risks. All insurance contracts within a product line represent a portfolio of contracts. Each portfolio is further disaggregated into groups

of contracts that are issued within a calendar year (annual cohorts).

The company determines the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The level of aggregation for the Company is determined firstly by dividing
the business written into portfolios using the current lines of business framework with consideration for the reserving segmentation and product types

within each line of business to support the definition of similar risk. These lines of business are Fire insurance, Accident, Motor, Marine insurance, Aviation,
Oil and Energy, Engineering and Bond. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into three categories: onerous contracts,
contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the remainder. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Company
identifies a contract as the smallest ‘unit’, i.e., the lowest common denominator. However, the Company makes an evaluation of whether a series of
contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and supportable information, or whether a single contract contains components
that need to be separated and treated as if they were stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for accounting purposes may differ from
what is considered as a contract for other purposes (i.e., legal or management). IFRS 17 also requires that no group for level of aggregation purposes

may contain contracts issued more than one year apart.

The Company has elected to group together those contracts that would fall into different groups only in the event where the law or regulation specifically
constrains its practical ability to set a different price or level of benefits for policyholders with different characteristics. Currently, there is no law or
regulation that constrained the Company’s practical ability to set a different price or level of benefits for policyholder with different characteristics.

The portfolios are further divided by year of issue and profitability for recognition and measurement purposes. Hence, within each year of issue, portfolios

of contracts are divided into three groups, as follows:
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. A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)
. A group of contracts that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently (if any)
. A group of the remaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)

The Company determines the appropriate level at which reasonable and supportable information is available to assess whether the contracts are
onerous at initial recognition and whether the contracts not onerous at initial recognition have a significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently. The Company applies significant judgement in determining at what level of granularity the Company has sufficient information to
conclude that all contracts within a set will be in the same group. In the absence of such information, the Company assesses each contract

individually.

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by actuarial valuation models that take into consideration existing and new business. For
contracts that are not onerous, the Company assesses, at initial recognition, that there is no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and circumstances. The Company considers facts and circumstances to

identify whether a group of contracts are onerous based on:

. Historical loss ratio

. Pricing information

. Results of similar contracts it has recognised

. Environmental factors, e.g., a change in market experience or regulations

The Company divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out above, except that the references to onerous

contracts refer to contracts on which there is a net gain on initial recognition.

Contract boundary
The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all future cash flows expected to arise within the boundary of each contract in the
group. A contract is an arrangement that binds one or both of the parties involved. If both parties are bound equally, the boundary of the contract

is generally clear. Similarly, if neither party is bound, no genuine contract exists. Thus:
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. The outer limit of the existing contract is the point at which the Company is no longer required to provide coverage and the policyholder has no
right of renewal. Beyond that outer limit, neither party is bound.
. The company is no longer bound by the existing contract at the point at which the contract confers on the company the practical ability to reassess

the risk presented by a policyholder and, as a result, the right to set a price that fully reflects that risk.

The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all the cash flows expected to result from the contracts in the group, reflecting
estimates of policyholder behaviour. Thus, to identify the future cash flows that will arise as the Company fulfils its obligations, it is necessary to
determine the contract boundary that distinguishes whether future premiums, and the resulting benefits and claims, arise from:

. Existing insurance contracts. If so, those future premiums, and the resulting benefits and claims, are included in the measurement of the group of
insurance contracts,
Or

. Future insurance contracts. If so, those future premiums, and the resulting benefits and claims, are not included in the measurement of the group
of existing insurance contracts,
As such, the company does not recognize a liability or asset relating to expected premiums or expected claims outside the boundary as such
amounts relates to future insurance contracts. However, the company recognizes an asset for acquisition cash flows paid before the related group

of insurance contracts is recognized.

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the boundary of each contract in the
group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the
reporting period in which the Company can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive obligation

to provide the policyholder with insurance contract services. A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract services ends when:
. The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully

reflects those risks

Or both of the following criteria are satisfied:
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. The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that contain the contract and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that portfolio
. The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take into account the risks that relate to periods after the

reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract is not recognised. Such amounts relate

to future insurance contracts.

The Company have set contract boundaries for its portfolio of insurance contracts based on the duration of coverage as stated in the policy

document for each class of business which is one (1) year for all classes of contracts.

Recognition
Initial recognition of insurance contracts

The Company recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

. The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts
. The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is received if there is no due date
. For a group of onerous contracts, when the group becomes onerous, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous

The Company measures a group of contracts on initial recognition as the sum of the expected fulfilment cash flows within the contract boundary

and the contractual service margin representing the unearned profit in the contracts relating to services that will be provided under the contracts

Initial recognition of reinsurance contracts held
The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held it has entered into from the earlier of the following:

. The beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held. (However, the Company delays the recognition of a group of
reinsurance contracts held that provide proportionate coverage until the date any underlying insurance contract is initially recognised, if that date

is later than the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held.
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. The date the Company recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts if the Company entered into the related reinsurance

contract held in the group of reinsurance contracts held at or before that date.

The Company adds new contracts to the group in the reporting period in which that contract meets one of the criteria set out above.

Initial recognition of reinsurance contracts held

The issue date of a contract is when the Company has a contractual obligation to accept risk. The issue date is typically before the beginning of
coverage and due date for the initial premium. However, the Company only recognizes issued insurance contracts before these dates if facts and
circumstances indicate that the contracts in the group to which the PAA applies are onerous. For instance, in the case where business has been

intentionally sold as onerous, the inception date of the contract will be the issue date.

The recognition requirements for reinsurance contracts held that provide proportionate coverage are intended to simplify recognition for
proportionate reinsurance contracts held. Circumstances in which the first underlying attaching contract is issued, shortly after the reinsurance
contracts are written, will result in similar timing of recognition for proportionate and ‘other-than-proportionate’ reinsurance contracts. In other

cases, there may be a greater difference in the timing of recognition.

If there is no contractual due date, the first payment from the policyholder is deemed to be due when it is received. The Company determines
whether any contracts form a group of onerous contracts before the earlier of the first two dates above (i.e., before the earlier of the beginning of

the coverage period and the date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due) if facts and circumstances indicate there is such a

group.

Initial recognition of insurance acquisition cash flows
Insurance acquisition cash flows are cash flows arising from the costs of selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance contracts that are
directly aftributable to the portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs. Such cash flows include cash flows that are not directly

aftributable to individual contracts or groups of insurance contracts within the portfolio.
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The company has aggregated its directly attributable expenses into the following classes including claims expenses, acquisition cost, salary and
wages of marketing of underwriting staff, Vat on commission, insurance levy, risk inspection survey expense, conveyance, motor running
expenses, stamp duty, postage and telephone, enfertainment and hotel expenses, travelling, training of technical and marketing staff and ITF
expenses. The company allocates acquisition cost to policies based on applicable rate per policy, claims expenses are allocated based on

number of claims on the policies and fixed, variable overhead cost and other maintenance cost are allocated based on apportionment basis.

The company recognises an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows paid (or insurance acquisition cash flows for which a liability has been
recognised under another IFRS standard) before the related group of insurance contracts is recognised, unless it elects to expense those
acquisition cash flows as incurred for premium allocation approach contracts. The Company recognise such an asset for each related group of
insurance contracts and allocates insurance acquisition cash flows to an existing or future group of insurance contracts using a systematic and

rational method.
The systematic and rational method of allocating insurance acquisition cash flows to groups of contracts is used to allocate;

. Insurance acquisition cash flows that are directly attributable to a group of insurance contracts:
- To that group; and
- To groups that will include insurance contracts that are expected to arise from renewals of the insurance contracts in that group
. Insurance acquisition cash flows directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts that are not directly attributable to individual contracts or

groups of contracts to groups in the portfolio.

Where insurance acquisition cash flows have been paid or incurred before the related group of insurance contracts is recognised in the statement

of financial position, a separate asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is recognised for each related group.

The asset for insurance acquisition cash flow is derecognized from the statement of financial position when the insurance acquisition cash flows

are included in the initial measurement of the related group of insurance contracts.
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Initial recognition of insurance acquisition cash flows
After any re-allocation, the Company assesses the recoverability of the asset for insurance acquisition cash flows, if facts and circumstances

indicate the asset may be impaired. When assessing the recoverability, the Company applies:
. An impairment test at the level of an existing or future group of insurance contracts and
. An additional impairment test specifically covering the insurance acquisition cashflows allocated to expected future contracts renewals

If an impairment loss is recognised, the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted and an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company recognises in profit or loss a reversal of some or all of an impairment loss previously recognised and increases the carrying amount

of the asset, to the extent that the impairment conditions no longer exist or have improved.
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Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach

The company have assessed all options and practical expedients available in IFRS 17 and is currently assessing it positions on the options below:

Alternatives

Premium Allocation

Approach (PAA)
Eligibility

IFRS 17 Options

Subject to specified criteria, the PAA can be adopted as a
simplified approach to the IFRS 17 general model

Adopted approach

Coverage period for the non life business portfolios
especially  property insurance and liability
reinsurance) are one year or less and so qualifies
automatically for PAA. Though policies under
Engineer class of business which include erection
and contractor all risk insurance may have coverage
period greater than one year. However, there is no
material difference in the measurement of the
liability for remaining coverage between PAA and

the general model, therefore, these qualify for PAA.

Insurance acquisition
cash flows for insurance

contracts issued

Where the coverage period of all contracts within a group is
not longer than one year, insurance acquisition cash flows can
either be expensed as incurred, or allocated, using a
systematic and rational method, to groups of insurance
contfracts (including future groups containing insurance
contracts that are expected to arise from renewals) and then
amortised over the coverage period of the related group. For
groups containing contracts longer than one year, insurance
acquisition cash flows must be allocated to related groups of
insurance contracts and amortised over the coverage period

of the related group.

For all business, insurance acquisition cash flows
are allocated to related groups of insurance
contracts and amortised over the coverage period of

the related group.
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Alternatives

Liability for Remaining
Coverage (LFRC), adjusted
for financial risk and time

value of money

IFRS 17 Options

Where there is no significant financing component in relation
to the LFRC, or where the time between providing each part of
the services and the related premium due date is no more than
a year, an entity is not required to make an adjustment for

accretion of interest on the LFRC.

Adopted approach

For all non life insurance contracts, no allowance is
made for accretion of interest on the LFRC as the
premiums are received within first thirty days of the

year of the coverage period.

Liability for Incurred
Claims, (LFIC) adjusted

for time value of money

Where claims are expected to be paid within a year of the date
that the claim is incurred, it is not required to adjust these

amounts for the time value of money.

For all Non-life insurance policies, the incurred
claims are expected to be paid out in less than one
year. Hence, no adjustment for time value of money
is expected to be made for the time value of money.
However for some claims in some classed especially
oil and gas policies, settlement of incurred claims
may linger for over a year and on this grounds, the

related LFIC is adjusted for the time value of money.

Insurance finance income

and expense

There is an option to disaggregate part of the movement in

LFIC resulting from changes in discount rates and present this

in OCI.

For all Non Life Insurance business, the change in
LFIC as a result of changes in discount rates are

captured within profit or loss.
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Insurance contract — Initial measurement

The premium allocation approach is an optional simplified form of measuring an eligible group of insurance contracts issued or reinsurance
contracts held. The eligibility is assessed for each group of insurance contracts and the election is made for each eligible group. However, the
ability to use the premium allocation approach for reinsurance contracts held must be assessed separately from the use of the premium allocation

approach for the related underlying insurance contracts covered by reinsurance.
The premium allocation approach compared to the general model, results in a simpler accounting method:

. The premium allocation approach does not require separate identification of the elements (i.e., the four building blocks) of the general model
until a claim is incurred. Only a total amount for a liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition is determined

. Subsequently, the liability for remaining coverage is recognised by the company over the coverage period on a pro rata basis (the basis of
passage of time) unless the expected pattern of release from risk differs significantly from the passage of time, in which case, it is recognised based
on the expected timing of incurred claims and benefits

. The company need only assess whether a group of insurance contracts is onerous if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous.

The general model effectively requires an assessment of whether a group of contracts is onerous at each reporting date after the initial recognition

of a group

. The company also has certain elections available once it applies the premium allocation approach for a group of insurance contracts. This
includes:

. The Company applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues and reinsurance contracts that it holds,
as:

. The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including insurance contract services arising from all premiums within the

contract boundary

Or
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For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenarios and reasonably expects that the measurement of the
liability for remaining coverage for the group containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that
would be produced applying the general model. In assessing materiality, the Company has also considered qualitative factors such as the nature

of the risk and types of its lines of business.

All the company’s’ product is measured using the PAA approach because the coverage period of each contract it issues is for a period of One (1)
year except for the All-risk contracts under engineering and some Marine cargo portfolio which could be issued for a period of more than one
year, for this product, the company will perform the PAA eligibility test as required by the second criteria stated above and has set materiality level

for difference in the liability for remaining coverage at plus or minus 5%.

The company interprets “reasonably expects” to means the liability for remaining coverage under the premium allocation approach (PAA) and
general measurement model (GMM) under all probable scenarios is Immaterial. Hence the company has defined probable scenario for both

economic and non-economic assumptions which includes interest rate sensitivity of +/- 1%, expected combined ratio of +/-10%, lapse at +/-
10%.

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant variability in the fulfilment cash flows that
would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining coverage during the period before a claim is incurred. Variability in the fulfilment

cash flows increases with, for example:

The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts

The length of the coverage period of the group of contracts

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for remaining coverage as:

The premiums, if any, received at initial recognition

Minus any insurance acquisition cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,

Plus, or minus any amount arising from the derecognition at that date of the asset recognised for insurance acquisition cash flows and
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. Any other asset or liability previously recognised for cash flows related to the group of contracts that the Company pays or receives before the

group of insurance contracts is recognised.

For All-risk contracts under engineering, Marine cargo contracts, the liability for remaining coverage (LFRC) is not discounted to reflect the time

value of money and the effect of financial risk as the premiums are received for one year and the liability is limited to one year coverage period.

Where claims are to be paid within a year the company would not discount the liability for incurred claims (LFIC) for the time value of money,
however where claims are settled after a year period, the company would consider the impact of the time value of money on its liability for incurred
claims (LFIC)

The company assumes that all contracts measured using the premium allocation approach (PAA) are profitable unless there has been approval
through an official process to implement commercial actions such as promotional discounts on premium rate, selling loss leaders to gain market

shares or no claims discount on renewal of policies that would results in a group of contracts being onerous.

Where facts and circumstances indicate that contracts are onerous at initial recognition, the Company performs additional analysis to determine
if a net outflow is expected from the contract. Such onerous contracts are separately grouped from other contracts and the Company recognises a
loss in profit or loss for the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the liability for the group being equal to the fulfilment cash flows. A loss

component is established by the Company for the liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group depicting the losses recognized.

In assessing the profitability of the contracts, the company has used “all reasonable and supportable information available at reporting date
without undue cost or effort”, hence the company has used the combined ratio for this assessment. The combined ratio represents the total costs
and losses divided by the earned premium and a combined ratio of below 100% indicates that the business is profitable. The company assesses
whether a group of contracts will be deemed onerous subsequently if there has been combined ratio over 100% in two (2) subsequent annual

reporting.
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Risk adjustment for non-financial risk
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and
timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts and covers insurance risk, lapse risk and expense risk. The risk adjustment reflects an amount

that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk free rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable. Risk
free rates are determined by reference to the yields of highly liquid AAA-rated sovereign securities in the currency of the life insurance contract liabilities.

The illiquidity premium is determined by reference to observable market rates, including sovereign debt, corporate debt and market swap rates.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (value at risk) approach in which a full IFRS 17 liability distribution is generated
across all non-financial risks and risk adjustment is calculated as the difference between the best estimate liability and the liability

value at the chosen confidence level.

Reinsurance contracts held - initial measurement.
The Company measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same basis as insurance contracts that it issues.
However, they are adapted to reflect the features of reinsurance contracts held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of

expenses or reduction in expenses rather than revenue.

Where the Company recognises a loss on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts or when further onerous underlying
insurance contracts are added to a group, the Company establishes a loss-recovery component of the asset for remaining coverage for a group of

reinsurance contracts held depicting the recovery of losses.

The Company calculates the loss-recovery component by multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying insurance contracts and the percentage of
claims on the underlying insurance contracts the Company expects to recover from the group of reinsurance contracts held. The Company uses a
systematic and rational method to determine the portion of losses recognised on the group to insurance contracts covered by the group of reinsurance

contracts held where some contracts in the underlying group are not covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held.
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The loss-recovery component adjusts the carrying amount of the asset for remaining coverage.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement
The Company measures the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each reporting period as the liability for

remaining coverage at the beginning of the period:

. Plus, premiums received in the period
. Minus insurance acquisition cash flows, with the exception of insurance product line for which the Company chooses to expense insurance

acquisition cash flows as they occur

. Plus, any amounts relating to the amortisation of the insurance acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense in the reporting period for the
group

. Plus, any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable

. Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the services provided in the period

. Minus any investment component paid or transferred to the liability for incurred claims

The Company estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred claims. The fulfilment cash flows
incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and
uncertainty of those future cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the Company and include an explicit adjustment for
non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company does not adjust the future cash flows for the time value of money and the effect of financial

risk for the measurement of liability for incurred claims that are expected to be paid within one year of being incurred.
Where, during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Company recognises a

loss in profit or loss for the net outflow, resulting in the carrying amount of the liability for the group being equal to the fulfilment cash flows. A loss

component is established by the Company for the liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group depicting the losses recognised.
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Subsequent measurement — Liability for incurred claims
The liability for incurred claims for a group of insurance contracts subject to the premium allocation approach (which should usually be nil on
initial recognition) is measured in the same way as the liability for incurred claims using the general model (i.e., a discounted estimate of future

cash flows with a risk adjustment for non-financial risk).

However, when applying the premium allocation method to the liability for incurred claims, the company is not required to adjust future cash flows
for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk if those cash flows (for that group of insurance contracts) are expected to be paid or
received in one year or less from the date the claims are incurred. This is a separate election from the choice not to adjust the carrying amount of

the liability for remaining coverage to reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk at initial recognition.

When the entire insurance finance income or expenses is included in profit or loss, the company discounts the incurred claims at current rates (i.e.,
the rate at the reporting date). When insurance finance income or expenses is disaggregated between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income the amount of insurance finance income or expenses included in profit or loss is determined using the discount rate at the date of the

incurred claim.

Reinsurance contracts held — subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for insurance contracts issued and has been

adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Where the Company has established a loss-recovery component, the Company subsequently reduces the loss- recovery component to zero in
line with reductions in the onerous group of underlying insurance contracts in order to reflect that the loss-recovery component shall not exceed
the portion of the carrying amount of the loss component of the onerous group of underlying insurance contracts that the Company expects to

recover from the group of reinsurance contracts held.
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Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
An insurance contract may be modified, either by agreement between the parties or as result of regulation. If the terms are modified, the Company
derecognises the original insurance contract and recognise the modified contract as a new contract, if and only if, any of the conditions listed

below are satisfied.

. If the modified terms were included at contract inception:

. The modified contract would have been excluded from the scope of IFRS 17.

. The Company would have separated different components from the host insurance contract resulting in a different insurance contract to which
IFRS 17 would have applied.

. The modified contract would have had a substantially different contract boundary

. The modified contract would have been included in a different group of contracts at initial recognition (e.g., the contracts would have been

onerous at initial recognition rather than having no significant possibility of being onerous subsequently)

. The original contract met the definition of an insurance contract with direct participation features, but the modified contract no longer meets that
definition or vice versa.

. The Company applied the premium allocation approach to the original contract, but the modifications mean that the contract no longer meets
the eligibility criteria for that approach.
In summary, any contract modification that changes the accounting model or the applicable standard for measuring the components of the
insurance contract, is likely to result in derecognition.
If a contract modification meets none of the conditions above for derecognition, the Company would treat any changes in cash flows caused by
the modification as changes in the estimates of the fulfilment cash flows.

The Company derecognises insurance contracts when:

. The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or expired)
Or
. The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model or the applicable standard for measuring a

component of the contract, substantially changes the contract boundary, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In

such cases, the Company derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract.
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When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Company recognises amounts paid or received for the modification with the contract

as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.
The Company treats the derecognition of a contract three different ways, depending on the circumstances.

Insurance contract -Derecognition resulting from extinguishment

When the Company derecognises an insurance contract because it transfers the contract to a third party, the Company:

Adjusts the fulfilment cash flows allocated to the group for the rights and obligations that have been derecognised
Adjusts the contractual service margin of the group from which the contract has been derecognised for the difference between the change in the
contractual cash flows resulting from derecognition and the premium charged by the third party (unless the decrease in fulfilment cash flows is

allocated to the loss component of the liability for remaining coverage).

If there is no contractual service margin to be adjusted, then the difference between the fulfilment cash flows derecognised and the premium

charged by the third party is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition resulting from modification

When the Company derecognises an insurance contract and recognises a new insurance contract as a result of a modification described above,
the Company:

Adjusts the fulfilment cash flows allocated to the group relating to the rights and obligations that have been derecognised, as discussed above
Adjusts the contractual service margin of the group, from which the contract has been derecognised for the difference between the change in the
contractual cash flows resulting from derecognition and the hypothetical premium the Company would have charged, had it entered into a
contract with terms equivalent to the new contract at the date of the contract modification, less any additional premium charged for the
modification (unless the decrease in fulfilment cash flows is allocated to the loss component of the liability for remaining coverage)

And

Measures the new contract recognised assuming the Company received the hypothetical premium that it would have charged, had it entered into

the modified contract at the date of the contract modification.
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Presentation
The Company has presented separately, in the statement of financial position, the carrying amount of portfolios of insurance contracts issued that
are assets, portfolios of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities, portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets and portfolios of

reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

Any assets for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance contracts are included in the carrying amount of

the related groups of insurance contracts are allocated to the carrying amount of the portfolios of insurance contracts that they relate to.

The Company disaggregates the total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income into an insurance

service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance service expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Company does not disaggregate the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and non-financial portion and

includes the entire change as part of the insurance service result.

The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held from the expenses or income from insurance contracts

issued.
Profit or loss presentation for insurance and reinsurance contract held

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the period is the amount of expected premium receipts allocated to the period. The Company allocates the expected
premium receipts to each period of insurance contract services on the basis of the passage of time (Pro rata basis). But if the expected pattern of
release of risk during the coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then the allocation is made on the basis of the expected

timing of incurred insurance service expenses.
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The Company changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts and circumstances change. The change is

accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Loss components

The Company assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. Where this is not the
case, and if at any time during the coverage period, the facts and circumstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts is onerous, the
Company establishes a loss component as the excess of the fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the
carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage period of the group of contracts the

loss component will be zero.

Loss-recovery components
Where the Company recognises a loss on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts, or when further onerous
underlying insurance contracts are added to a group, the Company establishes a loss-recovery component of the asset for remaining coverage

for a group of reinsurance contracts held depicting the expected recovery of the losses.

A loss-recovery component is subsequently reduced to zero in line with reductions in the onerous group of underlying insurance contracts in order
to reflect that the loss-recovery component shall not exceed the portion of the carrying amount of the loss component of the onerous group of

underlying insurance contracts that the Company expects to recover from the group of reinsurance contracts held.

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of insurance contracts arising from:

The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and

The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.
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Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the amounts expected to be
recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums paid. The Company treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent
on claims on the underlying contracts as part of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and excludes

investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented on the face of the statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

2.16 Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The fair

value of a non-interest-bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date is less than one year, discounting is omitted.
2.17 Other payables

2.17.1 Other payables and Provisions
Other payables are initially recognised at fair value, fair value represents transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Provisions are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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2.18 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

2.18.1 Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or loss because of items of

income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The current taxes include: Company Income Tax at 30% of taxable profit; Education Tax at 2% of assessable profit; Capital Gain Tax at 10% of
chargeable gains; and Information Technology Development Levy at 1% of accounting profit. Minimum tax may be computed based on

Company Income Tax Act(CITA).

2.18.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax is provided and accounted for using liability method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary

difference, unutilised tax loss and unutilised tax credits.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient

taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of

the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

2.18.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.
The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if, and only if:

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered
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2.19 Employee benefit costs

2.20

2.21

2.22
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Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to

the contributions.

This is done in line with the Pension Reform Act 2014, whereby the minimum rate of Pension Contribution is 18% of monthly emolument, where

8% will be contributed by employee and 10% by the employer.

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised as employee benefit expense and accrued

when the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated

reliably.

Share capital
Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental external costs that are directly attributable

to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

Statutory contingency reserve
The Company maintains Statutory contingency reserve in accordance with the provision of Section 21(2) of the Insurance Act CAP 117, LFN 2004
to cover fluctuations in securities and variations in statistical estimates at a rate equal to greater of 3% of gross premium or 20% of net profits until

the accumulated amount reaches the greater of the minimum paid-up capital or 50% of the net premium.

Dividends
Interim dividend paid to the shareholders of the Company is recognised in the period in which the interim dividend approved by the Board of

Directors or a second interim dividend approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting is paid.
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The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the

Company. A distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

2.23 Investment income
Investment income consists of dividend, interest and rental income on investment properties, realized gains and losses, and unrealized gains and

losses on fair value assets.

Interest income

Interest income comprises amount calculated using effective interest method.

The Company calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-impaired, by applying the EIR to the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective interest method. Fees and commissions that are

an infegral part of the effective yield of the financial asset or liability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the instrument.

The effective interest rate method

If expectations of fixed rate financial asset’s cash flows are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the changes to future contractual cash flows
are discounted at the original EIR with a consequential adjustment to the carrying amount. The difference to the previous carrying amount is
booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position with a

corresponding increase or decrease in inferest income.
For floating-rate financial instruments, periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of interest also alters the

effective interest rate but when instruments were initially recognised at an amount equal to the principal, re-estimating the future interest payments

does not significantly affect the carrying amount of the asset or the liability.
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2.24
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When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is therefore regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company calculates interest income by applying the
EIR to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures (and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to

calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established. Dividends are
received from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Dividend income is recognised in profit or even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of

part of the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Realized gains and losses
Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and carrying amount and are recorded in

profit or loss on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Unrealised gains and losses
Unrealized gains or losses represent the difference between the carrying value at the year end and the carrying value at the previous year end or

purchase value during the year, less the reversal of previously recognised unrealised gains and losses in respect of disposals during the year.

Other expenses

All other operating expenses are recognised directly in profit or loss when incurred.
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2.25 Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the

asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that market participant would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participant’s act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the

asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,

described as follows, based on the lowest input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
. Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
. Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid

prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the reporting date, without any adjustment for transaction costs.

For other financial instruments other than investment in equity instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
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appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist and other relevant valuation models. Their fair value is determined using a valuation model that has been tested
against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and using the Company’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions.

For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a
market-related rate for a similar instrument. The use of different pricing models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of
fair values.

The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions is their carrying value. The carrying value is the cost of the deposit and
accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates for similar instruments at the reporting date. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also

included in the cost of the investment.
3 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based

on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
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the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The Company disaggregates information to disclose major product lines
namely, marine, property, personal accident insurance and liability reinsurance issued. This disaggregation has been determined based on how the

Company is managed

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and there is no intention to curtail business operations. Capital adequacy,
profitability and liquidity ratios are continuously reviewed and appropriate action taken to ensure that there are no going concern threats to the operation

of the Company.

The Directors have made assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe that the Company will not

remain a going concern in the next 12 months ahead.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracts. When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly
similar to the Company’s previous accounting treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now
discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes an explicit risk adjustment

for non-financial risk.

Assessment of significance of insurance risk

The Company applies its judgement in assessing whether a contract transfers to the issuer significant insurance risk. A contract transfers significant
insurance risk only if an insured event could cause the Company to pay additional amounts that are significant in any single scenario and only if there is a
scenario that has commercial substance in which the issuer has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis upon an occurrence of the insured event,
regardless of whether the insured event is extremely unlikely. The assessment of whether additional amounts payable on the occurrence of an insured
event are significant and whether there is any scenario with commercial substance in which the issuer has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis

involves significant judgement and is performed at initial recognition on a contract-by-contract basis.
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basis. The type of contracts where this judgement is required are those that transfer financial and insurance risk and result in the latter being the
smaller benefit provided. The application of judgement in this area is aided by the Company's processes to filter contracts where the additional
amounts referred to above are more than 5% but less than 10% of the amounts paid if the insured event does not occur. Additional amounts that
are less than 5% are considered by the Group as insignificant. A underwriting unit working alongside with the Actuaries conducts all these
judgemental classifications under IFRS 17 to maintain consistency across the Company. This assessment is performed after separation of non-

insurance related components and all promises to transfer distinct goods and non-insurance services.

Separation of non-insurance components from insurance contracts

The Company issues some insurance contracts that have several elements in addition to the provision of the insurance coverage service, such as a
deposit component, and tracking service, and other goods or services. Some of these elements need to be separated and accounted for by
applying other Standards, while other elements remain within the insurance measurement model. In assessing whether components meet the

separation criteria and should be separated, the Company applies significant judgement

Separation of insurance components of an insurance contract

The Company issues some insurance contracts that combine protection for the policyholder against different types of insurance risks in a single
contract. IFRS 17 does not require or permit separating insurance components of an insurance contract unless the legal form of a single contract
does not reflect the substance of its contractual rights and obligations. In such cases, separate insurance elements must be recognised.
Overriding the ‘single contract’ unit of account presumption involves significant judgement and is not an accounting policy choice. When
determining whether a legal contract reflects its substance or not, the Company considers the interdependency between different risks covered,

the ability of all components to lapse independently, and the ability to price and sell the components separately

Determination of the contract boundary
The measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all the future cash flows arising within the contract boundary. In determining which
cash flows fall within a contract boundary, the Company considers its substantive rights and obligations arising from the terms of the contract,

from applicable law, regulation and customary business practices. Cash flows are considered to be outside of the contract boundary if the
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Company has the practical ability to reprice existing contracts to reflect their reassessed risks, and if the contract’s pricing for coverage up to the date of
reassessment only considers the risks until the next reassessment date. The Company applies its judgement in assessing whether it has the practical ability
to set a price that fully reflects all the risks in the contract or portfolio. The Company considers contractual, legal and regulatory restrictions when making

its assessment and applies judgement to decide whether these restrictions have commercial substance

Level of aggregation
The Company applies judgement when distinguishing between contracts that have no significant possibility of becoming onerous and other profitable

contracts

Assessment of directly attributable cash flows

The Company uses judgement in assessing whether cash flows are directly aftributable to a specific portfolio of insurance contracts. Insurance acquisition
cash flows are included in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts only if they are directly attributable to the individual contracts in a group, or
to the group itself, or the portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs. When estimating fulfilment cash flows, the Company also allocates

fixed and variable overheads fulfilment cash flows directly attributable to the fulfilment of insurance contracts.

Assessment of eligibility for PAA
For quota share home and motor reinsurance contracts with a coverage period extending beyond one year, the Company elects to apply the PAA if at the
inception of the group, the Company reasonably expects that it will provide a liability for remaining coverage that would not differ materially from the

General Model. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the PAA eligibility criteria are met at initial recognition.

Assessment of significance of modification
As explained in accounting policies on insurance contract held, the Company derecognises the original contracts and recognises the modified contract as
a new contract, if the derecognition criteria are met. The Company applies judgement to assess whether the modified terms of the contract would result in

the original contract meeting the criteria for derecognition.
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Selecting a method of allocation of coverage units:

IFRS 17 establishes a principle for determining coverage units, not a set of detailed requirements or methods. The selection of the appropriate method for
determining the amount of coverage units is not an accounting policy choice. It involves the exercise of significant judgement and development of
estimates considering individual facts and circumstances. The Company selects the appropriate method on a portfolio-by-portfolio basis. In determining
the appropriate method, the company considers the likelihood of insured events occurring to the extent that they affect expected period of coverage in the

group, different levels of service across the period and the quantity of benefits expected to be received by the policyholder
Liability for remaining coverage

Insurance acquisition cash flows
In all non-life insurance product line, the Company is eligible and chooses to recognise insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense immediately as

incurred. This is because all insurance contracts issued within that product line have a coverage period of one year or less.

Where groups are not eligible to recognise an expense immediately, insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated to related groups of insurance
contracts recognised in the statement of financial position (including those groups that will include insurance contracts expected to arise from renewals).
An asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is recognised for acquisition cash flows incurred before the related group of insurance contracts has been

recognised
The effect of electing to recognise insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense when incurred for a group of insurance contracts is to increase the

liability for remaining coverage and reduce the likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss

on incurring the expense, offset by an increase in profit released over the coverage period.
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The company uses the following key assumption for its liability for remaining coverage. Earnings pattern for LRC (Liability for Remaining coverage)
includes two (2) options under the PAA, they are
° Pro rata temporis (passage of time)

. Risk based curve

For insurance contracts which automatically qualify for PAA (i.e., with coverage period not exceeding 1 year), the passage of time or pro-rata
temporis pattern will be used. This approach is almost identical to the 365th method that is currently used for determining IFRS 4 unearned
premium reserves (UPR). However, contracts which automatically qualify for PAA does not necessarily imply that the uniform earnings curve will be
appropriate. For example, seasonality of claim incidence under certain class of policy would normally require calibration of the earnings curve.
But the default curve will be uniform unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise, i.e., there is sufficient credible data and grounds that the

incidence of risk may not be linear.

Liability for remaining coverage

Insurance acquisition cash flows

For contracts with coverage period exceeding 1-year, actuarial investigations will be conducted by deriving the claims incidence pattern using
historical claims data. Actual observed claims incidence curve is tested for goodness of fit by applying standard statistical techniques. In the
absence of credible claims data, an equivalent risk incidence curve will be sourced from our international reinsurers. If external risk curve is not
available, then by default a uniform earnings curve will apply.

The selected earnings curve will be applied to both insurance and reinsurance contract.

Claims payment pattern for liability for incurred claims

In estimating the claims payment pattern for liability for incurred claims, the company sets:
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An assumption regarding the future timing of claim settlement is required as the IFRS 17 requires the determination of probability weighted future
cash flows. Weighted future cash flows will include expected claim payment, expected cost of settling the claims, unallocated claim expenses that
are infegral to the claim cost but due to system limitations they cannot be allocated to individual claims (e.g. cost of pool of contract cars), legal
costs incurred or expected to be incurred for litigated claims, motor recoveries from third party insurers, salvage and subrogation and directly
attributable maintenance expenses. For reinsurers’ LIC, same cashflows shall apply as described above but the cashflows are apportioned
according to reinsurance arrangement.

Run off triangles are used to project future claims payment generated by direct insurance contracts and claim recovered from reinsurance
contracts. Actual claims paid and outstanding claim reserves are grouped by accident year cohorts.

Methodology used for claims reserving is defined by the Company’s Reserving Policy and Reserving Guidance, and it relies on the Basic Chain
Ladder as well as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method. Same methodology is applied to claims generated by direct contracts and claim recovered
from reinsurance contracts.

The best estimate for claims development or payment to ultimate is determined by the link ratio estimator for each period of development. This is
achieved by selecting the weighted averages or simple averages of link ratios for each period of claims development until the ultimate period
when the claims development is deemed to be fully run off. For each reserving class that best estimate claim payment pattern is derived separately
on a gross basis Insurance contracts and reinsurers’ share (claim recovered from reinsurance contracts). The process of selecting link ratios often
involves identifying outliers and excluding them. Analysis of Actual versus Expected claim reserves is carried out to assess adequacy of best
estimate payment pattern estimated in prior year/period. Where significant deviations are noted, further investigations are carried out to ascertain
whether this is indicative of a new trend in the underlying claim development process or whether this is caused by the occurrence of abnormally
large claims that tend to distort the latest link ratios or whether it was caused by certain specific events impacting the claims process that are not
expected to recur in the future (e.g. restructuring of claims department, or installing a new admin system or claim backlog). If the cause of the
deviation is driven by changes in the claims development process which is expected to be recurring or be permanent in the future (e.g. application
of new case reserving practice), then judgement is applied in choosing the link ratio for the most recent accident year cohort.

Consideration is also given on the need to allow for a tail factor for projecting claims payment beyond the available data horizon.

Claim payment pattern will be derived for each reserving class or portfolio (portfolio if there is only one reserving class).

Basically, the payment pattern provides probabilities to project the settlement of claims in future time periods
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. For a given portfolio or reserving class, same payment pattern will be applied to project the payment of OCR (outstanding claim reserve), IBNR
reserve and Risk Adjustment estimates over future time periods.

. Existing reserving models (primarily the Basic Chain Ladder) will be used to derive the payment probabilities from the link ratios obtained from
paid triangles

. Pattern will be derived once a year, that is, at the year-end valuation. It is expected that same payment pattern will be used in the LIC cashflow
modelling for interim valuation periods and roll forward.

. However, for reserving class or portfolios which exhibit significant volatility, payment pattern might be reviewed and revised more frequently and
also pattern used in LIC model will need to be updated. A change in payment pattern will lead to a change in fulfilment cashflows arising from
non-financial assumption change. This change or delta in fulfilment cashflow will be accounted for as an insurance service expense.

. Changes of payment pattern during a financial year will only be considered if justified by facts and circumstances. Examples of facts and
circumstances could be as follows:

. major changes in claim reporting and seftlement processes that would invalidate existing payment pattern (e.g. non-life claims backlog can be
quite common arising from dispute in settlement amount or change in policy administration system.

. occurrence of major external systemic events such as a pandemic related lockdown will impact the development factors- hence invalidate existing
payment pattern

. It is o be noted that, for consistency, the same payment pattern as used for claim projection will be applied in the projection of Risk Adjustment
estimates. The same approach would be used to derive the payment pattern for modelling the LIC cashflows for a portfolio of reinsurance
contracts.

. Moreover, it is required to allocate the projected OCR, IBNR and RA to issue year cohorts /underwriting year cohorts. This will necessitate the
application of an allocation driver. Projected IBNR, OCR and RA cashflows will be allocated to underwriting year by making use of weights.
Weights, as a proxy for coverage, for each underwriting year will be derived from earned premium /revenue (as computed for the LRC). For
internal reporting needs, further allocation of IBNR, OCR and RA (risk adjustment) down to more granular levels (issue year cohorts/distribution
channels/ cover-section/ client types) will be required. Earned premium weights, as described above, will also be used for a more granular
allocation of projected OCR, IBNR and RA.
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Insurance acquisition cash flows

For the company’s PAA eligible contracts, the company is eligible to recognize insurance acquisition cashflows as an expense immediately as incurred or
amortize it over the coverage period. The company will make this choice on a portfolio basis. Where the company has not recognized an expense
immediately, the company allocates insurance acquisition cash flows to related groups of insurance contracts recognised in the statement of financial
position (including those groups that will include insurance contracts expected to arise from renewals). An asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is

recognised for acquisition cash flows incurred before the related group of insurance contracts has been recognised.

The effect of electing to recognise insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense when incurred for a group of insurance contracts is to increase the
liability for remaining coverage and reduce the likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to profit or loss

on incurring the expense, offset by an increase in profit released over the coverage period.

Onerous groups
For groups of contracts that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is determined by the fulfilment cash flows. Any loss-recovery component is
determined with reference to the loss component recognised on underlying contracts and the recovery expected on such claims from reinsurance

contracts held.

Time value of money on liability for remaining coverage
For engineering contract and oil and gas contract, the Company would adjust the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage to reflect the
time value of money and the effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash flows of the group of insurance contracts

at initial recognition. While for other business lines, the company has elected not to discount the liability for remaining coverage.
Discount rates

In determining discount rates for different products, the Company uses the bottom-up approach. Applying this approach, Insurance contract liabilities are

calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk-free rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable. Risk free rates are determined by

2023 CAI AR | 128



Summary of Material Accounting Policies Contd

reference to the yields of highly liquid high grade rated sovereign securities in the currency of the insurance contract liabilities. The illiquidity premium is

determined by reference to observable market rates or as published by the Nigerian Actuarial Society (NAS).

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the
cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that

future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach at the 75th percentile. That is, the Company
has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines (as an indication of the compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as
being equivalent to the 75th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash flows. The Company has
estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to

meet the target percentiles

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,

construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).
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The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of office spaces and plant and machinery with shorter non-cancellable
period (i.e., three to five years) where this is expressly stated in the lease contract or enforceable at law per the lease contract. The Company typically
exercises ifs option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on its operation if a replacement asset is not readily
available. The renewal periods for leases of office spaces are not included as part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.

Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains all the

significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:
Estimates are made for both the expected ultimate cost of claims reported and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the reporting date. The estimate

of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than that for reported claims. The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a

range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the Chain Ladder, Stochastic reserving (Bootstrap) and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.
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The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience can be used to project future claims
development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs

per claim and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is
mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types.
Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order

to reflect their future development.

Fair value of financial instruments using valuation techniques

The Directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique. Where possible, financial instruments are marked at prices
quoted in active markets. In the current market environment, such price information is typically not available for all instruments and the company
uses valuation techniques to measure such instruments. These techniques use “market observable inputs” where available, derived from similar
assets in similar and active markets, from recent transaction prices for comparable items or from other observable market data. For positions
where observable reference data are not available for some or all parameters the company estimates the non-market observable inputs used in its

valuation models.

Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable

market prices or rates although some assumptions are not supported by observable market prices or rates.
The carrying amount of financial assets designated as at the report date is N57.1 billion (31 December 2022: N 30.5 billion).

Impairment under IFRS 9

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply to all debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost.
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The determination of impairment loss and allowance moves from the incurred credit loss model whereby credit losses are recognised when a defined loss
event occurs under IAS 39, to expected credit loss model under IFRS 9, where expected credit losses are recognised upon initial recognition of the financial
asset based on expectation of potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition. Under IFRS 9, The Company first evaluates individually whether

objective evidence of impairment exists.

Staged Approach to the Determination of Expected Credit Losses

IFRS 9 outlines a three-stage model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. These stages are as outlined below:

Stage 1: The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses. This represents the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses from default events that are expected within 12 months of the reporting date, assuming that credit risk has not increased

significantly after the initial recognition.

Stage 2: The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses (LTECL) for those financial assets that
are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. This requires the computation of ECL based on Lifetime
probabilities of default that represents the probability of a default occurring over the remaining lifetime of the financial assets. Allowance for credit losses is

higher in this stage because of an increase in credit risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considered compared to 12 months in stage 1.

Stage 3: The Company recognises a loss allowance at an amount equal to life-time expected credit losses, reflecting a probability of default (PD) of 100%
via the recoverable cash flows for the asset. For those financial assets that are credit impaired. The Company's definition of default is aligned with the
regulatory definition. The treatment of the loans and other receivables in stage 3 remains substantially the same as the treatment of impaired financial

assets under IAS 39 except for the portfolios of assets purchased or originated as credit impaired

The Company does not originate or purchase credit impaired loans or receivables.
The determination of whether a financial asset is credit impaired focuses exclusively on default risk, without taking into consideration the effect of credit risk
mitigants such as collateral or guarantees. Specifically, the financial asset is credit impaired and in stage 3 when the Company considers the obligor is

unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the company.
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The termination may include forbearance actions, where a concession has been granted to the borrower or economic or legal reasons that a qualitative

indicators of credit impairment; or contractual payments of either principal or interest by the obligor are pass due by more than 90 days.

For financial assets considered to be credit impaired, the ECL allowance covers the amount of loss the Company is expected to suffer. The estimation of
ECLs is done on a case by case basis for non-homogenous portfolios, or by applying portfolio based parameters to individual financial assets in this

portfolios by the Company’s ECL model for homogenous portfolios.

Assessment and calculation of ECL
Forecast of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered. The lifetime expected losses are estimated based on the probability —

weighted present value of the difference between:

The contractual cash flows that are due to the Company under the contract; and

The cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

Elements of ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on
a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

The development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the
effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

The level of estimation uncertainty has increased since 31 December 2019 as a result of the economic disruption and consequential impact of the

Covid-19 pandemic. This includes significant judgements relating to:
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The selection and weighting of macro-economic scenarios;

The effect of government and other support measures put in place to mitigate the negative economic impact;

The uncertainty over the duration and severity of the effect of the pandemic as well as the timing and duration of the recovery;

Determination of the impact of the macro-economic scenarios on ECL and whether the required parameters can be modelled given the
unavailability of historical information for a similar event;

Identification and assessment of significant increases in credit risk and impairment especially for counterparties who have received support under

the various government and bank support schemes and the inherent limitations in data availability to facilitate a reliable segmentation

Impact on modelled ECL allowance

The Company’s models have been constructed and calibrated using historical trends and correlations as well as forward looking economic
scenarios. The severity of the current macro-economic projections and the added complexity caused by the various support schemes and
regulatory guidance affecting different counterparties in the Company's investment and treasury operations could not be reliably modelled for the
time being. As a consequence, the existing models may generate results that are either overly conservative or overly optimistic depending on the
specific portfolio/segment. As a result, post-model adjustments are needed. Given model changes take a significant amount of time to develop
and fest and the data limitation issues noted above, the Company expects that post model adjustments which results from the use of the most

recent crises adjusted probability of default as published by Moody's for emerging markets will be applied for the foreseeable future.

Expected lifetime:
The expected life time of a financial asset is a key factor in determining the life time expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses
represents default events over the expected life of a financial asset. The company measures expected credit losses considering the risk of default

over the maximum contractual period (including any borrower’s extension option) over which it is exposed to credit risk.

Re-assessment of useful lives and residual values
The Company carries its property, plant and equipment at cost in the statement of financial position. The annual review of the useful lives and

residual value of property, plant and equipment result in the use of significant management judgements.
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Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary fo obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the

Company’s stand-alone credit rating).
4 Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are

disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or

non-current. The amendments clarify:

. What is meant by a right to defer settlement

. That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

. That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification
. That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

The Board decided that if an entity’s right to defer seftlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a

right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date. The amendments also
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clarify that the requirement for the right to exist at the end of the reporting period applies regardless of whether the lender tests for compliance at that date

or at a later date.

The amendments also clarify that the requirement for the right to exist at the end of the reporting period applies regardless of whether the lender tests for
compliance at that date or at a later date. In cases where a conversion option is classified as a liability or part of a liability, the transfer of equity
instruments would constitute settlement of the liability for the purpose of classifying it as current or non-current. Only if the conversion option itself is
classified as an equity instrument would  settlement by way of own equity instruments be disregarded when determining whether the liability is current or

noncurrent.

Unchanged from the current standard, a rollover of a borrowing is considered the extension of an existing liability and is therefore not considered to

represent ‘settlement’.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and must be applied retrospectively. The Company is

currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements(if any) may require renegotiation.

Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
In May 2023, the Board issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The amendments specify
disclosure requirements to enhance the current requirements, which are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects of

supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
The amendments clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements. In these arrangements, one or more finance providers pay amounts an

entity owes to its suppliers. The entity agrees fo settle those amounts with the finance providers according to the terms and conditions of the arrangements,

either at the same date or at a later date than that on which the finance providers pay the entity’s suppliers.
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Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7- contd

The amendments require an entity to provide information about the impact of supplier finance arrangements on liabilities and cash flows, including terms
and conditions of those arrangements, quantitative information on liabilities related to those arrangements as at the beginning and end of the reporting
period and the type and effect of non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of those arrangements. The information on those arrangements is required to
be aggregated unless the individual arrangements have dissimilar or unique terms and conditions. In the context of quantitative liquidity risk disclosures

required by IFRS 7, supplier finance arrangements are included as an example of other factors that might be relevant to disclose.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Early adoption is permitted, but will need to be
disclosed. The amendments provide some transition reliefs regarding comparative and quantitative information as at the beginning of the annual

reporting period and interim disclosures.

The amendment have no impact of the company's financial statements due to the fact that the Company does not have any supplier finance arrangement

as at the end of the year and does not foresee entering into any of such arrangements in the future.

Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to 1AS 21
In August 2023, the Board issued Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21). The amendment to IAS 21 specifies how an entity should assess

whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking.

A currency is considered to be exchangeable into another currency when an entity is able to obtain the other currency within a time frame that allows for a
normal administrative delay and through a market or exchange mechanism in which an exchange transaction would create enforceable rights and

obligations.

If a currency is not exchangeable into another currency, an entity is required to estimate the spot exchange rate at the measurement date. An entity’s
objective in estimating the spot exchange rate is to reflect the rate at which an orderly exchange transaction would take place at the measurement date
between market participants under prevailing economic conditions. The amendments note that an entity can use an observable exchange rate without
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When an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not exchangeable into another currency, it discloses information that enables users of
its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Early adoption is permitted, but will need to be
disclosed. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information. The amendment will not have any impact on the

Company's financial statements as the reporting and functional currency( The Nigerian Naira) is adequately exchangeable for another currency.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the effective date of the amendments until such time as it has finalised any amendments that result from its

research project on the equity method. Early application of the amendments is still permitted.

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures in

dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture.

The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves a business as defined in IFRS 3
Business combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to

the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture
The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity in practice and give preparers a consistent set of principles to apply for such transactions. However,

the application of the definition of a business is judgemental and entities need to consider the definition carefully in such transactions. The amendments

must be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted and must be disclosed.
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The amendments are not expected to have significant impact on the financial statements of the company as the company is not a party to any associate or
joint venture in the scope of IFRS 10 and IAS 28.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16
In September 2022, the Board issued Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16). The amendment to IFRS 16 specifies the
requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not

recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains

After the commencement date in a sale and leaseback transaction, the seller-lessee applies paragraphs 29 to 35 of IFRS 16 to the right-of-use asset
arising from the leaseback and paragraphs 36 to 46 of IFRS 16 to the lease liability arising from the leaseback. In applying paragraphs 36 to 46, the
seller lessee determines ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ in such a way that the seller-lessee would not recognise any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. Applying these requirements does not prevent the seller-lessee from recognising, in profit

or loss, any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease, as required by paragraph 46(a) of IFRS 16.

The amendment does not prescribe specific measurement requirements for lease liabilities arising from a leaseback. The initial measurement of the lease
liability arising from a leaseback may result in a seller-lessee determining ‘lease payments’ that are different from the general definition of lease payments
in Appendix A of IFRS 16. The seller-lessee will need to develop and apply an accounting policy that results in information that is relevant and reliable in

accordance with 1AS 8.

The amendments are not expected to have significant impact on the financial statements of the company as the company is not a seller lessee on any of its
lease agreements. Where it becomes a seller lessee in any lease agreement in annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, the

amendments will be applied.
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IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
In April 2024, the IASB released IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) which includes presentation and disclosure
requirements for all entities applying IFRS Accounting Standards. When effective, IFRS 18 supersedes IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

Entities will continue to apply IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, although there are certain limited amendments to IAS 7 as a result of IFRS 18.

The standard will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements but will impact how companies present and

disclose financial performance. Key new requirements of IFRS 18 are:

The structure of the statement of profit or loss

Entities will be required to classify income and expenses in the following categories:

Operating
Investing
Financing

Income taxes and discontinued operations

Aggregation and disaggregation of information
Enhanced principles on the aggregation and disaggregation of information have been included in IFRS 18. Supporting application guidance will

assist in determining whether information about transactions should be included in the primary financial statements or notes.

Disclosure requirement related to management defined performance measures

Most entities report alternative performance measures. IFRS 18 defines management-defined performance measures (MPMs). Entities are
required to present MPMs in a single note to the financial statements and disclose reconciliations between the MPMs and totals or subtotals
required by IFRS 18 or other IFRS Accounting Standards.
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The requirements will be applied retrospectively. The standard is applicable for period beginning on or after 1 January 2027. Earlier application is

permitted.

5 Transition disclosure
The Company used the full retrospective transition approach based on the fact that the historical data  per the IFRS 17 defined groups was
available. The full retrospective approach has been applied for all General business insurance contracts inforce as at 1 January 2021 onwards on
the grounds that these insurance contract are within a short contract boundary measured under the PAA approach. Given the availability of
information, including assumptions, methodologies and the availability of risk adjustment data, management’s view was that it was practicable to
perform the full retrospective calculations. A fully retrospective application of IFRS 17 prior to the transition date (for the group), is required, unless

it is impracticable to do so.

The Actual Premium, Benefits and Claims data of insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts held for the entire portfolios used for the 2021
and 2022 year ends were obtained from the Core Reporting database and prepared for the 2021 and 2022 financial year-end Actuarial
valuation reporting. The Liability for Incurred Claims as of 31 December 2021 was used to show effects of incurred claims movements over the
2022 period. Cashflows were calculated using Best Estimate Assumptions. Discounting is required for the liability for incurred claims (LIC) cash-
flows given that a good amount of these cash-flows may take more than one year from when the claims were incurred to be seftled. IFRS 17
specifies a bottom-up approach (i.e. risk-free discount rate plus illiquidity premium that reflect liquidity characteristics of the liabilities) or top-
down approach (i.e. reference portfolio and adjust for characteristics that are irrelevant for insurance contracts) in determining discount rates. The
company has opted to go for the former for short-term business contracts. The cashflows on short-term business contracts do not vary based on
the returns on underlying items. The liquid risk-free rates are determined from the yield curve of the of Nigerian government bond as published

by the Nigerian Actuarial Society which are based on the Financial Market Dealer Quotes(FMDQ) 's spot rates

The Premium Allocation Approach(PAA) does not require the calculation of the Contractual Service Margin (CSM) which represents unearned
profits under the GMM and VFA measurement methods. The liability for remaining coverage is instead based on the earning pattern of the
premium received. The insurer is not required to create a view of all future cash flows, instead the initial insurance liability on initial recognition is

simply estimated as the premium payable for the insurance cover to be provided. This liability can be reduced by acquisition costs paid whose
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recognition will also be in line with the recognition of the premiums as they are earned. Under PAA, Liability for Remaining Coverage is the Unearned
Premium Reserve, which is Premium income less acquisition costs and prorated for the unexpired coverage period. The liability for Incurred Claims
introduces a discounting element, the effect of which would be significant for Non-Life businesses where claims payments could span an extended period.
The liability for incurred claims comprises the discounted present value of future incurred claims which forms the Best Estimate Liability (BEL) and the Risk

Adjustment (RA) for incurred claims.

The BEL for incurred claims was estimated by first estimating the Outstanding and the Incurred but Not Reported claims reserves. In estimating the IBNR,
historical claims were triangulated on an underwriting year basis as opposed to a loss/accident year basis. Future expected claims were therefore
estimated based on underwriting year cohorts, with historical claims aggregated by underwriting year. Future expected ultimate claims were projected
based on one or a combination of methodologies such as Basic Chain Ladder, Bornhuetter- Ferguson (BF) method, Expected Loss Ratio/Frequency and

severity approach (for large losses) to determine the IBNR claims relating fo retrospective periods

The company used the top down approach in determining discount rates. The Company opted to go for the former for short-term business contracts. The
cashflows on short-term business contracts do not vary based on the returns on underlying items. The liquid risk-free rates are determined from the
Nigerian Actuarial Society's yield-curve of Nigerian government bond. Insurance contract liabilities cannot be liquidated. However an illiquidity premium

was not considered as the incurred claims are largely settled within 4 to 5 years(Max 7years).

Risk Adjustment(RA) values were determined using the Value at Risk(VaR) method. The Value at Risk (VaR) or confidence level approach models the cash
flows such that the resulting provision is at a particular percentile on the distribution. This is similar to how the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) is
determined (in principle) under the Solvency Il regime, where the SCR is calculated at the 99.5th percentile of the distribution. The company estimated the

RA using a stochastic approach( mark method) at the 75% percentile.
Reinsurance contracts were valued independently of their underlying insurance contracts as required under the IFRS 17 standard. All reinsurance

contracts with contract boundaries not exceeding one year are automatically considered to meet PAA eligibility. Contracts with coverage period above

one year which are not immediately eligible for the PAA, will be subjected to a PAA eligibility by assessing the expected LRC cashflows under both the PAA
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and GMM approaches. Measurement of LRC for reinsurance under the PAA approach is similar to insurance contracts. The premium and claim
liabilities were valued per underwriting year as required. UPR and DAC calculations are similar to the corresponding calculations under IFRS 4.
The Non-Life Valuation data as ot 2021and 2022 yearends were the exact same data used for the IFRS 4 valuations for these periods, for the

entire portfolio.

Transition Accounting — changes to presentation and disclosure
For presentation in the statement of financial position, the Company aggregates groups of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts

held and presents separately:

° Groups of insurance that are assets

. Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are assets

. Groups of insurance contracts that are liabilities

. Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities

The line-item descriptions in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been changed significantly compared with last
year. Previously the Company reported the following line items: premium income, policyholder claims and benefits, and change in insurance

contract liabilities. IFRS 17 requires separate presentation of:

J Insurance revenue
J Insurance service expense
J Insurance finance income or expense

The Company provides further disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information in the following notes to the financial statements about:

. The amounts recognised in its financial statements from insurance contracts - Note 10

. Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements, made when applying the standard - Note 3

2023 CAI AR | 143



5

Transition disclosure - continued

The restated statement of financial position for 31December 2022 and 1 January 2022 are as follows:

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets

Trade receivables

Reinsurance assets (IFRS 4)
Insurance contract asset (IFRS 17)
Reinsurance contract asset(IFRS 17)
Deferred acquisition costs

Other receivables and prepayments
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Statutory deposits

Total assets

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities(IFRS 4)
Reinsurance liabilities (IFRS 17)
Insurance contract liabilities(IFRS 17)

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Deferred commission income
Deferred rental income
Current income tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
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IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
31-Dec-22 Recha:felt;gafrl]%?oﬁ re-measulfeerme]nz 31-Dec-22
N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
8,793,947 8,793,947
30,489,808 30,489,808
365,397 365,397
8,764,226 (8,764,226)
- 7,763,033 174,755 7,937,788
876,794 (876,794) -
398,317 595,273 993,590
3,676,770 3,676,770
232,664 232,664
1,044 1,044
946 946
300,000 - 300,000
53,899,913 (1,282,714) 174,755 52,791,954
14,978,873 (14,978,873)

- 14,102,079 196,858 14,298,937
9,734,610 9,734,610
1,576,551 1,576,551

405,920 (405,920) ;
33,250 33,250
1,361,495 1,361,495
672,831 - 672,831
28,763,530 (1,282,714) 196,858 27,677,674
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Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2021

‘ IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
31-Dec-21 Rec!:luesrséfclggflll?t?oﬁ re-measull!:eRnswe]n71 1-Jan-22
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
8,808,248 8,808,248
23,947,860 23,947,860
109,967 - 109,967
7,826,349 (7,826,349.00)
- 7,058,184 177,833 7,236,017
673,104 (673,104) :
297,262 475,460.00 772,722
3,676,770 3,676,770
303,954 303,954
7,221 7,221
3,427 3,427
300,000 - - 300,000
45,954,162 (965,809) 177,833 45,166,186
13,160,983 (13,160,983)
- 12,487,879 216,311 12,704,190
6,951,553 6,951,553
1,493,142 - 1,493,142
292,705 (292,705) -
33,250 33,250
836,792 836,792
753,816 - - 753,816
23,522,241 (965,809) 216,311 22,772,743
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

The restated statement of financial position for 31December 2022 and 1 January 2022 are as follows:

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Statutory contingency reserve
Retained earnings

Fair value reserve

Total equity attributable to Owners

Total liabilities and equity
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IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17
31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
10,000,000 10,000,000
84,607 84,607
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
4,618,546 (22,103) 4,596,443
433,230 - 433,230
25,136,383 - (22,103) 25,114,280
53,899,913 (1,282,714) 174,755 52,791,954
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5

Transition disclosure - continued

The restated statement of financial position for 31December 2022 and 1 January 2022 are as follows:

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

‘ IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17
31-Dec-21 derecognition re-measurement 1-Jan-22
N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
7,000,000 7,000,000
84,607 84,607
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
4,970,380 (38,478) 4,931,902
376,934 - 376,934
22,431,921 - (38,478) 22,393,443
45,954,162 (965,809) 177,833 45,166,186
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5  Transition disclosure - continued

Reconciliation of IFRS 4 to IFRS 17 (statement of Financial Position) - Explanatory Notes surporting restated figures

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

a Reinsuranceassets (RA)

Reinsurancecontract assets- Opening balance
Remeasuremrent

Closing balance

b Deferred acquisition cost (DAC)
Deferred acquisition cost (DAC) - Opening balance
Remeasuremrent

Closing balance

¢ Insurance Contract Liabilities - ICL (IFRS 4)
Insurance Contract Liabilities - Opening balance
Remeasuremrent

Closing balance

d Deferred Commission Income (DCI)
Deferred Commission Income - Opening balance
Remeasuremrent

Closing balance
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(e &)

(9)

IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification &

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22

N'000 N'000 N'000
8,764,226 (8,764,226)
8,764,226 (8,764,226)
876,794 (876,794)
876,794 (876,794)
14,978,873 (14,978,873)
14,978,873 (14,978,873)
405,920 (405,920)
405,920 (405,920)
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Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2021

IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17

31-Dec-21 derecognition re-measurement 1-Jan-22

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
7,826,349 (7,826,349)
7,826,349 (7,826,349)
673,104 (673,104)
673,104 (673,104)
13,160,983 (13,160,983)
13,160,983 (13,160,983)
292,705 (292,705)
292,705 (292,705)
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

Reconciliation of IFRS 4 to IFRS 17 (statement of Financial Position) - Explanatory Notes surporting restated figures

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
e Reinsurnance Contract assets Note N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
Opening Balnace IFRS 4 - - - -
ARC reclassifictaion from RA UPR under IFRS 4 (a) - 5,765,322 15,943 5,781,265
Deferred commission income reclassified (DCI) (d) - (405,920) - (405,920)
Assets for Remaining Coverage (ARC) - 5,359,402 - 5,375,345
AIC reclassified from RA claim recovery under IFRS 4 (a) - 2,403,631 1,873 2,405,504
AIC - impact of claims discounting - - (358,824) (358,824)
AIC- risk adjustment for total incurred claims - - 515,763 515,763
Asset for Insurred Claims (AIC) - 2,403,631 158,812 2,562,443
Closing Balnace - IFRS 17 - 7,763,033 158,812 7,937,788

f  Other receivables and prepayments
Other receivables and prepayments - Opening balance () 398,317 595,273 - 993,590
Remeasurement - - - -
Closing balance 398,317 595,273 - 993,590
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Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2021

‘ IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17

31-Dec-21 derecognition re-measurement 1-Jan-22

N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000

4,914,142 6,577 4,920,719

(292,705) : (292,705)

4,621,437 6,577 4,628,014

2,436,747 (28,920) 2,407,827

(324,758) (324,758)

- 524,933 524,933

2,436,747 171,255 2,608,002

- 7,058,184 177,832 7,236,016

297,262 475,460 772,722

297,262 475,460 772,722
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5  Transition disclosure - continued

Reconciliation of IFRS 4 to IFRS 17 (statement of Financial Position) - Explanatory Notes surporting restated figures

Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2022

‘ IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
31-Dec-22 Recha::ét!ggirl]?t?o& re-measull!:eRrrSIJnZ 31-Dec-22
g Insurance contract liability IFRS 17 Note N000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening balnace (IFRS 4) - - - -
LRC reclassification from ICL under IFRS 4 (¢ - 9,132,047 18,609 9,150,656
Deferred acquisition cost - reclassification to LRC - (876,794) (13) (876,807)
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage (LRC) - 8,255,253 18,596 8,273,849
Opening balnace (IFRS 4) - - - -
LIC reclassified from ICL under IFRS 4 (¢ - 5,846,826 67,125 5,913,951
LIC - Impact of claims discounting - (781,849) (781,849)
LIC -risk adjustment recognised - 892,986 892,986
5,846,826 178,262 6,025,088
Closing Balnace - IFRS 17 - 14,102,079 196,858 14,298,937
f Retained earnings
Opening balance (IFRS 17) 4,970,380 - (38,478) 4,931,902
Profit for the year 5,236,552 - - 5,236,552
Dividends distributions made and proposed (2,800,000) - - (2,800,000)
Transfer to contingency reserves - - - -
Issue of bonus shares (3,000,000) - - (3,000,000)
Transfer from fair values reserve 211,614 - - 211,614
IFRS 17 impact- reinsurance contract assets (a) (3,078) (3,078)
IFRS 17 impact- insurance contract liabilities (9) - - 19,453 19,453
Closing balance - IFRS 17 4,618,546 - (22,103) 4,596,443
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Transition adjustment as at 31 December 2021

‘ IFRS 4 Transition adjustment IFRS 17 |
Reclassification & IFRS 17

31-Dec-21 derecognition re-measurement 1-Jan-22

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

7,678,986 5,167 7,684,153

(673,104) : (673,104)

7,005,882 5,167 7,011,049

1

5,481,997 62,329 5,544,326

(382,819) (382,819)

- 531,635 531,635

5,481,997 211,145 5,693,142

- 12,487,879 216,312 12,704,191

3,793,640 3,793,640

4,442,005 4,442,005

(2,660,000) (2,660,000

(605,265) (605,265)

177,833 177,833

- (216,311) (216,311)

4,970,380 - (38,478) 4,931,902
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

Reconcilitaion of statement of comprehensive income of the period ended 31 December 2022

Note
Insurance revenue G(A)
Gross premium income AG)
Premiums ceded to reinsurers B(l)
Net premium income
Insurance service expenses H(D,F)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts l,(B,C,E)
Fees and commission income C(l)
Net underwriting income
Claims expenses:
Gross benefits and claims expenses D(H)
Claims expenses ceded fo reinsurers E(l)
Underwriting expenses F(H)

Underwriting profit/ Insurance servcie result

Interest income

Other investment and sundry income
Net realised gain/(loss)

Fair value gain

Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Impairment loss charge

Net Investment income
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Reclassification &

31 December 2022

Balance as at Balance as at

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
36,529,918 (13,443) 36,516,475
36,529,918 (36,529,918)
(25,499,140) 25,499,140

11,030,778 - -

(10,962,576) (87,213) (11,049,789)
(21,899,667) 58,968 (21,840,699)
1,681,774 (1,681,774) - -

12,712,552 (9,044,877) (41,688) 3,625,987

(6,448,295) 6,448,295
1,917,699 (1,917,699)

(3,366,227) 3,366,227 - -
4,815,729 (1,148,054) (41,688) 3,625,987
2,984,910 2,984,910
326,644 326,644
31,454 31,454
5,955 5,955
2,433,292 2,433,292
(495,121) (495,121)

5,287,134 - - 5,287,134
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

31 December 2022

Balan t P Balan t
alance as ar - paclassification & alance as a

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
Note N'000 N'000 N000 N000
Finance (expense)/income from insurance contract issued J - - 120,108 120,108
Finance (expense)/income from reinsurance contract held K - - (62,046) (62,046)
Net insurance financial result - - 58,063 58,063
Other operating income 141,508 - 141,508
Management expenses L(H,M) (4,123,207) 4,123,207 - -
Other operating expenses M - (2,975,153) - (2,975,153)
834,030 - 16,375 6,137,539
Profit before income tax expense 6,121,164 - 16,375 6,137,539
Income tax expense (884,612) - - (884,612)
Profit for the year 5,236,552 - 16,375 5,252,927
Other Comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods( net of tax):
Net gain on equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income 267,910 - - 267,910
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 267,910 - - 267,910
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5,504,462 - 16,375 5,520,837
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

Reconcilitaion of statement of comprehensive income of the period ended 31 December 2022

31 December 2022

Balan 1 P Balan t
alance as at - po lassification & alance as a

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
. Note N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000
A Gross premium income
Gross premium income as per IFRS 4 (A) 36,529,918 (36,529,918)
Remeasurement - -
Closing balance IFRS 17 36,529,918 (36,529,918)
B Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Reinsurance expenses as per IFRS 4 (B) 25,499,140 (25,499,140)
Remeasurement B, ;
Closing balance IFRS 17 25,499,140 (25,499,140)
C Fees and commission received
Fees and commission received as per IFRS 4 (1) 1,681,774 (1,681,774)
Remeasurement - -
Closing balance IFRS 17 1,681,774 (1,681,774)
D Gross benefit and claims expenses
Gross claims insurred as per IFRS 4 (H) 6,448,295 (6,448,295)
Remeasurement - -
Closing balance IFRS 17 6,448,295 (6,448,295)
E Claims expenses ceded to reinsurers
Claims expenses ceded to reinsurers as per IFRS 4 (1) 1,917,699 (1,917,699)

Remeasurement

Closing balance IFRS 17
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

31 December 2022

Balan 1 P Balan t
alance as at - po |assification & alance as a

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22
. Note N000 N'000 N'000 N'000
F Underwriting Expenses
Underwriting expenses as per IFRS 4 (H) (3,366,227) 3,366,227
Remeasurement - -
Closing balance IFRS 17 (3,366,227) 3,366,227
G Insurance Service Revenue
Premium earned reclassified from Gross premium income(GPI- IFRS 4)  (A) - 36,529,918 - 36,529,918
Remeasurement - - (13,443) (13,443)
Closing balance IFRS 17 - 36,529,918 (13,443) 36,516,475
H Insurance Service Expenses
Gross claims insured reclassified under IFRS 4 (D) - (6,448,295) 154,017 (6,294,278)
Underwriting expenses (IFRS 4) (F) (3,366,227) - (3,366,227)
Directly attributable expenses reclassified from Management expenses L - (1,148,054) - (1,148,054)
IFRS 17 Impact- Risk adjustment - - (361,351) (361,351)
IFRS 17 Impact - Insurance finance income/(expense) - - 120,108 120,108
IFRS 17 Impact- Loss component
IFRS 17 Impact- Deferred acquisition cost - - 13 13
Closing balance IFRS 17 - (10,962,576) (87,213) (11,049,789)
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5 Transition disclosure - continued

I Net expenses from reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance premium expenses reclassified under IFRS 4
Fees and commission income reclassified under IFRS 4
Claims recovered from reinsurers reclassified under IFRS 4
IFRS 17 impact - Recovery on Loss component

IFRS 17 impact - Recovery from Risk adjustment

IFRS 17 impact Reinsurnace finance income/(expense)
Closing balance IFRS 17

J Insurance finance income/(expenses)

Insurance finance income/ (expenses) from Insurance contracts

K Reinsurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income/ (expenses) from reinsurance contracts

L Management expenses
Management expenses as per IFRS 4

Note

(
(

—

31 December 2022

B
H
E

)
)
)

Directly attributable expenses reclassified to Insurnace service expenses H

Non directly attributable expense/ other operating expenses - IFRS 17 M

M Other operating expense
Non directly atftributable expense/ other operating expenses - IFRS 17
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L

Balance as at

Reclassification &

Balance as at

31-Dec-22 derecognition re-measurement 31-Dec-22

N'000 ‘000 N'000 N'000

(25,499,140) 9,365 (25,489,775)

1,681,774 - 1,681,774

1,917,699 120,819 2,038,518

(9,170) (9,170)

(62,046) (62,046)

(21,899,667) 58,968 (21,840,699)

120,108 120,108

(62,046) (62,046)

4,123,207 - 4,123,207

(1,148,054) (1,148,054)

- (2,975,153) (2,975,153)
4,123,207 (4,123,207)

2,975,153 2,975,153
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December, 2023

As at TJanuary

2022 2022
2023 (restated) (restated)
Assets Notes N000 N'000 N'000
Cash and cash equivalents 1 11,419,213 8,793,947 8,808,248
Financial assets 2 57,069,702 30,489,808 23,947,860
Trade receivables 3 316,646 365,397 109,967
Reinsurance contract asset 10 12,274,588 7,937,788 7,236,017
Other receivables and prepayments 4 1,350,212 993,590 772,722
Investment properties 5 4,050,000 3,676,770 3,676,770
Property, plant and equipment 6 199,213 232,664 303,954
Right of use assets 7 8,333 1,044 7,221
Intangible assets 8 123 946 3,427
Statutory deposits 9 300,000 300,000 300,000
Total assets 86,988,030 52,791,954 45,166,186
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 10 24,081,523 14,298,937 12,704,190
Trade payables 11 19,837,407 9,734,610 6,951,553
Other payables and accruals 12 2,680,102 1,576,551 1,493,142
Deferred rental income 13 35,000 33,250 33,250
Current income tax payable 14 507,800 1,361,495 836,792
Deferred tax liabilities 15 5,178,466 672,831 753,816
Total liabilities 52,320,298 27,677,674 22,772,743
Equity
Share capital 16 10,000,000 10,000,000 7,000,000
Share premium 16.2 84,607 84,607 84,607
Statutory contingency reserve 171 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Retained earnings 17.2 12,917,456 4,596,443 4,931,902
Fair value reserve 17.3 1,665,669 433,230 376,934
Total equity attributable to Owners 34,667,732 25,114,280 22,393,443
Total liabilities and equity 86,988,030 52,791,954 45,166,186

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 19 April 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

I |, SR felzzs

Mr. lbrahim Dikko Edeki Isujeh Friday Nwachukwu

Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
FRC/2013/PRO/DIR/003/00000001718 FRC/2020/PRO/DIR/003/00000022391 FRC/2013/PRO/ICAN/001/00000002207

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December, 2023

Insurance contract revenue

Insurance service expenses

Net expense from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service result

Interest revenue calculated using effective interest rate method
Other investment income

Net realised gain/(loss)

Fair value gain

Unrealised foreign exchange gain

Impairment loss charge

Net Investment income

Finance (expense)/income from insurance contract issued
Finance (expense)/income from reinsurance contract held
Net insurance financial result

Other operating income

Other operating expenses

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
(net of tax):

Net gain on equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Earnings per share:

Basic (kobo)
Diluted (kobo)

Notes

18
19
20

23
24
25
26
27
28

21
22

24
29.3

30

32
32

2022

2023 (restated)

N'000 N'000
40,377,128 36,516,475
(22,472,417) (11,049,789)
(21,062,783) (21,840,699)
(3,158,072) 3,625,987
4,462,414 2,984,910
240,021 326,644
162,153 31,454
646,154 5,955
14,708,640 2,433,292
(466,470) (495,121)
19,752,911 5,287,134
1,349,743 120,108
(135,430) (62,046)
1,214,313 58,063
6,973 141,508
(2,603,393) (2,975,153)
15,212,733 6,137,539
(4,891,720) (884,612)
10,321,013 5,252,927
1,232,439 267,910
1,232,439 267,910
11,553,452 5,520,837
52 33

52 33

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes In Equity

For the period ended 31 December, 2023
Attributable to equity holders

Issued and Statutory
paid -up Share  Contingency Retained Fair value
share capital Premium Reserve Earnings reserve Total Equity
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
At 1 January 2023 10,000,000 84,607 10,000,000 4,596,443 433,230 25,114,280
Profit for the year - - - 10,321,013 - 10,321,013
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (Note 32) - - - - 1,232,439 1,232,439
Total Comprehensive income - - - 10,321,013 1,232,439 11,553,452
Issue of shares (Note 18.2) - - - - -
Dividend for last financial result (2022) (Note 35) - - - (2,000,000) - (2,000,000)
Interim dividend (for current year) ( Note 35) - - - -
Transfer of fair value reserve of equity instruments
designated at FVOCI (Note 19.2) - B . B B _
At 31 December 2023 10,000,000 84,607 10,000,000 12,917,456 1,665,669 34,667,732
At 1 January 2022 7,000,000 84,607 10,000,000 4,970,380 376,934 22,431,921
Impact of initial application of IFRS 17 (38,478) (38,478)
7,000,000 84,607 10,000,000 4,931,902 376,934 22,393,443
Profit for the year - - - 5,252,927 - 5,252,927
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (Note 32) - - 267,910 267,910
Total Comprehensive income - - 5,252,927 267,910 5,520,837
Issue of shares (Note 18.2) 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - -
Dividend for last financial result (2021) (Note 35) - - (1,400,000) - (1,400,000)
Interim dividend (for current year) ( Note 35) - - - (1,400,000) - (1,400,000)
Transfer of fair value reserve of equity instruments - - 211,614 (211,614) -
designated at FVOCI (Note 19.2)
Transfer between reserves (Note 19)
Transfer of issued and paid up share capital - - - - - -
At 31 December 2022 10,000,000 84,607 10,000,000 4,596,443 433,230 25,114,280
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Premiums received for insurance contracts
Premiums received in respect of future policies
Reinsurance premium paid during the year
Other cashflow from/to providers of services
Minimum deposit on premium paid

Staff loan disbursed during the year

Staff loan repayment during the period
Acquisition cashflows received

Acquisition cashflows paid

Claims and directly attributable expenses paid
Claims and other benefit received

Cash flows generated from operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Addition to right of use asset

Addition to investment properties

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Interest income received

Rental income received

Dividend income received

Proceeds on disposal of investments

Purchase of investments

Proceed from redemption of financial assets measured at amortised costs

Net cash (used in) / providedby investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

3.1
11
11.3

4.1
4.1
10
10
10
10

14.2

35

~

13
24
2.5
2.5
2.5

2023 2022
N'000 N'000
36,079,001 33,361,501
14,620,617 6,564,236
(26,317,318) (25,765,450)
(8,311,984) (971,163)
(52,990) (69,739)
(7,662) (109,900
57,484 73,791
1,794,993 1,794,990
(4,136,764) (3,151,036)
(9,420,680) (7,650,404)
1,033,730 1,950,815
5,338,427 6,027,641
(1,372,462) (335,858)
3,965,965 5,691,783
(100,440) (58,471)
(12,000) i

- (25,952)

13,759 3,782
4,212,705 2,254,292
70,000 66,500
171,771 260,144
1,148,373 2,849,458
(7,361,234) (8,756,059)
2,394,312 470,180
537,246 (2,936,126)
(2,000,000 (2,800,000)
(2,000,000) (2,800,000)
2,503,210 (44,343)
122,056 30,042
8,793,947 8,808,248
11,419,213 8,793,947
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Notes To The Financial Statements

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

1 Cash and cash equivalents Nofes N000 N000
Cash and bank balances 1.1 1,113,175 1,373,487
Short-term deposits 1.2 10,656,976 7,558,039

11,770,151 8,931,526
Less: Allowance for credit losses 13 (350,938) (137,579)
Cash and cash equivalents(per statement of cash flows) 11,419,213 8,793,947

1.1 Cash and banks is made up of the following:

Cash on hand 54 56
Balances held with local banks 668,828 715,221
Balances held in domiciliary accounts 444,293 658,210

1.3 1,113,175 1,373,487
Less: Allowance for credit losses 1.3 (26,257) (22,708)
Total Cash and banks 1,086,918 1,350,779

Interest income on bank accounts held with banks amounted to NO.9m (2022: NO.2m). See note 23 to the financial statements.

1.2 Short term deposit is made up of:

Call deposits 1.3 6,795 6,747
Term deposits 1.3 10,650,181 7,551,292
10,656,976 7,558,039
Less: Allowance for credit losses (324,681) (114,871)
10,332,295 7,443,168

Interest income on calls and term deposits with banks amounted to N562.9m (2022: N330.8m). See note 25 to the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts(if any).
The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal fo their fair value. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the reporting position as shown above. Short—term deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. All deposits are subject to an average variable interest
rate of 11% per annum (2022: 9%).
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

1.3

Impairment loss on cash and cash equivalents
An analysis of the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECLs is as follows:

31-Dec-23

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Individual Individual Individual Total
Gross carrying amount N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Cash on hand 54 - - 54
Balances held with local banks and domiciliary accounts (Note 1.1) 1,113,121 - - 1,113,121
Call deposits (Note 1.2) 6,795 - - 6,795
Term deposits (Note 1.2) 10,650,181 - - 10,650,181
11,770,151 - - 11,770,151

Expected credit losses
Cash on hand - -
Balances held with local banks and domiciliary accounts (Note 1.1) 26,257 - - 26,257
Call deposits (Note 1.2) 114 - - 114
Term deposits (Note 1.2) 324,567 - - 324,567
350,938 - - 350,938

2023 CAI AR | 165



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

1.3

1.3a
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Cash and cash equivalents - continued

Impairment loss on cash and cash equivalents - continued

An analysis of the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECLs is as follows:

Gross carrying amount

Cash on hand

Balances held with local banks and domiciliary accounts (Note 1.1)

Call deposits (Note 1.2)
Term deposits (Note 1.2)

Expected credit losses
Cash on hand

Balances held with local banks and domiciliary accounts (Note 1.1)

Call deposits (Note 1.2)
Term deposits (Note 1.2)

Analysis of impairment allowance on cash and cash equivalents

Gross carrying amount

At T January

Writeback during the year
Charged for the year

Foreign exchange adjustments
At 31 December

31-Dec-22

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Individual Individual Individual Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
56 56
1,373,431 1,373,431
6,747 6,747
7,551,292 7,551,292
8,931,526 8,931,526
22,708 22,708
114 114
114,757 114,757
137,579 137,579

Notes 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22

N'000 N'000

137,579 170,831

30

30 169,837 (50,642)

29 43,522 17,390

350,938 137,579

Foreign exchange adjustments relating to impairment allowance on cash and cash equivalents above are reported in net

unrealised loss on foreign bank balances and deposits in Note 29



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

1.3b An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECLs is as follows:

2023

Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying Gross carrying

amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Cash and cash equivalents N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
As at 1 January 2023 8,931,526 137,579 - . - - 8,931,526 137,579
New assets purchased 5,445,610 166,254 - - - - 5,445,610 166,254
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (4,032,521) (123,113) - - - - (4,032,521) (123,113)
Amounts written off - - - - -
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations - 213,739 - - - - - 213,739
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments 1,425,536 (43,522) - - - - 1,425,536 (43,522)
At 31 December 2023 (Note 1) 11,770,151 350,938 - - - - 11,770,151 350,938
As at 1 January 2022 8,979,079 170,831 - - - - 8,979,079 170,831
New assets purchased 5,445,610 83,883 - - - - 5,445,610 83,883
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (6,622,116) (102,005) - . - - (6,622,116) (102,005)
Amounts written off - - - - -
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations - 2,261 - - - - - 2,261
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments 1,128,953 (17,390) - - - - 1,128,953 (17,390)
At 31 December 2022 (Note 1) 8,931,526 137,579 - - - - 8,931,526 137,579

During the year, there were no transfers between stages (2021: nil). The total Income Statement (writeback)/charge for the allowance for ECL on cash and cash equivalents for the year was
N169.8 million (2022:N50.6 million). Related foreign exchange adjustments are reported as part of net unrealised (loss)/gain on foreign exchange in note 29.
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2. Financial Assets

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Below is an analysis of the Company's financial assets Notes N'000 N'000
Equity : Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 2.1 966,058 870,360
Equity : Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI) 2.2 3,130,296 1,760,920
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost:
Federal government bonds 26,146,085 13,987,908
State government bonds 573,926 643,271
Corporate bonds 26,243,363 13,296,687
Other debt securities - term deposits 1,273,442 259,361
Impairment losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost 2.4 (1,263,468) (328,699)
Total debt instruments measured at amortised cost 2.3 52,973,348 27,858,528

57,069,702 30,489,808

2.1 Equity : Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

The Company’s fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) financial assets consist of investment in quoted equities of entities whose
stock are actively traded on the stock exchange. The investments are held primarily for trading purposes and are fair valued
frequently. The Fair values of these equities are determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market. The

resulting fair value adjustments are recorded in the profit or loss.
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.1

Equity : Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) contd

Listed Equities

Dangote Cement Plc

Dangote Sugar Refinery Plc
FBN Holdings Plc

Flour Mills Nig. Plc.

GTCO Plc

Tourist Company of Nigeria Plc.
UAC OF Nigeria

Union Homes Savings and Loans Plc.

Zenith Bank Plc

Managed Funds

ARM Aggressive Fund
ARM Discovery Fund
Coral Growth Fund
FBN Heritage Fund
Stanbic IBTC Bond Fund
Zenith Equity Fund
Meristem Growth ETF

Total FVTPL Financial assets

Note 2.5

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
39,988 32,625
11,400 8,025
117,175

- 17,452

20,726 88,169
8,988 8,988
298 -

48 48
113,848 208,140
195,296 480,622
37,680 27,705
16,213 12,103
117,280 85,483
165,087 112,493
127,880 122,515
39,193 29,439
267,430 -
770,761 389,738
966,058 870,360

The reconciliation of movement in financial assets above is contained in Note 2.5.

2023 CAI AR | 169



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.1

2.2
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Analysis of fair value gains on FVTPL financial assets

Notes 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

N'000 N'000

Unrealised gain on equities at FVTPL 26 272,924 31,907
Net realised gain on equities at FVTPL 25 40,097 1,412
313,021 33,319

The Company received dividends of N33.6million on equity holdings reported as fair valued through profit or loss during the
year(2022: N31.9million ). See note 2.7.

Equity : Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVYTOCI)

Equity | instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income include investments in equity shares of non
listed companies and other OTC traded equities. The Company holds non controlling interest (between 2% and 9%) in these
companies. These investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through OCI as the Company considers these

investments o be strategic in nature.

The fair values of the non listed equities are determined using either income or market approach (See Note 41.1- Valuation
basis) while fair value of OTC listed equities are determined by reference to the published price quotation in the active market.
The resulting fair value adjustments of all equities designated at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI) are

recorded in other comprehensive income.



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.2

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

N'000 N'000

ARM Properties Plc. 7,450 8,800
Friesland Wamco Nig. Plc. 3,780 3,183
ARM Hospitality Fund 207,369 207,369
African Reinsurance Corporation 432,659 263,060
Energy and Allied Insurance Pool of Nigeria 606,533 293,171
Interswitch Limited 1,816,786 923,000
WSTC Financial Services Limited 55,719 62,337
Total FYTOCI Financial assets Note 2.5 3,130,296 1,760,920

The reconciliation of movement in financial assets above is contained in Note 2.5.

The Company received dividends of N138.1million on equity shares designated as FVTOCI

during the year(2022: N228.2million ). See note 2.7.
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.3
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Debt instruments at amortised cost

Federal Government Debt Securities

TBILLS

Impairment allowance of FGN NGN Bonds
a

FGN Naira Bonds

FGN Bond 12.75% Apr 2023

FGN Bond 12.5% 22 Jan 2026

FGN Bond 13.98% 23 Feb 2028

FGN Bond 12.75% 27 April 2033

FGN Bond 12.15% 18 JUL 2034

FGN Bond 12.5% 27 MAR 2035

Impairment allowance of FGN NGN Bonds
b

FGN Eurobonds

NIGERIA 8.375% 21-Mar-2029

NGERIA 7.143% 23-Feb-2030

NGERIA 8.747% 23-Feb-2031

Impairment allowance on FGN Euro Bonds

C

d=a+b+c

Credit
Rating

B3/Moody's

B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's

B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's
B3/Moody's

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
2,001,242
(2,387)
1,998,855
: 646,837
600,153 601,096
2,329,207 2,352,263
989,066
224,409 225,075
387,833 387,316
(5,047) (4,155)
4,525,621 4,208,432
2,160,568 937,301
2,757,660 1,395,989
14,695,955 7,442,031
(316,726) (119,019)
19,297,457 9,656,302
25,821,933 13,864,734




Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.3  Debt instruments at amortised cost Credit 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
State Government Debt Securities Rating N000 N'000
ONDO 13% 30-JAN-2027 A-/ Agusto 322,977 392,321
LAGOS IlA 13.00% 20 DEC-2031 A+/Augusto 250,949 250,950
Impairment on State Bonds (1,109) (1,357)

d 572,817 641,914
Corporate Debt Securities
FCMB | 14.25% 20-NOV-2021 B2/Moody's - -
PRIMERO BRT-SPV 17.00%15-MAY-2026 Bbb-/Agusto 272,271 272,306
FLOURMILLS I1IB 11.10% 27-FEB-2025 A/Agusto 259,805 259,839
NOVAMBL SPV | 12.00% 23-JUL-2027 Bbb-/Agusto 37,028 37,030
LAPO MFB Il 13.00% 30-MAR-2025 Bbb+/ Agusto 310,545 311,122
FBNQ SPV 1 10.50% 5-FEB-2023 A/Agusto - 41,818
MTN 2020 TRANCH B 14.50% 30-SEPT-2032 AAA/GCR 234,260 234,289
Impairment on Corporate Bonds (32,603) (15,668)

e 1,081,306 1,140,736
Corporate Eurobonds
FBNL 8.625% 27-OCT-2025 B2/Moody's 3,940,593 2,035,240
SEPLAT 9.25% 01- OCT-2026 B2/Moody's 4,507,184 2,304,527
ECOTRA 9.5% 18-APRIL-2024 B3/Moody's 7,037,574 3,583,618
ACCESS 9.125% PERPETUAL BOND B2/Moody's 9,644,115 4,216,898
Impairment on Corporate Euro Bonds (866,447) (181,046)

f 24,263,019 11,959,237

The reconciliation of movement in the financial assets above is contained in Note 2.5.
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.3
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Credit 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Rating N'000 N'000
Commercial papers
C&l leasing CP 3 BBB-/Agusto 222,231
Lagos Free Zone Company CP5 Bbb-/Agusto 208,937
UAC Nig CP A/ Agusto 97,083
Flour Mills of Nigeria CP A-/Agusto 73,989
Dangote CP 8 B3/Moodys 297,441
FSDH CP 17 BBB/GCR 110,519
Impairment on Commercial papers (30,9213) -
g 979,287 11,959,237
Other debt securities - term deposits
FCMB Euro deposit B2/Moody's - 153,203
Meristem Wealth Management deposits Not rated 258,661 101,598
Accrued interest on CBN deposit 4,560 4,561
Impairment on other debt securities (8,235) (7,455)
h 254,986 251,907
Total Amortised Cost Financial assets( c+d+e+f+g+h) 52,973,348 27,858,528

The reconciliation of movement in the financial assets above is contained in Note 2.5.



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

2.4 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECLs is as follows:

2023

Gross Gross Gross Gross

carrying carrying carrying carrying
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Amortised cost N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
As at 1 January 2023 28,187,227 328,699 28,187,227 328,699
New assets purchased 7,211,178 148,045 7,211,178 148,045
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (3,175,306) (65,189) (3,175,306) (65,189)
Amounts written off - B}
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations - 399,971 - 399,971
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments 22,013,717 451,942 22,013,717 451,942
At 31 December 2023 54,236,816 1,263,468 54,236,816 1,263,468
As at 1 January 2022 22,424,966 275,652 22,424,966 275,652
New assets purchased 7,833,509 91,652 7,833,509 91,652
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (2,880,456) (33,701) (2,880,456) (33,701)
Amounts written off i
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations 4,564 4,564
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments 809,208 (9,468) 809,208 (9,468)
At 31 December 2022 28,187,227 328,699 28,187,227 328,699
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Notes To The Financial Statements

2.5

At 1 January 2022
Additions

Maturities and redemptions
Proceeds on disposals

Analysis of movement in financial assets

Contd

Realised fair value gains recorded in profit or loss (Note 25)

Fair value gains recorded in OCl (Note 17.3, 30)

Unrealised fair value gains taken to profit or loss (Note 26)

Impairment charge during the year (Note 28)
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments on ECL relating to Amortised cost financial assets

At 31 December 2022

Additions
Maturities and redemptions

Proceeds on disposals

Realised fair value gains recorded in profit or loss (Note 25)

Fair value gains recorded in OCI (Note 17.3, 30)

Unrealised fair value gains taken to profit or loss (Note 26)

Impairment charge during the year (Note 28)

Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments

Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments on ECL relating to Amortised cost financial assets
At 31 December 2023
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Fair value

Fair value through Amortised
through OCI profit or loss Cost Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
885,415 913,131 22,149,314 23,947,861
838,000 84,550 7,833,509 8,756,059
- - (470,180) (470,180)
(278,542) (160,640) (2,410,276) (2,849,458)
i 1,412 1,412
316,047 - 316,047
31,907 - 31,907
(62,515) (62,515)
809,208 809,208
. - 9,468 9,468
1,760,920 870,360 27,858,528 30,489,808
150,056 7,211,178 7,361,234
: (2,394,312) (2,394,312)
(367,379) (780,994) (1,148,373)
- 40,097 40,097
1,369,376 - 1,369,376
272,924 - 272,924
(482,827) (482,827)
22,013,717 22,013,717
- - (451,942) (451,942)
3,130,296 966,058 52,973,348 57,069,702
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2.6

2.7

Maturity profile of debt instruments at amortised cost (gross):

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

N'000 N'000
Within one year 3,233,131 940,012
More than one year 49,740,217 26,918,516

52,973,348 27,858,528

The Company’s "debt instrument measured at amortised costs" under IFRS 9 consist of investment in bonds and other securities that the Company
holds within a business model of collecting the contractual cashflow fill maturity. These investments are carried at their amortised cost and inferest

income is recognised using the effective inferest rate.

The financial assets with the exception of those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) are

monitored and tested for impairment when applicable. Additional information and breakdown are listed above.

Investment Income from Financial Assets

Carrying amount Income type  31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Financial Assets Notes N'000 N'000 N'000
Equity: Fair value through Profit or loss 2.1 966,058 Dividends 33,604 31,972
Equity: Fair value through Other Comprehenive Income 2.2 3,130,296 Dividends 138,166 228,172
Total dividend received 26 171,770 260,144
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost:
Federal government Bond 2.3 23,823,078 Interest 1,873,162 1,442,419
State government bonds 2.3 572,817 Interest 66,251 73,822
Corporate bonds 2.3 25,344,325 Interest 1,696,707 1,111,205
Treasury bills 2.3 1,998,855 Interest 70,808
Commercial papers 979,287 Interest 164,684
2.3 3,706,928 2,627,446
Other debt securities- Term deposits 2.3 254,986 Interest 169,556 9,980
Total interest received/receivables 57,069,702 3,876,484 2,637,426
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3.1

3.2
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Trade receivables 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
Due from brokers 316,646 361,053
Due from insurers - 4,344
316,646 365,397
Analysis of movement in premium received for cashflow purpose
Premium receieved 30days after previous year end 365,397 109,967
Premium received in respect of Gross written premium(GWP) 42,277,840 37,617,582
Exclude premium deposit (6,564,236) (4,366,048)
Premium received from insurance contracts in the year 36,079,001 33,361,501
Aging analysis of trade receivables: No of Policies Amount No of Policies Amount
N'000 N'000
Within 14 days 139 99,342 366 274,681
Within 15-30 days 343 217,304 233 90,716
Within 31-90 days
Within 91-180 days
Above 180days - - - -
482 316,646 599 365,397

All insurance receivables are designated as Trade receivables and their carrying values approximate fair value at the reporting date. A total

amount of N316.6m (2022: N365.4m ) was received after year end as at 31 January 2024.
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4.1

Other receivables and prepayments

Staff loans (Note 4.1)

Prepayments and sundry debtors (Note 4.4)
Due from reinsurance brokers (Note 4.2)
Minimum deposit on premiums paid (Note 23)
Withholding tax credit notes(Note 4.5)

*Allowance for impairment on Other receivables (Note 4.6)

*Individual impairment of items were carried out to arrive at this value.

Staff loans

At 1 January

Addition during the period
Accrued Interest (Note 4.3)
Repayment during the period

ECL impairment provision
At 31 December

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
115,195 160,972
604,052 308,704
963,885 1,016,949
52,990 60,617
7,777 26,230
1,743,899 1,573,472
(393,687) (579,882)
1,350,212 993,590
160,972 120,924
7,662 109,900
4,045 3,939
(57,484) (73,791)
115,195 160,972
(38,451) (39,128)
76,744 121,844

As at the end of the year, there was no outstanding balance in respect of staff loans granted to key management staff

(2022: N14.4m). See note 35.3
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31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
4.2 Due from reinsurance brokers

At 1 January 1,016,949 436,625
(Decrease)/ increase in receivables from brokers (53,064) 580,324
963,885 1,016,949

*Allowance for impairment on receivables from
Reinsurance brokers (273,034) (482,293)
At 31 December 690,851 534,656

Amounts due from reinsurance brokers represent net claims recoverable from reinsurance. They are valued after an allowance for
their recoverability, and the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. Based on our aged analysis of amounts

due from brokers as at year end, outstanding amount due from United Africa Insurance Broker (UAIB) which were above 90 days
summed up to N273million (2022:N482million). This amount has been fully impaired while reconciliation and recovery drive are

currently ongoing with the broker. This implies a writeback of N209million in the current year.

4.3  Minimum deposit on premiums paid to reinsurance brokers

At 1 January 60,617 38,835
Addition 52,990 69,739
Expensed during the year (60,617) (47,957)
At 31 December 52,990 60,617

The amount expensed during the year is included in reinsurance expense while M&D premium paid during the year are
reported separately in the statement of cashflow and adjusted against premium paid to reinsurers on the cash flows.
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4.4  Prepayment and sundry debtors

Sundry debtors (Note 4.4.1)
Prepaid others (Note 4.4.2)
Deposit for property (Note 4.4.3)
Prepaid insurance on owned assets

Prepaid rent

Contd

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
348,138 75,759
153,771 158,872
25,337 25,337
61,109 40,100
15,697 8,636
604,052 308,704

4.4.1  Syndry debtors represents deposit for various services not yet received and recoverable from suppliers and service providers.

4.4.2 Prepaid others relates to the unamortised payments made to various third parties for IT services and IT maintenance contracts,

including unamortised payments to Health Maintenance Organisations (HMO) and tracking fees. Also included in this balance is

an amount of N81.5m(2022: N57.8m) paid to FIS capital Markets UK Limited for the deployment of IFRS 17 Software

solution(consisting of various modules- Prophet professional, Insurance Data Repository and Enterprise Accounting System) for the

ongoing IFRS 17 implementation project.

4.4.3 This relates to a property development for which an initial deposit of N36.8million was made. The property development has been

stalled and the developer has so far refunded the sum of N11.4million whilst the balance of N25.4million has been fully

impaired.

4.5  Withholding tax credit notes

Balance as at 1 Jan

Additional credit notes received
Utilised credit notes (Note 14.2)
Balance as at 31 Dec

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
26,230 14,946

1,026 164,457
(19,479) (153,173)
7.777 26,230
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4.6 Impairment loss on other receivables
The impairment loss analysis below relates to staff loans, deposit for properties and sundry debtors. An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and
corresponding ECLs is as follows:

2023

Impairment loss on other receivables Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross Gross Gross Gross
carrying carrying carrying carrying
These it  rated. amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
eee flems are notrae N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
As at 1 January 2023 165,713 1,234 - - 96,355 96,356 262,070 97,590
New assets purchased 596,398 4,442 - - - - 596,398 4,442
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (383,008) (2,853) - - - - (383,007) (2,853)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations (13,212) 8,263 - - 13,212 13,212 - 21,475
Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 379,103 11,086 - - 109,567 109,568 475,461 120,653
2022
As at T January 2022 100,909 279 - - 96,355 96,355 197,265 96,634
New assets purchased 192,435 532 - - - - 192,435 532
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) (127,631) (353) - - - - (127,630) (353)
Amounts written off . B} _
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations . 777 - . - . B 777

Unrealised foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - - - .
At 31 December 2022 165,713 1,234 - - 96,355 96,355 262,070 97,589
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Analysis of impact of impairment 2023

Analysis of impact of impairment 2023

Staff loans

Prepayments

Sundry debtors

Deposit for property
Withholding tax credit notes
Total

Analysis of impact of impairment 2022

Staff loans

Prepayments

Sundry debtors

Claims debtors

Deposit for property
Withholding tax credit notes
Total

Asset

Gross carrying

Impairment

Increase/

Asset

amount as at 31 Balance as (Write-back) Balance as Carrying amount
December at 1 January during the year at 31 December as at 31 December
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
115,195 39,128 (677) 38,451 76,744
230,577 - - - 230,577
348,138 33,124 23,741 56,865 291,273
25,337 25,337 25,337 -
7,777 - - - 7,777
727,024 97,589 23,064 120,653 606,371
160,972 37,962 1,166 39,128 121,844
207,608 - - 207,608
75,759 33,335 (211) 33,124 42,635
25,337 25,337 25,337 -
26,230 - - - 26,230
495,906 96,634 955 97,589 398,317
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31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

5 Investment properties N'000 N'000
At 1 January 3,676,770 3,676,770
Improvements during the year - 25,952
Net gain on fair value adjustments (Note 26) 373,230 (25,952)
At 31 December 4,050,000 3,676,770

Further analysis and details of the investment properties including their location are stated below. These include the carrying

amount and the corresponding fair value adjustments recognized in the profit or loss.

Fair value

adjustments

Additions  Improvements recognised in
5.1  Description of properties and movement 1-Jan-2023 during the year during the year profit or loss  31- Dec 2023
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
88, Adetokunbo Ademola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos 230,000 - - 15,000 245,000
3, Aja Nwachukwu Close, Off Bourdillon Road, Ikoyi, Lagos* 2,850,000 - - 290,000 3,140,000
156 Awolowo Road, lkoyi, Lagos 405,000 - - 35,000 440,000
Plot 3243, Block 71, Peace Prayer Estate, Amuwo Odofin, Lagos 41,770 - - 3,230 45,000
Plot 676 Cadastral Zone, Abuja 50,000 - - 20,000 70,000
5 Chapel Street, Yaba 100,000 - - 10,000 110,000
3,676,770 - - 373,230 4,050,000

The Company did not acquire any new investment properties during the year (2022:Nil). Improvements during the year represent directly attributable
expenditure(e.g. survey cost, remodelling costs) incurred. There was no disposal of investment properties during the year(2022:Nil).

*The Investment property located at 3, Aja Nwachukwu Close, Off Bourdillon Road, lkoyi, Lagos is jointly owned by Policyholders and Shareholders. A
fixed portion of N1,513m is owned by policyholders while shareholder own any excess above the same value(i.e. N1,627m as at year end)(2022:
1,337m). Shareholders bear the full exposure to the related risk (Fair valuation gains and losses on the property) while rental income on the property is
shared proportionally based on holdings.
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5.1

Fair value
adjustments

Additions  Improvements recognised in

Description of properties and movement 1-Jan-2022 during the year during the year profit or loss  31- Dec 2022
N'000 N'000 N'000 »N'000 N'000

88, Adetokunbo Ademola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos 230,000 230,000
3, Aja Nwachukwu Close, Off Bourdillon Road, lkoyi, Lagos* 2,850,000 2,850,000
156 Awolowo Road, lkoyi, Lagos 405,000 405,000
Plot 3243, Block 71, Peace Prayer Estate, Amuwo Odofin, Lagos 41,770 - - 41,770
Plot 676 Cadastral Zone, Abuja 50,000 11,473 (11,473) 50,000
5 Chapel Street, Yaba 100,000 14,479 (14,479) 100,000
3,676,770 - 25,952 (25,952) 3,676,770

Valuation techniques used for fair valuation of Investment properties

This represents the Company's investment in building and landed property for the purpose of capital appreciation. The investment properties are stated
at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by a qualified estate surveyor. The investment properties were independently
valued by Barin Epega & Company (a registered estate surveyor & valuer) as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 based on valuation model
in accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee. The determination of fair value of the investment property
was supported by market evidence. The rental income arising from these properties during the year is included in other investment and sundry

income.

Details of the Valuer

The investment properties were independently valued as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 by Barin Epega & Co(an estate surveyor &
chartered valuer firm) duly registered with the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria with number FRC/2020/00000013769, with office located at
No. 98, Norman Williams Street lkoyi, Lagos. The valuation report was signed by Sir Obarinsola Epega KIW who is a qualified member of the Nigerian
Institution of Estate Surveyors and Valuers with FRC No. FRC/2012/PRO/NIESV/004/00000000597.

The rental income arising during the year amounted to N68.3million (2022: N66.5million) which is included in other investment and operating

income. Direct operating expenses arising in respect of such properties during the year are included within management expenses.
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5. Investment properties contd 2023 2022
N'000 N'000

Rental income derived from investment properties (Note 24) 68,250 66,500

Direct operating expenses in generating rental income ( Note 29.4) (6,746) (8,948)

Profit from investment properties carried at fair value 61,504 57,552

There are no restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income and proceeds of
disposal. The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or

for repairs or enhancement.

Valuation techniques used for fair valuation of investment properties - 31 December 2023

Status of Title

Valuation technique

Location of Investment properties Significant unobservable inputs
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88, Adetokunbo Ademola Street,
Victoria Island, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO8556 which was registered
and perfected on 1
September 2011

Depreciated replacement cost
approach

-Construction cost/M2 : N220,000 for Main
Building of 300.3m2, N200,000 for Domestic
Staff Quarters of 47.4m2 and N100,000 for
Gate house of 8.48m2

Depreciation rate of 70% Unit Land price
(N275,000-N33000/m2 )

3, Aja Nwachukwu Close, Off
Bourdillon Road, lkoyi, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO8707 which was registered
and perfected on 7
September 2011.

Income approach (DCF
Method)

- Estimated unit rental per annum
N19,800,000 - N23,100,000 per flat
- Rent growth p.a 5%

- Long-term vacancy rate less 10%

- Discount rate 10%

156 Awolowo Road, lkoyi, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO5032 which was registered
and perfected on 29 June
1994.

Income approach (DCF
Method)

- Estimated rental per annum N50,000-
N80,000/m?2

- Rent growth p.a 5%

- Long-term vacancy rate 2%

- Discount rate 10%
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Valuation techniques used for fair valuation of investment properties - 31 December 2023 continued

Location of Investment properties

Status of Title

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Plot 3243, Block 71, Peace Prayer
Estate, Amuwo Odofin, Lagos

Title is evidenced by the
D160Deed of Assignment
dated 1995. Title perfection is
ongoing with the Lagos State
Government since April

2017.

Market comparison approach

- Estimated price per square metre N40,000 -
N50,000

Plot 676 Cadastral Zone, Abuja

Title is evidenced by the
Federal Government Certificate
of Occupancy No 149123 and
registered as No 11488 in
Volume 58 of the Certificate of
Occupancy register in Land
registry office Abuja. Title was
perfected and obtained on 1
September 2011.

Market comparison approach.

- Estimated price per square meter N8,000 -
N12,000

5 Chapel Street, Yaba, Lagos

Title perfection is ongoing with
the Lagos State Government
since acquisition in September

2019.

Depreciated replacement cost
approach was adopted in
arriving at the market value.

-Construction cost per square meter :
N120,000 - N200,000,

- Land cost/M2: N120,000- N180,000/m?2
Depreciation rate of building), - Nil
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Valuation techniques used for fair valuation of investment properties - 31 December 2022

Location of Investment properties

Status of Title

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

88, Adetokunbo Ademola Street,
Victoria Island, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO8556 which was registered
and perfected on 1 September
2011

Depreciated replacement cost
approach.

-Construction cost/M2 : N180,000 for Main
Building of 300.3m2, N150,000 for Domestic
Staff Quarters of 47.4m2 and N100,000 for
Gate house of 8.48m2

Depreciation rate of 70%

3, Aja Nwachukwu Close, Off
Bourdillon Road, lkoyi, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO8707 which was registered
and perfected on 7 September
2011.

Income approach (DCF
Method)

- Estimated unit rental per annum
N18,000,000 — N21,040,000

- Rent growth p.a 5%

- Long-term vacancy rate less 10%
- Discount rate 10%

156 Awolowo Road, lkoyi, Lagos

Title is covered by the Lagos
State Land certificate Title No
LO5032 which was registered
and perfected on 29 June
1994.

Income approach (DCF
Method).

- Estimated rental per annumN22,500,000
- Rent growth p.a 5%

- Long-term vacancy rate 2%

- Discount rate 10%
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Valuation techniques used for fair valuation of investment properties - 31 December 2022 contd

Location of Investment properties

Status of Title

Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Plot 3243, Block 71, Peace Prayer
Estate, Amuwo Odofin, Lagos

Title is evidenced by the Deed
of Assignment dated 1995.
Title perfection is ongoing with
the Lagos State Government
since April 2017.

Market comparison approach.

- Estimated price per square metre N35,000 -
N45,000

Plot 676 Cadastral Zone, Abuja

Title is evidenced by the
Federal Government Certificate
of Occupancy No 149123 and
registered as No 11488 in
Volume 58 of the Certificate of
Occupancy register in Land
registry office Abuja. Title was
perfected and obtained on 1
September 2011.

Market comparison
approach.

- Estimated price per square meter N8,000 -
N12,000

5 Chapel Street, Yaba, Lagos

Title perfection is ongoing with
the Lagos State Government
since acquisition in September
2019.

Depreciated replacement cost
approach was adopted in
arriving at the market value.

-Construction cost per square meter :
N110,000 - N175,000,

- Land cost/M2: N100,000- N145,000/m2
Depreciation rate of building), 45% (Fence)
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Investment Properties carried at fair value
All Investment properties are carried at fair value as determined by an independent valuer. Valuation under the market approach is based on open market

capital valuation using the market comparison approach through analysis of recent transactions of sale of comparable properties in the neighbourhood to
arrive at the value of the property. The income approach using discounted cashflows method is also used in arriving at the fair value of income yielding
investment properties. The Depreciated replacement cost approach was used in arriving at the fair value of dilapidated structures due to the specialised nature

of the property. Investment properties are categorised as Level 3 assets based on the methodology adopted in determining the fair value.

Investment Properties carried at fair value using income approach
Using the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or

terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a market-derived
discount rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and

differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related re-
letting, redevelopment, or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is typically driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of real property.
Periodic cash flow is typically estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance cost, agent
and commission costs and other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal

value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Significant increases/(decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth per annum in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower)/fair value of the
properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the long-term vacancy rate and discount rate (and exit yield) in isolation would result in a significantly
lower/(higher) fair value. Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the

rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield), and an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.
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Investment Properties carried at fair value using market approach
Market comparable method is used when there exist a good volume of transactions involving comparable properties in the area during the year. Under the

market comparable approach, a property's fair value is estimated based on comparable transactions. This approach is based on the principle of substitution
under which a potential buyer will not pay more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute property. The unit of comparism applied by the
Company is the price per square meter(sqgm). The valuations have been performed by the valuer and are based on proprietary databases of prices of

transactions for properties of similar nature, location and condition.

Investment Properties carried at depreciated replacement cost approach
Depreciated replacement cost (DRC) method of valuation is used where there is no active market for the asset being valued — that is, where there is no useful or

relevant evidence of recent sales transactions due to the specialised nature of the asset. The cost of a modern equivalent asset is estimated and then adjusted to

reflect the subject asset's physical condition and utility together with obsolescence and relative disabilities affecting the actual asset.

Fair value hierarchy of Investment Properties

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
At 31 December 2023
Investment properties - - 4,050,000 4,050,000
At 31 December 2022
Investment properties - - 3,676,770 3,676,770
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Computer and

6 Property, plant and equipment Furniture and Office Plant and
Motor Vehicles Fittings Equipment Machinery Total

Cost N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
At 1 January 2022 523,714 81,187 195,090 14,214 814,206
Additions 27,500 929 23,421 6,621 58,471
Disposals (21,400) - (811) - (22,211)
At 31 December 2022 529,814 82,116 217,700 20,835 850,466
Additions 79,000 1,382 20,058 - 100,440
Disposals (74,000) - (1,155) - (75,155)
At 31 December 2023 534,814 83,498 236,604 20,835 875,751
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2022 267,994 75,941 158,059 8,259 510,252
Charge for the year 104,371 2,755 18,903 3,232 129,261
Disposals (20,900) - (811) - (21,711)
At 31 December 2022 351,465 78,695 176,151 11,491 617,802
Charge for the year 81,020 1,946 21,280 2,924 107,170
Disposals (47,750) - (685) - (48,435)
At 31 December 2023 384,736 80,641 196,746 14,415 676,538
Carrying Amount
At 31 December 2023 150,079 2,857 39,858 6,419 199,213
At 31 December 2022 178,349 3,421 41,549 9,344 232,664

6.1 The Company had no capital commitment as at the end of the period (2022: Nil).

6.2 Impairment assessment was carried out during the period and there was no indication of impairment of any of the assets in use by the Company, hence no impairment test was

performed during the period.

6.3 None of the property, plant and equipment of the Company has been pledged as security for borrowings or otherwise, as at the end of the year (2022: Nil).
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7 Right of use assets

31-Dec-2023  31-Dec-2022

N'000 N'000
At 1 January 1,044 7,221
Additions during the year 12,000 .
Depreciation expense (4,711) (6,177)
At 31 December 8 333 1 044

The Company leases buildings used as office premises and land spaces used for storing accidented vehicles. The total lease term for the office spaces are 12
month or less which are treated as short term lease (See prepaid rent in note 4.4). In many of the lease contracts, there are no extension options and where there
exist in other contracts, the company is not reasonably certain that extension options will be exercised and termination options are exercisable by both leasee and
lessor without penalty.

In 2021, the company leased a property located in Abuja from UPDC Plc (REITS) for a term of 2 years and the remaining lease term is 3months . The lease of the
Abuja unutilised leased term amounts to NO.642million(2022: NO.794million). See note 35.3 .

In 2020, the Company leased a vacant land for storing its salvage vehicles. The 3 year lease term for the land space which ended in February 2023 was

subsequent renewed for another 3 year term for the sum of N12 million. There are no lease liabilities relating to the lease as at the end of the year.
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8. Intangible assets

Software costs Total
Cost: N'000 N'000
At 1 January 2022 128,214 128,542
Additions - -
At 31 December 2022 128,542 128,542
Additions - -
At 31 December 2023 128,542 128,542

Accumulated amortisation:
At T January 2022 125,115 125,115
Charge for the year 2,481 2,481
At 31 December 2022 127,596 127,596
Charge for the year 823 823
At 31 December 2023 128,419 128,419

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023 123 123
At 31 December 2022 946 946
9. Statutory deposits

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
N'000 N'000
Deposits with CBN 300,000 300,000

In line with Section 10 (3) of the Insurance Act of Nigeria, a deposit of 10% of the regulatory share capital required for non-life insurance
business (N3billion) is kept with the Central Bank of Nigeria(CBN). The cash amount held is considered to be a restricted cash balance.
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10. Insurance contract liabilities issued / Reinsurance contracts held

Portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contract assets and liabilities

31 December 2023

Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract assets

31 December 2022
Insurance contracts liabilities

Reinsurance contracts assets

Motor

3,067,358
316,999

2,225,484
73,382

Accident

2,781,169
612,967

1,747,401
488,588

Bond

8,071
2,828

14,373
4,447

Marine

806,127
630,077

648,824
266,488

Aviation

115,879
19,012

41,012
10,106

Fire

6,423,783
5,277,579

4,796,514
3,150,617

Engineering

1,679,822
1,085,588

513,240
341,283

Oil &
Energy

9,199,314
4,329,538

4,312,089
3,602,877

Total

24,081,523
12,274,588

14,298,937
7,937,788
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a. Insurance contracts issued

b. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach Insurance contracts issued

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage § Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
Notes component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets - - - -
Opening insurance contract liabilities 8,273,848 - 5,132,101 892,988 14,298,937
Net Opening balance 8,273,848 - 5,132,101 892,988 14,298,937
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue
Insurance revenue 18 (40,377,128) - - - (40,377,128)
(40,377,128) - - - (40,377,128)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses -
Acquisition expenses 3,879,892 - 5,926,183 (217,397) 5,708,786
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous
contracts and reversals - - - - 3,879,892
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) . . 11,972,430 911,309 12,883,739
19 3,879,892 - 17,898,613 693,912 22,472,417
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses - - (1,179,885) (169,858) (1,349,743)
21 - - (1,179,885) (169,858) (1,349,743)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (36,497,236) - 16,718,728 524,054 (19,254,454)
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
7,011,048 - 5,161,507 531,635 12,704,190
7,011,048 - 5,161,507 531,635 12,704,190
(36,516,475) (36,516,475)
(36,516,475) (36,516,475)
2,946,991 (18,857) 2,928,134
2,947,330 2,947,330
4,747,242 427,083 5,174,325
2,947,330 - 7,694,233 408,226 11,049,789
(73,235) (46,873) (120,108)
(73,235) (46,873) (120,108)
(33,569,145) - 7,620,998 361,353 (25,586,794)
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a. Insurance contracts issued

b. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach Insurance contracts issued

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage f§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (1) 42,277,840 - - - 42,277,840
Claims and other expenses paid - - (9,420,680) - (9,420,680)
Acquisition cash flows paid (4,136,764) - - - (4,136,764)
38,141,076 - (9,420,680) - 28,720,396

Non- cashflow Items
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (2) 316,644 - - - 316,644
316,644 - - 316,644
Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
Closing insurance contract liabilities 10,234,332 - 12,430,149 1,417,042 24,081,523
Net closing balance 10,234,332 - 12,430,149 1,417,042 24,081,523
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
37,617,582 37,617,582
(7,650,404) (7,650,404)
(3,151,036) (3,151,036)
34,466,546 - (7,650,404) 26,816,142
365,399 365,399
365,399 365,399
8,273,848 - 5,132,101 892,988 14,298,937
8,273,848 - 5,132,101 892,988 14,298,937
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10. Insurance contract liabilities issued/ Reinsurance contracts held
b. Reinsurance contracts held

(). Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value
recovery recovery of future Risk
. component component cash flows adjustment Total
Reinsurance contracts held Notes N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening reinsurance contract assets (5,375,344) (2,046,680) (515,764) (7,937,788)
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities - - - -
Net Opening balance (5,375,344) (2,046,680) (515,764) (7,937,788)
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue
Reinsurance expenses 26,819,313 26,819,313
26,819,313 26,819,313
Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held
Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery - (2,537,829) (136,458) (2,674,287)
Other incurred directly attributable expenses (1,580,216) - - (1,580,216)
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts and
reversals (960,492) (541,535) (1,502,027)
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for incurred
claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) - - - -
(1,580,21¢6) (3,498,321) (677,993) (5,756,530)
Reinsurance service result 20 25,239,097 (3,498,321) (677,993) 21,062,783
Insurance finance expenses/income from reinsurance contracts held
Reinsurance finance expenses/income 80,405 55,025 135,430
22 80,405 55,025 135,430
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI 25,239,097 - (3,417,916) (622,968) 21,198,213
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(4,628,014) (2,083,069) (524,934) (7,236,017)
(4,628,014) (2,083,069) (524,934) (7,236,017)
25,489,775 25,489,775
25,489,775 25,489,775
- (1,155,826) 233,666 (922,160)
(1,681,775) - - (1,681,775)
(788,654) (256,487) (1,045,141)
(1,681,775) (1,944,480) (22,821) (3,649,076)
23,808,000 (1,944,480) (22,821) 21,840,699
30,052 31,994 62,046
30,052 31,994 62,046
23,808,000 - (1,914,428) 9,173 21,902,745
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10. Insurance contract liabilities issued/ Reinsurance contracts held

b. Reinsurance contracts held

(). Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Cashflow

Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on reinsurance
contract-1
Recoveries from reinsurance

Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions and other directly
attributable expenses paid

Non-cash flow ltems

Reinsurance Premiums payable - reinsurance premium on
reinsurance contracts (2)

Commission receivable - commission on reinsurance contract (2)

Closing reinsurance contract assets
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities
Net closing balance
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31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(23,146,944) - - (23,146,944)
- 1,033,730 - 1,033,730
1,794,993 - - 1,794,993
(21,351,951) 1,033,730 - (20,318,221)
(5,216,790) - - (5,216,790)
(5,216,790) - - (5,216,790)
(6,704,988) (4,430,868) (1,138,732) (12,274,588)
(6,704,988) (4,430,868) (1,138,732) (12,274,588)




Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(23,179,945) - (23,179,945)
1,950,815 1,950,815
1,794,990 - 1,794,990
(21,384,955) 1,950,815 (19,434,140)
(3,170,374) (3,170,374)
(3,170,374) (3,170,374)
(5,375,343) (2,046,682) (515,763) (7,937,788)
(5,375,343) (2,046,682) (515,763) (7,937,788)
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10.

C

Insurance contract liabilities issued/ Reinsurance contracts held

Insurance contracts issued

Summary of Insurnace contract liabilities

Liabilities for remaining coverage - LRC (Less DAC)
Loss component
Liabilities for insurred claims - LIC

Insurance contract Liabilities

Liabilities for remaining coverage - LRC (Less DAC)
Liabilities fir remaining coverage - LRC (Gross)
Deferred acquisition cost -DAC

Movement in LRC - Gross

Balance as at 1 January

Premium received from policy holders
Amortisation

Balance as per 31 December

Movement in DAC

Balance as at 1 January
Acquitsition cost during the year
Amortisation

Balance as per 31 December
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31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Dec-21
N'000 N'000 N'000
10,234,332 8,273,848 7,011,049
13,847,191 6,025,089 5,693,142
24,081,523 14,298,937 12,704,191
11,368,003 9,150,655 7,684,153
(1,138,671) (876,807) (673,104)
10,234,332 8,273,848 7,011,049
9,150,655 7,684,153 6,996,644
42,594,476 37,982,977 34,437,522
(40,377,128) (36,516,475) (33,750,013)
11,368,003 9,150,655 7,684,153
(876,807) (673,104) 583,433
(4,136,764) (3,151,036) 2,674,123
3,879,900 2,947,333 (2,584,452)
(1,138,671) (876,807) (673,104)




Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

10.

Insurance contract liabilities issued/ Reinsurance contracts held

Insurance contracts issued

Summary of Reinsurance contract assets

Asset for remaining coverage - ARC (Less DCI)
Loss recovery component
Assets for insurred claims - AIC

Reinsurance contract Lassets

Asset for remaining coverage - ARC (Less DCI)
Assets for remaining coverage - ARC (Gross)
Deferred commission income -DCI

Movement in ARC - Gross

Balance as at 1 January

Reinsurance Premium paid on reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance premium expenses during the year

Balance as per 31 December

Movement in Deferred Commision income

Balance as at 1 January

Commission income received on reinsurance contracts during the year
Comission income earned during the year

Balance as per 31 December

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Dec-21
N'000 N'000 N'000
6,704,988 5,375,343 4,628,014
5,569,600 2,562,445 2,608,003
12,274,588 7,937,788 7,236,017
7,325,685 5,781,263 4,920,719
(620,697) (405,920) (292,705)
6,704,988 5,375,343 4,628,014
5,781,263 4,920,719 4,272,491
28,363,734 26,350,319 23,970,511
(26,819,312) (25,489,775) (23,322,283)
7,325,685 5,781,263 4,920,719
405,920 292,705 232,848
1,794,993 1,794,990 1,670,186
(1,580,216) (1,681,775) (1,610,329)
620,697 405,920 292,705
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10.1. Motor

a. Motor - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach
31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Motor - Insurance contracts issued N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets -
Opening insurance contract liabilities 1,465,560 - 647,295 112,629 2,225,484
Net Opening balance 1,465,560 - 647,295 112,629 2,225,484
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue (5,675,375) - - - (5,675,375)
Insurance revenue (5,675,375) - - - (5,675,375)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses - 992,875 558 993,433
Acquisition expenses 591,818 - - - 591,818
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals - - 1,966,449 34,385 2,000,834
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) ) ) ) ) )
591,818 - 2,959,324 34,943 3,586,085
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses i i (8,914) (4,395) (13,309)
(8,914) (4,395) (13,309)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (5,083,557) } 2,950,410 30,548 (2,102,599)
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
812,462 584,605 60,214 1,457,281
812,462 584,605 60,214 1,457,281
(3,476,735) (3,476,735)
(3,476,735) (3,476,735)
- 540,304 33,799 574,103
364,160 364,160
1,568,484 19,389 1,587,873
364,160 2,108,788 53,188 2,526,136
13,690 (772) 12,918
13,690 (772) 12,918
(3,112,575) 2,122,478 52,416 (937,681)
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10.1. Motor

a. Motor - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Cash flows
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (1)
Claims and other expenses paid

Acquisition cash flows paid

Non- cashflow ltems

Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (2)
Closing insurance contract assets

Closing insurance contract liabilities

Net closing balance
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31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage § Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
5,813,822 - - 5,813,822
- (2,341,759) - (2,341,759)
(611,350) : : (611,350)
5,202,472 (2,341,759) : 2,860,713
83,760 - - 83,760
83,760 - - 83,760
1,668,235 1,255,946 143,177 3,067,358
1,668,235 1,255,946 143,177 3,067,358
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
4,005,496 - - - 4,005,496
: (2,059,788) . (2,059,788)
(454,319) : : : (454,319)
3,551,177 - (2,059,788) - 1,491,389
214,495 - - - 214,495
214,495 - - - 214,495
1,465,559 - 647,295 112,630 2,225,484
1,465,559 - 647,295 112,630 2,225,484
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b.  Motor - reinsurance contracts held
i. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value
recovery recovery of future Risk
component  component cash fllows adiusfment ',I'oial
Motor - Reinsurance contracts held N'000 N'000 N000 N000
Opening reinsurance contract assets (54,650) (14,960) (3,770) (73,380)
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities
Net Opening balance (54,650) (14,960) (3,770) (73,380)
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Reinsurance expenses 130,806 130,806
130,806 130,806
Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery (486,325) (121,216) (607,541)
Other incurred directly attributable expenses (14,708) (14,708)
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts and
reversals (resulting frm undrlying GoC for reins) 162,533 70,279 232,812
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for incurred
claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk)
(14,708) (323,792) (50,937) (389,437)
Lns?urance fi:ance expenses//.income from reinsurance contracts held (33,709) (8,466) (42,175)
einsurance finance expenses/income 33,709) (8,466) (42,175)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI 116,098 (357,501) (59,403) (300,806)
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(4,578) (46,419) (11,698) (62,695)
(4,578) (46,419) (11,698) (62,695)
113,885 113,885
113,885 113,885
(12,592 8,524 (4,068)
(11,915)
(11,915) (60,577) (6571) (61,228)
(11,915) (73,169) 7,873 (77,211)
(1,833) 54 (1,779)
(1,833) 54 (1,779)
101,970 - (75,002) 7,927 34,895
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b. Motor - reinsurance contracts held

i. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Motor - Reinsurance contracts held

Cash flows

Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on
reinsurance contract-1

Recoveries from reinsurance

Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions and other directly
attributable expenses paid

Closing reinsurance contract assets
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities

Net closing balance
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31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(76,524) - - (76,524)
- 126,653 - 126,653
7,058 - - 7,058
(69,466) 126,653 - 57,187
(8,018) (245,808) (63,173) (316,999
(8,018) (245,808) (63,173) (316,999)
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(171,090 - (171,090
106,460 - 106,460
19,048 - - - 19,048
(152,042) - 106,460 - (45,582)
(54,650) - (14,961) (3,771) (73,382)
(54,650) - (14,961) (3,771) (73,382)
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10.3. Bond

a. Bond - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage § Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Bond - Insurance contracts issued N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets - - - - -
Opening insurance contract liabilities 11,743 2,240 390 14,373
Net Opening balance 11,743 - 2,240 390 14,373
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue
Insurance revenue (31,441) - - - (31,441)
(31,441) - - - (31,441)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses - - 2,258 (132) 2,126
Acquisition expenses 2,785 - - - 2,785
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals . . (924) 62 (862)
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) ) ) ) ) )
2,785 - 1,334 (70) 4,049
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses i i 70 (4) 66
- - 70 (4) 66
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (28,656) ; 1,404 (74) 27326
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage f§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
10,405 484 50 10,939
10,405 484 50 10,939
31,131 (31,131)
(31,131) (31,131)
- 1,333 182 1,515
2,571 2,571
1,584 165 1,749
2,571 2,917 347 5,835
(26) (7) (33)
(26) (7) (33)
(28,560) 2,891 340 (25,329)
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10.3. Bond
a. Bond - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage § Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Premiums received- premium from insurance contract (1) 24,788 - - - 24,788
Claims and other expenses paid - - (879) - (879)
Acquisition cash flows paid (2,885) - - - (2,885)
21,903 - (879) - 21,024

Non- cashflow Items
Premiums received- premium from insurance contract (2) - - - - -
Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
Closing insurance contract liabilities 4,990 - 2,765 316 8,071
Net closing balance 4,990 - 2,765 316 8,071
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
32,310 32,310
(1,134) (1,134)

(2,413) (2,413)
29,897 (1,134) 28,763
11,742 2,241 390 14,373
11,742 - 2,241 390 14,373
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b. Bond - reinsurance contracts held

i. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023

Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value
recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Bond - reinsurance contracts held N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening reinsurance contract assets (4,266) - (145) (36) (4,447)
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities -
Net Opening balance (4,266) (145) (36) (4,447)
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Reinsurance expenses 11,121 - - - 11,121
11,121 - - - 11,121
Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery - - (24) 30 6
Other incurred directly attributable expenses (3,336) - - - (3,33¢)
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals (resulting from underlying GoC for reins) _ _ (1,210) (350) (1,560)
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) i i i ) )
(3,336) - (1,234) (320) (4,890)
Reinsurance finance expenses/income ) ) 70 20 90
70 20 90
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI 7 785 } (1,164) (300) 6.321
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(539) - (192) (49) (780)
(539) (192) (49) (780)
3,085 3,085
3,085 3,085
: (132) 15 (117)
818 - 818
6 (3) 3
818 - (126) 12 704
(5) (5)
(5) (9)
3,903 - (131) 12 3,784
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b. Bond - reinsurance contracts held

i. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Cash flows

Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on
reinsurance contract- 1

Recoveries from reinsurance

Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions

and other directly atftributable expenses paid
Closing reinsurance contract assets

Closing reinsurance contract liabilities

Net closing balance
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31 December 2023

Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(6,522) - - - (6,522)

1,820 - - - 1,820

(4,702) - - - (4,702)
(1,183) - (1,309) (336) (2,828)
(1,183) - (1,309) (336) (2,828)




Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

31 December 2022

Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(8,404) - - (8,404)
179 - 179
/74 - - - 774
(7,630) - 179 - (7,451)
(4,266) - (144) (37) (4,447)
(4,266) - (144) (37) (4,447)
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10.4. Marine

a. Marine - Insurance contracts issued
i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Marine - Insurance contracts issued N'000 N'000 N'000 N000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets -
Opening insurance contract liabilities 99,574 - 467,845 81,405 648,824
Net Opening balance 99,574 - 467,845 81,405 648,824
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue
Insurance revenue (1,672,080) - - - (1,672,080)
(1,672,080) - - - (1,672,080)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses - - 221,121 (56,197) 164,924
Acquisition expenses 282,226 - - - 282,226
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals - - 163,048 36,111 199,159
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) ) ) ) ) B
282,226 - 384,169 (20,08¢) 646,309
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses i i (13,461) (4,565) (18,026)
- - (13,461) (4,565) (18,026)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (1,389,854) } 370,708 (24,651) (1,043,797)

2023 CAI AR | 222



Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
204,684 - 288,385 29,704 522,773
204,684 - 288,385 29,704 522,773
(1,396,920) - - - (1,396,920)
(1,396,920) : : - (1,396,920)
- - 302,906 23,002 325,908
257,830 - - - 257,830
127,538 30,930 158,468
257,830 - 430,444 53,932 742,206
(1,515) (2,231) (3,746)
(1,515) (2,231) (3,746)

(1,139,090) - 428,929 51,701 (658,460)
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Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

10.4. Marine
a. Marine - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Premiums received- premium from insurance contract (1) 1,835,309 - - - 1,835,309
Claims and other expenses paid - - (340,709) - (340,709)
Acquisition cash flows paid (311,631) - - - (311,631)
1,523,678 - (340,709) - 1,182,969

Non- cashflow ltems
Premiums received- premium from insurance contract (2) 18,131 - - - 18,131
18,131 - - - 18,131
Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
Closing insurance contract liabilities 251,529 - 497,844 56,754 806,127
Net closing balance 251,529 - 497,844 56,754 806,127
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
1,223,080 1,223,080
(249,469) (249,469)
(231,038) (231,038)
992,042 (249,469) 742,573
41,938 41,938
41,938 41,938
99,574 467,845 81,405 648,824
99,574 - 467,845 81,405 648,824
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10.4. Marine - reinsurance contracts held

b. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value
recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Marine - Reinsurance contracts held
Opening reinsurance contract assets (43,051) (178,463) (44,973) (266,487)
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities
Net Opening balance (43,051) (178,463) (44,973) (266,487)
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Reinsurance expenses 763,079 763,079
763,079 763,079
Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery - (47,490) 32,768 (14,722)
Other incurred directly attributable expenses (118,513) - (118,513)
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals (resulting frm undrlying GoC for reins) (292,873) (91,422) (384,295)
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) i i ) )
(118,513) (340,363) (58,654) (517,530)
Reinsurance finance expenses/income 18,369 7,392 25,761
18,369 7,392 25,761
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI 644,566 } (321,994) (51,262) 271,310
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(70,129) - (143,416) (36,141) (249,686)
(70,129) (143,416) (36,141) (249,686)
467,287 467,287
467,287 467,287
- - (94,783) 12,256 (82,527)
(89,911) - - (89,911)
(29,705) (23,003) (52,708)
(89,911) - (124,488) (10,747) (225,146)
1,342 1,916 3,258
1,342 1,916 3,258
377,376 - (123,146) (8,831) 245,399
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10.4. Marine - reinsurance contracts held

b. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on
reinsurance contract-1 (891,960 ) ) ) (891,960)
Recoveries from reinsurance ) B 126,001 B 126,001
Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions and other directly
ttributabl i
atftributable expenses paid 131,059 ) ) ) 131,059
(760,901) - 126,001 - (634,900)
Closing reinsurance contract assets
losi . iract liabiliti
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities (159,386) . (374,456) (96,235) (630,077)
Net closing bal
et closing balance (159,386) - (374,45¢) (96,235) (630,077)
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(432,042) - (432,042)
88,098 88,098
81,743 81,743
(350,299) - 88,098 (262,201)
(43,052) - (178,464) (44,972) (266,488)
(43,052) - (178,464) (44,972) (266,488)
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10.5. Aviation
a. Aviation - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Aviation - Insurance contracts issued N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets -
Opening insurance contract liabilities 21,340 - 16,756 2,915 41,011
Net Opening balance 21,340 - 16,756 2,915 41,011
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue (228,223) - - - (228,223)
Insurance revenue (228,223) - - - (228,223)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses - - 21,757 (435) 21,322
Acquisition expenses 27,920 - - - 27,920
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals } } 59,155 } 64,736
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) ) ) ) B
27,920 - 80,912 5,146 113,978
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses i i (2,223) (410) (2,633)
- - (2,223) (410) (2,633)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (200,303) } 78,689 4,736 116878
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
24,825 16,006 1,649 42,480
24,825 - 16,006 1,649 42,480
(189,329) - - - (189,329)
(189,329) - - - (189,329)
- - 10,501 179 10,680
24,981 - - - 24,981
42,252 1,210 43,462
24,981 - 52,753 1,389 79,123
(221) (122) (343)
(221) (122) (343)
(164,348) - 52,532 1,267 (110,549)
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10.5. Aviation
a. Aviation - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (1) 243,212 - - - 243,212
Claims and other expenses paid - - (28,331) - (28,331)
Acquisition cash flows paid (32,062) - - - (32,062)
211,150 - (28,331) - 182,819

Non- cashflow Items
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (2) 8,927 - - - 8,927
8,927 - - - 8,927
Closing insurance contract assets - - - - -
Closing insurance contract liabilities 41,114 - 67,114 7,651 115,879
Net closing balance 41,114 - 67,114 7,651 115,879
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
182,613 182,613
(51,782) (51,782)
(25,223) (25,223)
157,390 (51,782) 105,608
3,473 3,473
3,473 3,473
21,340 16,756 2,916 41,012
21,340 - 16,756 2,916 41,012
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10.5. Aviation

b. Aviation - reinsurance contracts held

i. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Aviation - reinsurance contracts held
Opening reinsurance contract assets
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities
Net Opening balance

Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Reinsurance expenses

Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery
Other incurred directly attributable expenses

Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals (resulting from underlying GoC for reins)

Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk)

Reinsurance finance expenses/income

Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
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31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(10,106) - (10,106)
(10,106) - (10,106)
38,147 - 38,147
38,147 - 38,147
(5,771) - (5,771)
(5,771) - (5,771)
32,376 - - - 32,376




Notes To The Financial Statements Contd

31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(518) (518)
(518) (518)
13,369 13,369
13,369 13,369
(2,222) (2,222)
(2,222) (2,222)
11,147 ] - - 11,147
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10.5. Aviation
b. Aviation - reinsurance contracts held

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk

component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on
reinsurance contract-1 (48,402) . . i, (48,402)
Recoveries from reinsurance , , i, , -
Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions and other directly
attributable expenses paid 7,120 - - - 7,120

(41,282) - - - (41,282)

Closing reinsurance contract assets (19,012) - - - (19,012)
Closing reinsurance contract liabilities
Net closing balance (19,012) - - - (19,012)
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31 December 2022

Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(25,475) - - - (25,475)
4,740 - - - 4,740
(20,735) - - - (20,735)
(10,106) - - - (10,106)
(10,106) - - - (10,106)
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10.6. Fire
a. Fire - Insurance contracts issued
i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Fire - Insurance contracts issued N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Opening insurance contract assets ) ) ) ) )
Opening insurance contract liabilities 2,453,739 - 1,995,550 347,225 4,796,514
Net Opening balance 2,453,739 - 1,995,550 347,225 4,796,514
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Insurance revenue
Insurance revenue (12,044,682) - - - (12,044,682
(12,044,682) - - - (12,044,682)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses . . 1,469,998 (179,640) 1,290,352
1,242,258 - - - 1,242,258

Acquisition expenses

Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals - - 2,320,397 181,564 2,501,961

Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk)

1,242,258 - 3,790,395 1,918 5,034,571

Insurance finance expenses - - (53,083) (19,3071) (72,384)
Insurance finance expenses - - (53,083) (19,301)
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI (10,802,424) - 3,737,312 (17,383) (7,010,111)
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
2,168,060 2,418,061 249,060 4,835,181
2,168,060 2,418,061 249,060 4,835,181
(9,154,341) (9,154,341)
(9,154,341) (9,154,341)
- 1,049,975 (66,365) 983,610
1,005,034 - - 1,005,034
1,419,438 179,584 1,599,022
1,005,034 2,469,413 113,219 3,587,666
(1,855) (15,054) (16,909)
(1,855) (15,054) (16,909)
(8,149,307) - 2,467,558 98,165 (5,583,584)
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10.6. Fire
a. Fire - Insurance contracts issued

i Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage § Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
Cash flows N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (1) 12,811,322 12,811,322
Claims and other expenses paid (2,839,501) (2,839,501)
Acquisition cash flows paid (1,342,570) (1,342,570)
11,468,752 (2,839,501) 8,629,251
Non- cashflow ltems
Premiums received- premium fron insurance contract (2) 80,513 80,513
80,513 80,513
Closing insurance contract assets
Closing insurance contract liabilities 3,200,580 2,893,361 329,842 6,423,783
Net closing balance 3,200,580 - 2,893,361 329,842 6,423,783
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31 December 2022
Liabilities for Remaining Coverage l§ Liability for incurred claims

Present value

Excluding loss Loss- of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
9,485,340 9,485,340
(2,890,069) (2,890,069)
(1,092,640) (1,092,640)
8,392,700 - (2,890,069) 5,502,631
42,286 42,286
42,286 42,286
2,453,739 - 1,995,550 347,225 4,796,514

2,453,739 1,995,550

347,225 4,796,514
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10.6. Fire - reinsurance contracts held

a. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value
recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Fire - reinsurance contracts held
Opening reinsurance contract assets (1,800,625) (1,078,268) (271,724) (3,150,617)
Opening reinsurance contract liabilities
Net Opening balance (1,800,625) (1,078,268) (271,724) (3,150,617)
Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI
Reinsurance expenses 8,982,877 8,982,877
8,982,877 8,982,877
Reinsurance service expenses
Incurred claims recovery - (1,274,635 (55,858) (1,330,493)
Other incurred directly attributable expenses (747,008) . i (747,008)
Changes that relate to future services: losses on onerous contracts
and reversals (resulting frm undrlying GoC for reins) (406,411) (236,463 (642,874)
Changes that relate to past services: changes to liabilities for
incurred claims (including reinsurer's non-performance risk) - - - -
(747,008) (1,681,046) (292,321) (2,720,375)
Insurance finance expenses
Insurance finance expenses 36,074 26,436 62,510
- 36,074 26,436 62,510
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI 8,235,869 - (1,644,972 (265,885) 6,325,012
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31 December 2022
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Excluding loss Loss-  Present value

recovery recovery of future Risk
component component cash flows adjustment Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
(1,457,511) (1,333,224) (335,972) (3,126,707)
(1,457,511) (1,333,224) (335,972) (3,126,707)
6,683,190 6,683,190
6,683,190 6,683,190
- (658,576) 170,011 (488,565)
(662,704) - (662,704)
(434,218) (127,646) (561,864)
(662,704) (1,092,794) 42,365 (1,713,133)
26,438 21,884 48,322
- 26,438 21,884 48,322
6,020,486 - (1,066,356) 64,249 5,018,379
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10.6. Fire - reinsurance contracts held

a. Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims - Premium Allocation Approach

Cash flows

31 December 2023
Assets for Remaining Coverage Asset for incurred claims

Present value

Reinsurance Premiums paid - reinsurance premium on reinsurance

contract-1

Recoveries from reinsurance

Acquisition cash flows for ceding commissions and other directly
attributable expenses paid

Closing reinsurance contrac